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Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class

Name of each exchange

on which registered
Common Shares (no par value) New York Stock Exchange
Series A Preferred Share Purchase Rights New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.

Yes   X       No       

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.

Yes           No   X  

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such
reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes  X       No       

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (Section 229.405 of this chapter) is
not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant�s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [    ]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller
reporting company. See definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer   X       Accelerated filer            Non-accelerated filer            Smaller reporting company             

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Yes           No   X  
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The aggregate market value of the voting shares held by non-affiliates of the registrant was $1,810,309,113, computed by
reference to the closing sale price of the stock on the New York Stock Exchange on June 30, 2008, the last business day of the
registrant�s most recently completed second fiscal quarter.

At January 31, 2009, there were 122,196,141 common shares outstanding, excluding amounts held in treasury of 60,685,519.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant�s definitive proxy statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 21, 2009 are
incorporated by reference into Part III of this report.
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Safe Harbor Statement and Part I, Item 1. Business

Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act Of 1995

Safe Harbor Cautionary Statement

This report and the documents incorporated by reference contain �forward-looking� statements, as defined in the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, that are based on current expectations, estimates and projections. Statements that are not historical
facts, including statements about the beliefs and expectations of Convergys Corporation (Company), are forward-looking
statements and will contain words such as �believes,� �expects,� �intends,� �could,� �should,� �will,� �plans,� �anticipates� and other similar words.
These statements discuss potential risks and uncertainties; and, therefore, actual results may differ materially. You are cautioned
not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date on which they were made. The
Company has no current intention to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events
or otherwise.

Important factors that may affect these projections or expectations include, but are not limited to: the behavior of financial markets
including fluctuations in interest or exchange rates; continued volatility and further deterioration of the capital markets; the impact of
regulation and regulatory, investigative, and legal actions; strategic actions, including acquisitions and dispositions; future
integration of acquired businesses; future financial performance of major industries which we serve; the loss of a significant client
or significant business from a client; difficulties in completing a contract or implementing its provisions; and numerous other matters
of national, regional, and global scale including those of the political, economic, business, and competitive nature. These
uncertainties may cause our actual future results to be materially different than those expressed in our forward-looking
statements. The �Risk Factors� set forth in Part I, Item 1A of this report could also cause actual results to differ materially from the
forward-looking statements.

Part I

Item 1. Business

Overview

Convergys Corporation (the Company or Convergys) is a global leader in relationship management. We provide solutions that drive
more value from the relationships our clients have with their customers and employees. Convergys turns these everyday
interactions into a source of profit and strategic advantage for our clients. For over 25 years, our unique combination of domain
expertise, operational excellence and innovative technologies has delivered process improvement and actionable business insight
to clients to enhance their relationships with customers and employees that now span more than 70 countries and 35 languages.

Our principal executive offices are located at 201 East Fourth Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202, and the telephone number at that
address is (513) 723-7000. We file annual, quarterly, current reports and proxy statements with the SEC. These filings are available
to the public over the Internet on the SEC�s web site at http://www.sec.gov and on the Company�s web site at
http://www.convergys.com. You may also read and copy any document we file with the SEC at its public reference facilities in
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Washington, D.C. You can also obtain copies of the documents at prescribed rates by writing to the Public Reference Section of
the SEC at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the
operation of the public reference facilities. You can also inspect reports, proxy statements and other information about Convergys
at the offices of the NYSE Euronext, 11 Wall Street, New York, New York 10005.

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct that applies to all employees as well as our Board of Directors; a Financial
Code of Ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial and accounting officer and certain other
management and senior employees; and Governance Principles for our Board of Directors. The Code of Business Conduct,
Financial Code of Ethics and Governance Principles, as well as the charters for the

2  Convergys Corporation 2008 Annual Report
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Item 1. Business (continued)

following committees of our Board of Directors, being the Audit Committee, Finance Committee, Compensation and Benefits
Committee and the Governance and Nominating Committee, are posted on our web site at www.convergys.com. The Company will
post on our web site any amendments to the Code of Business Conduct and Financial Code of Ethics. Copies of these documents
will be provided free of charge upon written request directed to Investor Relations, Convergys Corporation, 201 East Fourth Street,
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202.

The Company�s web site and the information contained therein are not considered as being incorporated into this Annual Report.

Business Segments

The Company has three segments: Customer Management, which provides agent-assisted services, automated self-service and
technology solutions; Information Management, which provides business support system and operational support system
(BSS/OSS) solutions; and Human Resources (HR) Management, which provides global human resource business process
outsourcing (HR BPO) solutions.

Pursuant to Rule 12b-23 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the industry segment and geographic
information included in Item 8, Note 17 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, are incorporated by reference in partial
response to this Item 1.

Customer Management

Our Customer Management segment partners with clients to deliver customer solutions that enhance the value of their customer
relationships, turning the customer experience into a strategic differentiator. As an end-to-end single-source provider of
self-service, agent-assisted and proactive care, we combine consulting, innovative technology and agent-assisted services to
optimize the customer experience and strengthen customer relationships. Whether contact center operations are on-premises, fully
outsourced or blended, we customize our solutions to meet our clients� needs.

Our global service delivery capabilities provide our clients with the right solution mix of skill sets, geographies, technology,
operations management and industry expertise. We provide comprehensive and integrated multichannel care using a global
service delivery infrastructure of agent-assisted and multichannel automated self-service that operate 24 hours a day, 365 days a
year. Our services include multilingual program support.

Customer Management solutions are organized into two areas: 1) agent-assisted services, and 2) automated self-service and
technology solutions.

Agent-Assisted Services
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Every day our approximately 65,000 contact center employees handle millions of customer service interactions such as account
service, billing inquiries and technical support and service in contact centers worldwide. Agent-assisted solutions include:

Customer Service Solutions

Our Customer Service Solutions include comprehensive outsourced business and consumer customer support functions.

Customer Acquisition Solutions

Our Customer Acquisition Solutions provide comprehensive sales and order support to identify and secure high-value consumer
and business customers, maximize sales conversion rates and increase revenue per customer. In addition, we offer Direct
Response Solutions to address the customer support needs of direct response marketers.

Customer Retention Solutions

Customer Retention Solutions leverage analytics to optimize the level of customer satisfaction, build customer loyalty and address
customer churn. Our programs are designed to help our clients retain their customers and increase their lifetime value.

Convergys Corporation 2008 Annual Report  3

Edgar Filing: CONVERGYS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 9



Table of Contents

Technical Support

Technical Support includes tier-one, tier-two and tier-three advanced services. Either online or by phone, our programs focus on
first contact resolution. Our services span from simple �how-to� inquiries from new users to sophisticated trouble-shooting and
technical support.

Back Office Solutions

We offer complete outsourced Back Office Solutions that combine integrated document management, data entry and transaction
processing capabilities with process expertise and workflow management to help meet our clients� back office needs in customer
care, accounts receivable management for early-stage collections, finance and accounting, and accounts payable. Our global labor
pool supports a 24 hours a day, seven days a week customer support environment.

Convergys Business-to-Business Solutions

Business-To-Business Solutions include inside sales and account management, marketing campaigns, customer service and
self-service programs. Focused on supporting the needs of the business-to-business market, Convergys offers a way to expand the
reach of our clients� sales force and to improve the effectiveness of their channel partnerships. Whether working with current
business customers or tapping new and traditionally under-served markets, we become an extension of our clients� sales force to
drive sales and profits higher while enhancing the value of their customer relationships.

Agent-assisted services are deployed via multishore delivery capabilities that have grown to more than 80 contact centers
worldwide with an infrastructure designed to cost-effectively support customer care requirements. Our seamless and integrated
network of onshore and offshore centers provides a high degree of availability and redundancy. Offshore culture and
communication training combined with the Six-Sigma quality assurance system ensures quality. Home agent delivery is enabled via
a secure network for client data with applications that reside behind our firewall for desk-top security. Our home agents are closely
integrated and monitored by agents sitting in our contact centers. The flexibility of telecommuting, coupled with an expanded labor
pool, results in a more cost-effective and versatile agent solution.

Automated Self-Service and Technology Solutions

Within the Customer Management segment is the Relationship Technology Management unit that focuses on leveraging the latest
advanced technologies in voice portals and speech automation, real-time decisioning, web-based self-service, multichannel
integration, mobile services and enhanced analytics to improve the quality and value of interactions across agent-assisted and
self-service channels.

In September 2008, Convergys purchased Intervoice, Inc. (Intervoice). The purchase was made to augment the Company�s
relationship management solutions. This acquisition expands Convergys� integrated automated and agent-assisted offering and
provides a complementary growth platform. Convergys and Intervoice clients now have the opportunity to benefit from a wider array
of industry-leading, premise-based and hosted customer management solutions that are expected to drive greater value from their
customer and employee relationships. The portfolio of software, services and solutions is called �relationship technology
management solutions� designed to address our clients� key business challenges.
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Our automated self-service solutions include:

� Cost Containment Solutions, which provide multichannel interaction efficiency and increased containment within self-service
channels.

� Adoption Acceleration Solutions, which ensure customers use, enjoy and benefit from self-service offerings.
� Revenue Realization Solutions, which enable organizations to take advantage of frequent, information-rich interactions to

capture new revenue opportunities, present targeted upsell offers and highlight cross-sell promotions.
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Item 1. Business (continued)

� Experience Enrichment Solutions, which help increase satisfaction and loyalty by making interactions more personalized and
intuitive.

Our technology solution components include:

Intervoice Voice Portal 6.0

Intervoice Voice Portal 6.0 (IVP 6) enables clients to create highly personalized speech solutions, leveraging a set of rules and
policies that can be easily constructed by integrating with the Convergys Dynamic Decisioning Solution. This includes a voice portal
platform designed to facilitate the development of multi-channel applications.

Interaction Composer

Interaction Composer enables both contact center programmers and IT developers to quickly build, deploy and manage complex
voice or multi-channel applications. For enterprises with legacy interactive voice response (IVR) applications, Interaction Composer
also enables the migration of legacy-IVR applications to open-standards applications for more efficient self-service calls.

Convergys Dynamic Decisioning Solution

Convergys Dynamic Decisioning Solution includes software that can be leveraged with IVP 6 to create highly personalized
applications. The use of Dynamic Decisioning Solution with IVP brings an enhanced level of customer service by enabling
applications to automatically trigger personalized interactions and respond to changes in a customer�s profile in real-time improving
each customer�s self-service experience.

IP Contact Center

IP Contact Center (IPCC) is a multi-channel contact and agent routing application for on-site and remote agents. IPCC is available
integrated with Intervoice Voice Portal or a separate solution and is also available in a dedicated hosted environment.

Media Exchange with HomeZone

The Media Exchange with HomeZone is an application delivery platform for fixed and mobile operators. Applications include a
variety of subscriber self-service, messaging and call completion applications including speech-enabled IVR, voicemail, video mail,
SMS and missed call alert.

Information Management
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Information Management provides BSS/OSS capability across a broad functional footprint, combining software, partner products,
integration and business consulting services, and operational expertise to create solutions that help service providers meet their
business goals.

The Information Management solution portfolio is organized into three functional areas: revenue management, enterprise product
management, and customer relationship solutions. All solutions are billed using Infinys components.

Revenue Management Solutions

Revenue Management Solutions enable the creation of compelling service bundles to differentiate offers in the marketplace, and
provide real-time capabilities that enable revenue generation from all customer segments, regardless of payment type. Our revenue
management solutions include:

Rating and Billing Manager

Infinys Rating and Billing Manager is a highly scalable and reliable convergent charging, rating and billing management system that
supports existing and emerging services across multiple vertical markets.

Active Mediation

Infinys Active Mediation seamlessly bridges many protocols and/or data formats to meet convergent mediation business
requirements. It is equally suitable for deployment in traditional batch environments and in next-generation networks that require a
real-time, bidirectional dialog for end-to-end service delivery.

Convergys Corporation 2008 Annual Report  5
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Real-Time Convergent Charging Solution

The Real-Time Convergent Charging Solution provides an end-to-end solution, including pre-integrated network control, real-time
rating and charging, balance management, payment management, customer self-service and CSR care. This end-to-end solution
allows service providers to access all segments for service, regardless of payment method (pre-/post-paid).

Enterprise Product Management Solutions

Enterprise Product Management Solutions speed product development times, and also simplify the increasing complexity
associated with managing a growing product and service portfolio. Our enterprise product management solutions include:

Product Control Manager

Infinys Product Control Manager automates manual and disjointed product management practices, as well as multiple product
catalogues, throughout the enterprise. It can coexist with existing product repositories, centralizing and normalizing data and
processes.

Offer Management Solution

Offer Management enables targeted selling and reduced order fallout, qualified offers based on the individual customer, and the
presentation of only relevant offers via the call center application directly to agents.

Customer Relationship Solutions

Customer Relationship Solutions are designed specifically for communications service providers and help them provide the right
customer experience to stand out from the competition. These solutions provide significant flexibility for service providers to deliver
the right experience through any channel, and to find the optimal balance of agent and self-service care to increase customer
satisfaction, loyalty and profits. Our customer relationship solutions include:

Customer Service Manager

Infinys Customer Service Manager is an end-to-end relationship management system for communications and media providers.
The system provides automated end-to-end order orchestration and sophisticated human factors engineering to meet and exceed
subscriber, order, and customer care needs. Solutions can include Convergys Dynamic Decisioning software that includes both a
set of tools and a policy engine in order to enable the execution of real-time customer service policies and proactive upsell offers
that increases customer retention.

Field Service Manager

Infinys Field Service Manager enables communications service providers to predict service demand, then plan, schedule and
execute service delivery in a way that maximizes value across their extended enterprise.
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In addition to the modular solution portfolio above, Information Management offers service providers a pre-configured, end-to-end
solution to meet specific business requirements.

Infinys/ICOMS

The Infinys Integrated Communications Operations Management System (ICOMS) solution is designed specifically for the
broadband convergent video, high-speed data and telephony markets. It incorporates the power and flexibility of our cable
television subscriber management system with the integrated support of high-speed data and wireline telephony.

HR Management

Our HR Management segment partners with clients to deliver HR solutions that transform their global HR to drive more value from
employee relationships, fostering greater organizational effectiveness and lowering costs. Convergys helps clients harmonize HR
processes, standardize global HR technology and improve service delivery. The result is a greater level of workforce insight that
enables HR to make better decisions and better manage global talent as a corporate asset.

6  Convergys Corporation 2008 Annual Report
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Item 1. Business (continued)

Convergys HR Solutions include the following:

Benefits Administration Solution

We manage the complexities of benefits administration, which enables us to predict benefit expenses and provide clients the
business intelligence they need to improve benefit-related processes, services and costs. Our service delivery model combines
self-service tools and multilingual service centers to provide services to employees, including health and welfare administration
services, retirement services and pension administration, absence management, flexible spending account administration, carrier
administration and tuition reimbursement.

Compensation Solution

We help companies improve the clarity and parity of their global compensation plans while assuming global administration to lower
overall costs and deliver key analytics. By aligning global compensation with other key HR processes, Convergys can help improve
employee understanding of compensation strategies resulting in increased employee engagement.

Human Resource Administration Solution

We help organizations transform the task of managing global employee paperwork and data into a harmonized, automated and
highly efficient process. Our solution incorporates process improvements and technology innovations to streamline global HR
Administration.

Learning Solution

Learning helps companies manage the employee life cycle to get more from the talent that they have and develop the talent that
they need. By outsourcing select learning functions such as administration, operations and content development and sourcing to
us, companies gain better return on investment.

Organizational Development/Performance Management Solution

We offer effective Organizational Development and Performance Management that integrates aspects of recruiting and resourcing,
compensation, learning and workforce intelligence to increase employee engagement and to improve employee performance.

Payroll Administration Solution

Our Payroll services range from end-to-end payroll outsourcing to targeted process management for each point between employee
time entry and payroll check production. We can manage the complexities of global payroll, including controls for accuracy and
compliance to local regulations.
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Recruiting and Resourcing Solution

Our global Recruiting and Resourcing Solution can free HR departments from the administrative aspects of finding, hiring and
on-boarding employees so that they can focus on higher-value activities such as staffing strategies and hiring decisions.

Workforce Intelligence Solution

Workforce Intelligence Solutions turn HR information into business insight. Our solutions give HR the business intelligence it needs
to make better decisions and better manage the global workforce.

Talent Management Solution

We offer integrated talent management technology and processes that leverage valuable recruiting, compensation, learning,
performance management and succession planning data enabling organizations to acquire, align, manage and develop talent in a
way that creates the most effective workforce environment.

Strategy

Our strategy is to enable our clients to gain more value from their relationships with their customers and employees. We do this by
providing clients comprehensive relationship management software, services and solutions. The value we create drives improved
business performance and a sustainable competitive advantage for our clients. Key elements of our strategy include:

Deliver a Differentiated Value Proposition to Clients: As a global leader in relationship management, Convergys provides solutions
that drive more value from the

Convergys Corporation 2008 Annual Report  7
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relationships our clients have with both their customers and their employees. Convergys turns these everyday interactions into a
source of profit and strategic advantage for our clients. Our differentiated solution set includes Customer Solutions, BSS/OSS
Solutions, HR Solutions and industry-specific solutions. Our Customer Solutions enhance the value of customer relationships,
turning the customer experience into a strategic differentiator for our clients. Customer Solutions provide end-to-end support for
customer acquisition, service, retention, technical support, back office and automated self-service. These solutions deliver support
using live agents staffed around the world, self-service technology (speech, IVR, web and e-mail) that intelligently automates the
handling of interactions, along with analytics for real-time decisioning and deep customer management process expertise.
Additionally, BSS/OSS Solutions address the critical customer care, billing and product-related issues that face the
communications industry specific to managing customer relationships, revenue management and enterprise product management.
Our BSS/OSS Solutions deliver real-time rating and charging, accelerate the product lifecycle and improve the customer
experience. Our HR Solutions deliver greater organizational effectiveness through comprehensive HR BPO and integrated talent
management strategies. We provide industry-specific solutions to serve the following vertical markets: communications, financial
services, healthcare, manufacturing, retail, technology and transportation. Additionally, we provide tailored solutions for the
government sector.

Invest in Our Business to Expand our Addressable Markets and Strengthen our Solutions: Our growth strategy is to continue to
broaden and deepen our offer portfolio to provide our clients with comprehensive solutions. We will invest in the business as
required (e.g., to acquire new capabilities, to expand into new global locations and to employ new personnel with desired talent) to
expand our addressable markets. We continue to identify and operate in attractive markets where we can effectively provide
differentiated value and deliver superior returns. We intend to expand operations globally with employees and partners who
strengthen our ability to successfully serve and satisfy the demands of multinational clients. Specifically for HR Solutions, we are
strategically aligning with partners to reduce risks in our business model.

Expand Our Relationships with Existing Clients: We focus on client satisfaction to maintain and grow our base business. Our intent
is to grow by cross-selling new solutions and expanding our relationship management footprint within our clients� organization. Our
clients have generally renewed their agreements, reflecting what we believe is a high degree of satisfaction and stability in our
client base.

Aggressively Grow Our Client Base: We believe that the global market for relationship management solutions is large and
underserved and we intend to make investments to aggressively pursue this market. We emphasize a consultative selling approach
leveraging our expertise in four critical areas, 1) business and customer strategy development, 2) business and customer analytics,
3) technology enablement, and 4) operational excellence to deliver superior operating performance and further strengthen our
leadership by cross-selling other services.

Sustain Our High-Performance Culture to Drive Business Results: We believe that people drive performance and we are committed
to hiring and retaining the best performers and ensuring that they are committed to the success of our clients. Our competencies
include our proven strength in recruiting, training, equipping, deploying and effectively managing very large groups of people with
diverse skills on a global basis (people), expertise in operations and cost-effective service delivery (process), and design,
development and delivery of innovative, scalable transactions and interaction applications (technology). We adhere to the principles
of strategic HR, including emphasizing collaboration, goal alignment, pay for performance, continuous improvement and focus on
accountability
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Item 1. Business (continued)

and results. We believe this approach drives superior execution, enabling us to consistently deliver significant value to our
customers.

Clients

Both our Customer Management and Information Management segments derive significant revenues from AT&T Inc. (AT&T).
Revenues from AT&T were 18.2%, 16.3% and 17.3% of our consolidated revenues for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Customer Management

Our Customer Management segment principally focuses on developing long-term strategic outsourcing relationships with large
companies in customer-intensive industries and governmental agencies. We focus on these types of clients because of the
complexity of services required, the anticipated growth of their market segments and their increasing need for more cost-effective
customer management services. In terms of Convergys� revenues, our largest Customer Management clients during 2008 were
AT&T, Comcast Corporation (Comcast), the DirecTV Group, Inc. (DirecTV), General Motors Corporation and Sprint Nextel
Corporation (Sprint Nextel). We provide customer management services to Sprint Nextel as a subcontractor to International
Business Machines (IBM).

Information Management

Our Information Management segment serves clients principally by providing and managing complex BSS/OSS services that
address all segments of the communications industry. In terms of Convergys� revenues, our largest Information Management clients
during 2008 were AT&T, Cincinnati Bell Inc., Sprint Nextel, T-Mobile Inc. and Time Warner Inc.

Human Resource Management

Our HR Management segment primarily focuses on providing human resource outsourcing solutions for large companies and
governmental agencies. In terms of Convergys� revenues, our largest HR Management clients during 2008 were Boston Scientific
Corporation, E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co. (DuPont), the State of Florida, the State of Texas and Whirlpool Corporation.

Operations

We operate approximately 83 contact centers averaging approximately 61,000 square feet per center, with approximately 42,500
production workstations with 24 hours a day and seven days a week availability. Our contact centers are located in various parts of
the world including the United States, Canada, India and the Philippines. New contact centers are established to accommodate
anticipated growth in business or in response to a specific customer need. We are currently adding contact center capacity in the
Philippines to accommodate client needs.
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Our contact centers employ a broad range of technology including digital switching, intelligent call routing and tracking, proprietary
workforce management systems, case management tools, proprietary software systems, computer telephony integration,
interactive voice response, advanced speech recognition, web-based tools and relational database management systems. This
technology enables us to improve our call, web and e-mail handling and personnel scheduling, thereby increasing our efficiency
and enhancing the quality of the services we deliver to our clients and their customers and employees. With this technology, we are
able to respond to changes in client call volumes and move call volume traffic based on agent availability. Additionally, we use this
technology to collect information concerning the contacts, including number, response time, duration and results of the contact.
This information is reported to the client on a periodic basis for purposes of monitoring quality of service and accuracy of the related
billing.

We operate two primary data centers, one in Orlando, Florida, and the other in Cincinnati, Ohio, comprising, in total, approximately
170,000 square feet of space. Our technologically advanced data centers provide 24 hours a day and seven days a week
availability (with redundant power and communication feeds and emergency power back-up) and are designed to withstand most
natural disasters.

The capacity of our data center and contact center operations, coupled with the scalability of our BSS/OSS,
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customer management and HR management solutions, enable us to meet initial and ongoing needs of large-scale and rapidly
growing companies and government entities. By employing the scale and efficiencies of common application platforms, we are able
to provide client-specific enhancements and modifications without incurring many of the costs of a full custom application. This
allows us to be in a position to be a value-added provider of billing, customer and employee support products and services.

Technology, Research and Development

We intend to continue to emphasize the design, development and deployment of scalable billing, customer management and HR
Management systems to increase our market share, both domestically and internationally. During 2008, 2007 and 2006, we spent
$54.9 million, $73.4 million and $84.9 million, respectively, for research and development to advance the functionality, flexibility and
scalability of our products and services. The majority of this spending is incurred in Information Management and reflects our
commitment to further develop our solutions. We are being selective in our approach to research and development spending,
focusing our efforts on only what we consider the highest impact areas. We are also adding development efforts in Asia and
acquiring technology through product partnerships and small acquisitions. The success of both our Customer Management and HR
Management segments depends, in part, on our advanced technology used in the delivery of services to clients. As a result, we
continue to invest in the enhancement and development of our technology.

Our intellectual property consists primarily of business methods and software systems. To protect our proprietary rights, we rely
primarily on a combination of U.S. and foreign copyright, trade secret and trademark laws, confidentiality agreements with
employees and third parties and protective contractual provisions such as those contained in licenses and other agreements with
consultants, suppliers, strategic partners and clients.

We own 168 patents, 155 of which relate to Customer Management and HR Management and 13 of which relate to Information
Management. Customer Management patents include 112 from the Intervoice acquisition. Patents protect our technology and
business methods that we use both to manage our internal systems and processes effectively and give us competitive advantages
in developing innovative technologies to provide customer management, HR Management and billing services to our clients. The
first of these patents was issued in February 1990, while the most recent patent was granted in November 2008. These patents
generally have a life of 17 years. Additional applications for U.S. and foreign patents currently are pending.

Our name and logo and the names of our primary software products are protected by their historic use, and by trademarks and
service marks that are registered or pending in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and under the laws of more than 50 foreign
countries.

Employees

We employ approximately 75,000 people, approximately 68,000 of whom work for Customer Management, approximately 3,000 of
whom work for Information Management, approximately 3,000 of whom work for HR Management, with the remainder working in
various corporate functions.

Competition
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The industries in which we operate are extremely competitive. Our competitors include: (i) other customer management companies,
such as Accenture Ltd. (Accenture), APAC Customer Services Inc., IBM, ICT Group Inc., SITEL Corp., Sykes Enterprises Inc.,
Teleperformance, TeleTech Holdings Inc., West Corporation and Wipro Ltd.; (ii) other HR management companies, such as
Accenture, Affiliated Computer Services Inc., ExcellerateHRO, Hewitt Associates Inc., IBM and Tata Consultancy Services; and
(iii) other BSS/OSS services companies such as Amdocs Ltd., Comverse Technology Inc., CSG Systems International Inc. and
Intec Telecom Systems. In addition, niche providers or new entrants could capture a segment of the market by developing new
systems or services that could impact our market potential.
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Items 1. (continued), 1A., 1B., 2., 3. and 4.

Interests in Cellular Partnerships

The Company owns a 33.8% limited partnership interest in Cincinnati SMSA Limited Partnership, a provider of wireless
communications in central and southwestern Ohio and northern Kentucky, and a 45% interest in the Cincinnati SMSA Tower
Holdings LLC, an operator of cellular tower space (the Cellular Partnerships). We account for our interests in the Cellular
Partnerships under the equity method of accounting. Refer to Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more
details related to these partnerships.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The information required by Item 1A is included in Item 7 of this Form 10-K.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

We own our corporate headquarters facility in Cincinnati, Ohio, which is used by the three segments, an office complex in
Jacksonville, Florida, which is used predominantly by Customer Management and HR Management and an office facility in Dallas,
Texas, which is used by Customer Management.

We lease space for offices, data centers and contact centers on commercially reasonable terms. Domestic facilities are located in
Arizona, California, Colorado, Florida, Georgia, Idaho, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Missouri, Nebraska, New Mexico, North
Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Virginia and Wisconsin. International facilities are located in
Australia, Brazil, Canada, China, Egypt, England, France, Germany, Hong Kong, Hungary, India, Indonesia, Israel, Malaysia, the
Philippines, Saudi Arabia, Scotland, Singapore, Spain, Sri Lanka, Taiwan, Thailand and the United Arab Emirates. Customer
Management and HR Management use the majority of these facilities. Upon the expiration or termination of any such leases, we
believe we could obtain comparable office space. As discussed more fully in Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, we lease an office complex in Orlando, Florida under an agreement that expires June 2010. Upon termination or
expiration, we must either purchase the property from the lessor for $65.0 million or arrange to have the office complex sold to a
third party.
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We also lease some of the computer hardware, computer software and office equipment necessary to conduct our business. In
addition, we own computer, communications equipment, software and leasehold improvements. We depreciate these assets using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of
their estimated useful life or the term of the associated lease.

We believe that our facilities and equipment are adequate and have sufficient productive capacity to meet our current needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The information required by Item 3 is included in Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of the Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2008.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following information responds to the provisions of Part III, Item 10.

As of February 27, 2009, our Executive Officers were:

Name Age Title

David F. Dougherty (a) 52 President and Chief Executive Officer

Earl C. Shanks 52 Chief Financial Officer

Karen R. Bowman 45 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

Clark D. Handy 52 Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Jean-Hervè Jenn 51 Executive Vice President, Global IM Market and Client Development

Timothy M. Wesolowski 50 Senior Vice President, Controller and Treasurer

Andrea J. Ayers 45 President, Customer Management

Michael J. Betzer 47 Senior Vice President, Relationship Technology Management

James P. Boyce 51 President, Global Business Units

John B. Gibson 42 President, HR Management

Robert A. Lento 47 President, Global Information Management

(a)Member of the Board of Directors.

Officers are appointed annually, but are removable at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

DAVID F. DOUGHERTY, President and Chief Executive Officer since April 17, 2007; President and Chief Operating Officer,
2005�2007; Executive Vice President, Global Information Management, 2003�2005.

EARL C. SHANKS, Chief Financial Officer since November 13, 2003.

KAREN R. BOWMAN, Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary since September 1, 2007; President, HR
Management, 1999�2007.

Edgar Filing: CONVERGYS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 25



CLARK D. HANDY, Senior Vice President, Human Resources since December 11, 2006; Executive Vice President, Human
Resources of Teleflex, Incorporated, 2003�2006.

JEAN-HERVÈ JENN, Executive Vice President, Global IM Market and Client Development since January 1, 2009; President,
Information Management International, 2007�2008; President, EMEA, 2003�2007.

TIMOTHY M. WESOLOWSKI, Senior Vice President, Controller and Treasurer since December 5, 2007; Senior Vice President and
Controller, 2005�2007; Vice President and Treasurer, 2004�2005; Director of Finance/Group Controller, Fiberglass-Composite Pipe
Group of Ameron International, 2002�2004.

ANDREA J. AYERS, President, Customer Management since April 1, 2008; President, Relationship Technology Management,
2007�2008; President, Government and New Markets, 2005�2007; Vice President, Customer Management Marketing, 2003�2005.

MICHAEL J. BETZER, Senior Vice President, Relationship Technology Management since May 1, 2008; Vice President, CRM
Siebel/Oracle, 2004�2008; Chief Executive Officer and Founder, Ineto, 1999�2004.

JAMES P. BOYCE, President, Global Business Units since January 1, 2009; President, North America Business Units, 2008;
President, Communications, Technology, Media, Entertainment and Canada Groups, 2007; President, AT&T Group, 2005�2006;
Senior Vice President, Customer Management Client Business Development, 2002�2005.

JOHN B. GIBSON, President, HR Management since September 1, 2007; Senior Vice President, HR Management Client Services,
2007; Senior Vice President, HR Management Global Operations, 2005�2007; Senior Vice President, HR Management Operations,
Americas and India, 2004�2005; Executive Vice President, EPIX Holding Corporation, 2001�2004.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant (continued)

ROBERT A. LENTO, President, Global Information Management since January 1, 2009; President, Information Management,
2007�2008; President, Communications, Technology, Automotive Group, 2003�2007.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant�s Common Equity, Related

Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Convergys Corporation�s shares of common stock, no par value, are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol
�CVG.� As of January 31, 2009, there were 10,823 holders of record of the 122,196,141 common shares of Convergys, excluding
amounts held in Treasury (182,881,660 outstanding common shares of Convergys, of which 60,685,519 were held in Treasury).

The high, low and closing prices of our common shares for each quarter in 2008 and 2007 are listed below:

Quarter 1st 2nd 3rd 4th

2008

High $ 16.60 $ 16.75 $ 16.99 $ 14.93

Low $ 13.66 $ 14.62 $ 11.77 $   4.02

Close $ 15.06 $ 14.86 $ 14.78 $   6.41

2007

High $ 27.18 $ 27.26 $ 24.85 $ 19.18

Low $ 23.84 $ 23.95 $ 14.67 $ 15.86

Close $ 25.41 $ 24.24 $ 17.36 $ 16.46

We have not paid cash dividends on our common stock, including during the periods of 2008 and 2007. Our Board of Directors
re-evaluates this policy periodically. There is no current anticipation of paying cash dividends in the future.

During 2008, we repurchased 7.7 million shares of Convergys common stock for a total cost of $116.6 million. At December 31,
2008, the Company has the authority to purchase an additional 7.1 million common shares of its common stock. We did not
repurchase any shares during the fourth quarter of 2008 and at the current time do not anticipate executing additional share
repurchases in 2009. The timing and terms of any future transactions depend on a number of considerations including market
conditions and our liquidity.
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Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph compares, for the period from December 31, 2003 through December 31, 2008, the percentage
change of the cumulative total shareholder return on the Company�s shares of common stock with the cumulative total return of the
S&P 500 Stock Index and the Custom Composite Index (old and new), based on an initial investment of $100 on December 31,
2003, with dividends reinvested. The Custom Composite Index consists of our peer groups. In 2008, we changed our peer group by
including certain companies to reflect the change in our competitive landscape.

Dec-03 Dec-04 Dec-05 Dec-06 Dec-07 Dec-08

Convergys Corp. $ 100 85.85 90.78 136.20 94.27 36.71

S&P 500® $ 100 110.88 116.33 134.70 142.10 89.53

Old Custom Composite Index $ 100 116.54 122.14 129.28 119.62 79.08

New Custom Composite Index $ 100 131.20 141.66 180.87 173.34 89.73

The Old Custom Composite Index consists of Affiliated Computer Services, Inc., Amdocs LTD, APAC Customer Services Inc.,
Comverse Technology Inc., CSG Systems International Inc., Hewitt Associates Inc., ICT Group, Inc., Sykes Enterprises, Inc., and
Teletech Holdings Inc.

The New Custom Composite Index consists of all of the companies in the Old Custom Composite Index in addition to
Teleperformance, Wipro Ltd, Tata Consultancy Services Ltd., and Intec Telecom Systems.

Copyright © 2009, S&P, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. All rights reserved.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Results of Operations

Revenues $ 2,785.8 $ 2,844.3 $ 2,789.8 $ 2,582.1 $ 2,487.7

Costs and expenses (1) (2) 2,977.1 2,599.5 2,536.9 2,358.5 2,302.2

Operating (loss) income (191.3) 244.8 252.9 223.6 185.5

Equity in earnings of Cellular
Partnerships 35.7 14.3 11.8 12.4 2.0

Other income (expense), net 14.3 4.0 2.7 (1.4) (3.8)

Interest expense (22.6) (17.5) (22.8) (21.2) (10.3)

(Loss) income before income taxes (163.9) 245.6 244.6 213.4 173.4

Income tax (benefit) expense (3) (71.0) 76.1 78.4 90.8 61.9

Net (loss) income $ (92.9) $ 169.5 $ 166.2 $ 122.6 $ 111.5

(Loss) earnings per share:

Basic $ (0.75) $ 1.26 $ 1.20 $ 0.88 $ 0.79

Diluted $ (0.75) $ 1.23 $ 1.17 $ 0.86 $ 0.77

Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic (4) 123.5 134.1 138.4 140.0 141.4

Diluted (4) 123.5 137.7 141.7 142.9 145.4

Financial Position

Total assets $ 2,841.4 $ 2,564.2 $ 2,540.3 $ 2,411.4 $ 2,198.8

Total debt 665.9 259.9 343.5 432.2 351.7

Shareholders� equity 1,150.1 1,521.7 1,455.1 1,355.1 1,285.3

Other Data

Cash provided (used) by:

Operating activities $ 192.3 $ 209.9 $ 353.4 $ 232.7 $ 195.4

Investing activities (365.1) (74.8) (127.5) (138.3) (364.9)

Financing activities 292.5 (250.7) (186.0) 43.2 190.7

Free cash flow (5) 100.2 108.6 256.9 206.8 114.2
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(1)This includes restructuring charges of $34.4, $3.4, $12.5, $21.2 and $30.4 recorded during 2008, 2007, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
(2) In 2008, we incurred $334.0 of asset impairment and implementation charges at HR Management, of which $207.5 related to impairment of

deferred charges, $61.1 related to impairment of goodwill and $65.4 related to expensing of implementation costs.
(3) In 2005, we incurred $11.4 in incremental tax expenses related to the repatriation of approximately $187 in funds from foreign subsidiaries.
(4)Basic and diluted common shares outstanding at December 31, 2008 were 122.1 and 122.1, respectively.
(5)Free cash flow is not defined under accounting principles generally accepted in United States and is calculated as cash flows from operations

excluding the impact of the accounts receivable securitization less capital expenditures (net of proceeds from disposal). The Company uses free
cash flow to assess the financial performance of the Company. Convergys� Management believes that free cash flow is useful to investors
because it relates the operating cash flow of the Company to the capital that is spent to continue and improve business operations, such as
investment in the Company�s existing businesses. Further, free cash flow facilitates Management�s ability to strengthen the Company�s balance
sheet, to repurchase the Company�s common shares and to repay the Company�s debt obligations. Limitations associated with the use of free
cash flow include that it does not represent the residual cash flow available for discretionary expenditures as it does not incorporate certain cash
payments including payments made on capital lease obligations or cash payments for business acquisitions. Management compensates for
these limitations by using both the non-GAAP measure, free cash flow, and the GAAP measure, cash from operating activities, in its evaluation
of performance. There are no material purposes for which we use this non-GAAP measure beyond the purposes described above. For more
detail and a reconciliation of cash flows from operations to free cash flows, see Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources section of
this report.
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

The following information should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes, included
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. In addition to historical information, this discussion and analysis may contain
forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions, which could cause actual results to differ materially
from management�s expectations. Please see additional risks and uncertainties described above in �Disclosure Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements,� which appears in Part 1, and in Item 1A. �Risk Factors,� which appears elsewhere in this Annual
Report.

Overview

Customer Management

Our Customer Management segment, which accounted for 70% of our consolidated revenues in 2008, partners with clients to
deliver solutions that enhance the value of their customer relationships, turning the customer experience into a strategic
differentiator. As an end-to-end single-source provider of self-service, agent-assisted and proactive care, we combine consulting,
innovative technology and agent-assisted services to optimize the customer experience and strengthen customer relationships.
Whether contact center operations are on-premises, fully outsourced or blended, we customize our solutions to meet our clients�
needs.

On September 3, 2008, we acquired 100 percent of the outstanding common shares of Intervoice, a developer of automated voice
response systems, for cash consideration of $338.8. Intervoice is a market leader in the delivery of personalized, multi channel
automated information solutions that connect people with information, empowering them to control the way they interact with a
business. We expect the integration of Intervoice�s speech automation and mobile applications with the Company�s agent-assisted
services will enable us to build upon our leadership position in relationship management solutions. Our solutions result in improved
operational efficiencies, new revenue streams and, most importantly, enhanced differentiation in the large and growing automated
services market. The operating results of Intervoice have been included within the Customer Management segment as of the date
of the acquisition.

As more fully described below under the heading, �Customer Management,� Customer Management revenues increased 5% from
the prior year to $1,954.8. Customer Management 2008 operating income and operating margin were $92.6 and 4.7%,
respectively, compared with $176.7 and 9.5% in 2007. The positive impact from both the Intervoice acquisition and operating
efficiency improvements were more than offset by the negative foreign currency impact of approximately $38, as well as
investments in our consulting and relationship technology resources and infrastructure costs. Results for 2008 also include $14.0
restructuring charges to streamline operations and reduce headcount.

Information Management
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Our Information Management segment serves clients principally by providing and managing complex business support system and
operational support system (BSS/OSS) services that address all segments of the communications industry.

In 2008, Information Management accounted for 21% of our consolidated revenues. License and related support and maintenance
fees, which accounted for 38% of Information Management revenues in 2008, are earned under perpetual and term license
arrangements. Professional and consulting services accounted for 38% and data processing revenues accounted for 24% of
Information Management revenues in 2008. As more fully described below under the heading �Information Management,�
Information Management revenues of $571.5 decreased 21% compared to the prior year due to the expected negative impact of
client migrations in North America as well as project completions. Information Management 2008 operating income and operating
margin were $96.4 and 16.9%, respectively, compared with $130.9 and 18.1%, respectively, in 2007. The decline in operating
income in 2008 was due to the revenue decline. Results for 2008 and 2007 also include $9.7 and $3.4,
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respectively, of restructuring charges to streamline operations and reduce headcount.

Information Management continues to face competition as well as consolidation within the communications industry. In January
2008, AT&T, our largest client, informed us that it intended to migrate its subscribers from the legacy wireless billing system that we
currently support through a managed services agreement onto AT&T�s other wireless billing system over the next two years. While
the migration is subject to change, we anticipate that this will result in a loss of revenue of an amount equal to approximately $35
and $60 in 2009 and 2010, respectively, compared to our 2008 Information Management revenues. The impact of this migration on
our 2008 revenues was approximately $6 compared to our 2007 Information Management revenues.

In September 2005, Sprint PCS, a large data processing outsourcing client, completed its acquisition of Nextel Communications. In
2006, Sprint Nextel informed us that it intended to consolidate its billing systems onto a competitor�s system. The migration began in
2006 and was substantially completed by June 30, 2008. Revenues from Sprint Nextel were down 46%, or approximately $53, in
2008 compared to the corresponding period last year. We expect revenue from Sprint Nextel to be down by approximately $50 in
2009, compared to 2008. This revenue decline is incorporated in our 2009 guidance discussed in the �Business Outlook� section,
and we do not expect these migrations to have a material impact on our liquidity and capital resources.

In the third quarter of 2008, we announced that we were evaluating a potential separation of the Information Management business
from Convergys to create two independent, publicly traded companies, each focused on its own set of business opportunities. We
retained a third-party financial advisor to assist us with this process. In January 2009, given reduced technology spending by the
communications industry and turmoil in capital markets, we determined that the Company is not currently in a position to separate
the Information Management business from Convergys at this time. However, we will continue to evaluate this option and provide
updates regarding the plan as the year progresses in 2009.

Human Resource Management

Our HR Management segment provides a full range of human resource outsourcing solutions including benefits administration,
compensation, human resource administration, learning, payroll administration, performance management, recruiting and sourcing
services to large companies and governmental entities. We take advantage of our economies of scale in order to standardize
human resource processes across departments, business lines, language differences and national borders.

HR Management accounted for 9% of our consolidated revenues in 2008. As more fully described below under the heading �Human
Resource Management,� HR Management revenues increased 2% to $259.5 from the prior year. HR Management operating loss
for 2008 was $358.8 compared to a loss of $38.3 in the prior year. The 2008 operating loss includes $334.0 in asset impairment
and implementation charges, of which $268.6 relates to deferred charges and goodwill impairment and $65.4 relates to expensing
of implementation costs. These charges reflect challenges with complex implementations which have caused an increase in overall
implementation and delivery costs and an assessment of capitalized implementation expenses and goodwill.

We have begun a series of actions that will reduce our implementation risk and improve the future earnings in HR Management.
Actions taken include not signing any new HR Management outsourcing business with significant implementation risk, as well as
streamlining existing operations, continuing to use additional automation, standardization and leveraging of off-shore assets.
Through the combination of the client �go-lives,� lower implementation expense and aggressive cost cutting, our expectation is that
we will see significant improvement from this business in 2009.
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

Results of Operations

Consolidated Results

2008 2007
% Change
08 vs. 07 2006

% Change
07 vs. 06

Revenues $ 2,785.8 $ 2,844.3 (2) $ 2,789.8 2

Costs and Expenses:

Cost of providing services and products
sold (1) 1,892.9 1,837.9 3 1,754.8 5

Selling, general and administrative
expenses 593.8 554.9 7 542.0 2

Research and development costs 54.9 73.4 (25) 84.9 (14)

Depreciation 119.0 115.4 3 130.1 (11)

Amortization 13.5 9.0 50 12.6 (29)

Restructuring charges 34.4 3.4 � 12.5 (73)

Asset impairments 268.6 5.5 � � �

Total costs and expenses 2,977.1 2,599.5 15 2,536.9 2

Operating (Loss) Income (191.3) 244.8 � 252.9 (3)

Equity in earnings of Cellular
Partnerships 35.7 14.3 � 11.8 21

Other income, net 14.3 4.0 � 2.7 48

Interest expense (22.6) (17.5) 29 (22.8) (23)

(Loss) Income Before Income Taxes (163.9) 245.6 � 244.6 �

Income tax (benefit) expense (71.0) 76.1 � 78.4 (3)

Net (Loss) Income $ (92.9) $ 169.5 � $ 166.2 2

Diluted Earnings Per Common Share $ (0.75) $ 1.23 � $ 1.17 5

Operating
Margin (6.9)% 8.6% 9.1%
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(1)Exclusive of depreciation and amortization, with the exception of amortization of deferred charges as disclosed in Note 7 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

2008 vs. 2007

Consolidated revenues for 2008 were $2,785.8, down 2% from 2007. Growth in revenues from Customer Management and HR
Management partially offset an anticipated decline in Information Management. Customer Management revenues for 2008 include
revenue of $63.3 from the Intervoice acquisition that closed on September 3, 2008. The operating loss of $191.3 in 2008 was
driven by the $334.0 of asset impairment and implementation charges recorded at HR Management as well as a 48% operating
income decline at Customer Management and a 26% operating income decline at Information Management. The $334.0 of
charges, as more fully described under the heading �Human Resource Management,� reflect challenges with complex
implementations, which have caused an increase in overall implementation and delivery costs and an assessment of capitalized
implementation expenses and goodwill. The 48% Customer Management operating income decline was due to the negative foreign
exchange impact as well as higher costs related to investments in consulting and relationship technology resources and
infrastructure partially offset by contribution from the Intervoice acquisition. The 26% Information Management operating income
decline was driven by revenue declines resulting from North American client migrations as well as project completions. Operating
income included restructuring charges of $34.4 and $3.4 during 2008 and 2007, respectively. The 2008 net loss and diluted loss
per share was $92.9 and $0.75, respectively, compared to net income and diluted earnings per share of $169.5 and $1.23,
respectively, in the prior year. Strong contribution from the Cellular Partnerships and a favorable impact from the tax rates in 2008
helped partially offset lower operating income.

As a percentage of revenues, cost of providing services and products sold were 67.9% compared to 64.6% in the prior year. The
increase was primarily due to increases in cost of providing services and products sold at HR Management, reflecting expensing of
the $65.4 of implementation costs as more fully described below under the heading �Human Resource Management.� Selling,
general and administrative expenses of $593.8 increased 7% compared to the prior year. As a percentage of revenues, selling,
general and administrative expenses were 21.3% compared to 19.5% in the prior year. The
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increase was due to higher selling, general and administrative expenses at Customer Management, reflecting additional
investments in consulting and relationship technology resources and infrastructure costs. This increase was partially offset by lower
selling, general and administrative expenses both at Information Management and HR Management, largely reflecting the benefits
from cost saving initiatives. The 25% decrease in research and development costs largely reflects reduced spending at Information
Management. We are being selective in our approach to research and development spending, focusing our efforts on only what we
consider the highest impact areas. We are also adding development efforts in Asia and acquiring technology through product
partnerships and small acquisitions.

As discussed more fully under the heading, �Restructuring Charges,� we recorded net restructuring charges of $34.4 in 2008 versus
$3.4 in 2007. In 2008, we recorded equity income in the Cellular Partnerships of $35.7 compared to $14.3 recorded in 2007.
Interest expense of $22.6 increased from $17.5 in the prior year reflecting a higher level of debt resulting from the Intervoice
acquisition. The $10.3 increase in other income, net, was primarily due to an increase in our foreign exchange transaction gains.
Other income, net also includes a $6.0 gain from termination of treasury lock instruments that was offset by lower interest income in
2008. See Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion related to the treasury lock derivative
instruments. Our effective tax benefit rate was 43.3% for 2008 compared to an effective tax expense rate of 31.0% in the prior year.
This relatively high effective tax benefit rate was driven by the asset impairment and implementation charges at HR Management
discussed above, a favorable impact from the resolution of uncertain tax positions (including resolution of tax audits and expiration
of statutes of limitations during 2008), and the impact from the higher mix of non-U.S. income that is taxed at lower effective rates.
See Note 15 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion related to effective tax rates.

As a result of the above, net loss and diluted loss per share for 2008 were $92.9 and $0.75, respectively, compared with net
income and diluted earnings per share of $169.5 and $1.23, respectively, in 2007.

Effective January 1, 2008, we adopted SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements,� and EITF 06-04, �Accounting for Deferred
Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements.� Refer to Note 2 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for details related to the adoption of these Standards. The adoption of these Standards
had no impact on our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

2007 vs. 2006

Consolidated revenues for 2007 were $2,844.3, up 2% from 2006. The increase reflects 3% growth in Customer Management
revenues and 21% growth in HR Management revenues. Revenues from Information Management declined 7% compared to 2006,
primarily due to anticipated client migrations. Operating income was $244.8 compared to $252.9 in 2006. The decline in operating
income in 2007 was primarily due to $25.7 decline in Customer Management operating income, which was partially offset by a
decrease of $11.6 in long-term incentive plan expenses recorded at Corporate, largely reflecting the impact of our share price
performance and Convergys� pay-for-performance policy, as well as a $6.4 increase in operating income at Information
Management. Operating income included restructuring charges of $3.4 and $12.5 during 2007 and 2006, respectively.

As a percentage of revenues, cost of providing services and products sold were 64.6% compared to 62.9% in 2006. The 170 basis
point increase in cost of providing services and products sold as a percentage of revenues was due to an increase in Customer
Management costs due to the negative impact of the weakening U.S. dollar as well as higher labor costs and an increase in HR
Management costs largely due to new client programs and implementations. These increases were partially offset by lower cost of
providing services and products sold as a
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

percentage of revenues incurred at Information Management. Selling, general and administrative expense of $554.9 increased 2%
compared to 2006. As a percentage of revenues, selling, general and administrative expenses were 19.5% compared to 19.4% in
2006. This increase primarily reflects additional capacity expansion costs at Customer Management. The 14% decrease in
research and development costs largely reflects increased efficiency and focused spending on Infinys software. The 11% decrease
in depreciation expense primarily reflects assets that became fully depreciated. Asset impairment charges of $5.5 reflect
impairment of certain acquired intangible assets in the fourth quarter of 2007.

As discussed more fully under the heading, �Restructuring Charges,� we recorded net restructuring charges of $3.4 in 2007 versus
$12.5 in 2006. In addition, operating income for 2007 was positively impacted by a decrease of $11.6 in long-term incentive plan
expense recorded at Corporate largely reflecting the impact of our share price performance and Convergys� pay-for-performance
policy. In 2007, we recorded equity income in the Cellular Partnerships of $14.3 compared to $11.8 recorded in 2006. Interest
expense of $17.5 decreased from $22.8 in 2006, primarily reflecting a lower level of debt. The $1.3 increase in other income, net in
2007 was mainly due to a decrease in our foreign exchange transaction losses. Our effective tax rate was 31.0% for 2007
compared to 32.0% in 2006. The lower effective tax rate in 2007 was largely due to an increase in income in countries in which we
currently have income tax holidays. See Note 15 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion related to
effective tax rates.

As a result of the foregoing, 2007 net income and earnings per diluted share increased to $169.5 and $1.23, respectively,
compared with $166.2 and $1.17, respectively, in 2006. Beginning January 1, 2007, we adopted FIN 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes.� The adoption of this Standard resulted in a reduction of $7.8 to our retained earnings at January 1, 2007.

Customer Management

2008 2007

% Change

08 vs. 07 2006

% Change

07 vs. 06

Revenues:

Communications $ 1,140.2 $ 1,075.0 6 $ 953.2 13

Technology 159.5 155.2 3 157.1 (1)

Financial services 250.8 259.0 (3) 262.2 (1)

Other 404.3 376.9 7 430.6 (12)

Total revenues 1,954.8 1,866.1 5 1,803.1 3

Costs and Expenses:

1,319.4 1,244.1 6 1,180.4 5
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Cost of providing services and products
sold

Selling, general and administrative
expenses 454.7 380.7 19 335.8 13

Research and development costs 8.4 4.6 83 8.6 (47)

Depreciation 61.4 55.9 10 65.4 (15)

Amortization 4.3 2.7 59 4.0 (33)

Restructuring charges 14.0 � � 6.5 (100)

Asset impairments � 1.4 (100) � �

Total costs and expenses 1,862.2 1,689.4 10 1,600.7 6

Operating
Income $ 92.6 $ 176.7 (48) $ 202.4 (13)

Operating
Margin 4.7% 9.5% 11.2%

2008 vs. 2007

Revenues

Customer Management revenues for 2008 were $1,954.8, up 5% from 2007. This includes $63.3 in revenue from the Intervoice
acquisition that closed on September 3, 2008.

The acquisition does not meet the thresholds for a significant acquisition and, therefore, no pro forma financial information is
presented.

Revenues from the communications vertical increased 6% from the prior year. Growth with two large wireless clients
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and from the Intervoice acquisition was partially offset by a shift in our revenue mix for a few of our clients from North America to
the Philippines. Revenues from the financial services vertical decreased 3%, reflecting completion of programs with clients that
were partially offset by growth from the Intervoice acquisition. Revenues from the Other vertical, which is comprised of clients
outside of Customer Management�s three largest industries, increased 7% from the prior year, reflecting growth from the new
programs as well as the Intervoice acquisition.

Costs and Expenses

Customer Management total costs and expenses were $1,862.2, a 10% increase from the prior year. Customer Management cost
of providing services and products sold increased 6% to $1,319.4 from the prior year. As a percentage of revenues, cost of
providing services and products sold were 67.5% for 2008, up 80 basis points from 66.7% in the prior year. The impact of revenue
growth and operating efficiencies were more than offset by the negative foreign currency impact of approximately 165 basis points.
Customer Management serves a number of its U.S.-based clients using contact center capacity in Canada, India and the
Philippines. Although the contracts with these clients are typically priced in U.S. dollars, a substantial portion of the costs incurred
to operate these non-U.S. contact centers is denominated in Canadian dollars, Indian rupees or Philippine pesos, which represents
a foreign exchange exposure. The expense of operating these contact centers, translated into U.S. dollars, has increased. As
discussed in further detail in the section titled �Market Risk,� we hedge this exposure by entering into foreign currency forward
contracts and options to limit potential foreign currency exposure. We enter into these derivative instruments on a periodic basis
over time and, therefore, the 2008 earnings impact is determined based on the difference in our hedged rates between 2008 and
2007.

Selling, general and administrative expenses of $454.7 increased 19% compared to the prior year. This reflects higher investments
in our consulting and relationship technology resources and infrastructure costs. As a percentage of revenues, selling, general and
administrative expenses were 23.3% for 2008 compared to 20.4% in the prior year. The $3.8, or 83%, increase in research and
development costs reflects investments in our relationship technology solutions. The 10% increase in depreciation expense and the
59% increase in amortization expense largely reflect depreciation and amortization of the assets acquired through the Intervoice
acquisition. Refer to Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for details related to assets acquired from the
Intervoice acquisition. As discussed more fully under the heading, �Restructuring Charges,� Customer Management recorded a
restructuring charge of $14.0 during 2008 to streamline operations and reduce headcount.

Operating Income

As a result of the foregoing, Customer Management operating income and operating margin were $92.6 and 4.7%, respectively,
compared with $176.7 and 9.5%, respectively, in the prior year.

2007 vs. 2006

Revenues

Customer Management revenues for 2007 were $1,866.1, up 3% from 2006. Revenue growth resulted from several existing clients
in the communication vertical.

Revenues from the communication vertical increased 13% from 2006, reflecting growth with several large wireless and cable
clients, partially offset by a reduction in spending from a large communication client reflecting lower call volume due to a reduction
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in their programs. Revenues from the technology vertical and financial services vertical decreased 1%, reflecting completion of
programs with clients. Other revenues, which are comprised of clients outside of Customer Management�s three largest industries,
decreased 12% from 2006. This was primarily due to declines in transportation and government programs.
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

Costs and Expenses

Customer Management total costs and expenses were $1,689.4, a 6% increase from 2006. Customer Management cost of
providing services and products sold increased 5% to $1,244.1 from 2006. As a percentage of revenues, cost of providing services
and products sold were 66.7% for 2007 compared to 65.5% in 2006. The impact of revenue growth and cost-saving initiatives were
offset by higher expenses of approximately $18 resulting from the impact of a weakened U.S. dollar, net of gains realized from the
settlement of hedged instruments, as well as higher labor costs. As discussed in further detail in the section titled �Market Risk,� we
hedge this exposure by entering into foreign currency forward contracts and options.

Selling, general and administrative expenses of $380.7 increased 13% compared to 2006. This reflects higher costs from capacity
expansions during 2007 and also costs from adding sales and consulting resources. As a percentage of revenues, selling, general
and administrative expenses were 20.4% for 2007 compared to 18.6% in 2006. Compared to 2006, research and development
costs decreased $4.0, reflecting reduced spending on a Customer Management application. The 15% decrease in depreciation
expense mostly reflects data center assets, which are now being managed in a shared service environment. As discussed more
fully under the heading, �Restructuring Charges,� Customer Management recorded a $6.5 restructuring charge in 2006. The $1.4 in
asset impairment expense reflects impairment of an acquired intangible asset in the fourth quarter of 2007.

Operating Income

As a result of the foregoing, Customer Management operating income and operating margin were $176.7 and 9.5%, respectively,
compared with $202.4 and 11.2%, respectively, in 2006.

Information Management

2008 2007
% Change
08 vs. 07 2006

% Change
07 vs. 06

Revenues:

Data processing $ 135.4 $ 239.6 (43) $ 301.1 (20)

Professional and consulting 216.1 262.8 (18) 287.2 (8)

License and other 220.0 220.6 � 187.0 18

Total revenues 571.5 723.0 (21) 775.3 (7)

Costs and Expenses:
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Cost of providing services and products sold 304.4 382.7 (20) 420.1 (9)

Selling, general and administrative expenses 79.3 101.4 (22) 114.4 (11)

Research and development costs 46.5 67.2 (31) 75.0 (10)

Depreciation 28.2 32.4 (13) 33.6 (4)

Amortization 7.0 3.7 89 6.9 (46)

Restructuring charges 9.7 3.4 � 0.8 �

Asset impairments � 1.3 (100) � �

Total costs and expenses 475.1 592.1 (20) 650.8 (9)

Operating Income $ 96.4 $ 130.9 (26) $ 124.5 5

Operating Margin 16.9% 18.1% 16.1%

2008 vs. 2007

Revenues

Information Management revenues of $571.5 in 2008 were down 21% compared to the prior year, due to North American client
migrations as well as project completions.

Data processing revenues of $135.4 decreased 43% from the prior year reflecting North American client migrations. Professional
and consulting revenues of $216.1 decreased 18% from the prior year reflecting project completions and reduction in services
resulting from client migrations. License and other revenues remained relatively flat at $220.0 compared to the prior year.
Termination revenue resulting from the completion of the Sprint Nextel and another North American client migration was offset by
several items including reduction in client budgets due to
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slowdown in the industry, delayed project acceptance and completion of some international programs.

Revenues from Sprint Nextel were down approximately $53, or 46%, in 2008 compared to 2007. We expect revenue from Sprint
Nextel to be down by approximately $50 in 2009, compared to 2008.

Costs and Expenses

Information Management total costs and expenses were $475.1, down 20% from the prior year. Information Management cost of
providing services and products sold decreased 20% to $304.4 from the prior year. As a percentage of revenues, cost of providing
services and products sold were 53.3% for 2008, and were relatively flat compared to prior year. Selling, general and administrative
expenses of $79.3 decreased 22% from the prior year, reflecting benefits from continued focus on reducing costs. As a percentage
of revenues, selling, general and administrative expenses were 13.9% compared to 14.0% in 2007. The 31% decrease in research
and development costs reflects our selective approach to research and development spending by focusing our efforts on only what
we consider the highest impact areas. We are also adding development efforts in Asia and acquiring technology through product
partnerships and small acquisitions. Based on specific opportunities, we may increase our research and development investment in
future quarters.

As discussed more fully under the heading �Restructuring Charges,� we recorded restructuring charges of $9.7 during 2008 to better
align cost structure to future business needs as well as to shift the geographic mix of some of our resources. We recorded a
restructuring charge of $3.4 in 2007 related to a facility closure in the United Kingdom.

Operating Income

As a result of the foregoing, Information Management operating income and operating margin were $96.4 and 16.9%, respectively,
compared with $130.9 and 18.1%, respectively, in the prior year.

2007 vs. 2006

Revenues

Information Management revenues of $723.0 in 2007 were down 7% compared to 2006, primarily due to the negative impact of the
AT&T and Sprint Nextel client migrations.

Data processing revenues of $239.6 decreased 20% from 2006. This decrease reflects the changing dynamics of Information
Management�s billing relationship with AT&T, as AT&T migrated AT&T subscribers to an in-house managed service environment.
The AT&T migration was completed earlier in 2007. Professional and consulting revenues of $262.8 decreased 8% from 2006. This
decrease was also largely attributable to AT&T, due to a reduction in migration services. License and other revenues increased
18% to $220.6 from 2006, reflecting strong license revenue increases with several international clients.

Costs and Expenses
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Information Management total costs and expenses were $592.1, down 9% from 2006. Information Management cost of providing
services and products sold decreased 9% to $382.7 from 2006. As a percentage of revenues, cost of providing services and
products sold were 52.9% for 2007 compared to 54.2% in 2006. This decrease primarily reflects cost reductions and growth in
license and other revenues. Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 11% from 2006, reflecting benefits from
continued focus on reducing costs. As a percentage of revenues, selling, general and administrative expenses decreased to 14.0%
from 14.8% in 2006. The 10% decrease in research and development costs reflects increased efficiency and focused spending on
Infinys software. The 46% decrease in amortization expense mostly reflects accelerated amortization of acquired software in the
second quarter of 2006. Additionally, as discussed in further detail under the heading, �Restructuring Charges,� Information
Management recorded a restructuring charge of $3.4 in 2007. This compares to a net restructuring charge of $0.8 in 2006. The
$1.3 in asset impairment expense reflects impairment of an acquired intangible asset in the fourth quarter of 2007.
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

Operating Income

As a result of the foregoing, Information Management operating income and operating margin were $130.9 and 18.1%,
respectively, compared with $124.5 and 16.1%, respectively, in 2006.

Human Resource Management

2008 2007
% Change
08 vs. 07 2006

% Change
07 vs. 06

Revenues: $ 259.5 $ 255.2 2 $ 211.4 21

Costs and Expenses:

Cost of providing services and products sold 269.1 211.1 27 154.0 37

Selling, general and administrative expenses 58.6 66.7 (12) 77.9 (14)

Research and development costs � 1.6 (100) 1.3 23

Depreciation 9.3 8.7 7 12.8 (32)

Amortization 2.2 2.6 (15) 1.7 53

Restructuring charges 10.5 � � 2.1 (100)

Asset impairments 268.6 2.8 � � �

Total costs and expenses 618.3 293.5 � 249.8 17

Operating Loss $ (358.8) $ (38.3) � $ (38.4) �

2008 vs. 2007

Revenues

HR Management revenues for 2008 were $259.5, up 2% from 2007. Revenue growth from a contract termination payment received
during the first quarter of 2008 and from the North American go-live of a large contract was partially offset by the elimination of
pass-through revenue with a large HR outsourcing client during 2008, as well as declines from the completion of certain legacy
programs. Pass-through revenues for 2008 and 2007 were $12.8 and $25.3, respectively.

Costs and Expenses
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In 2008, we recorded $334.0 of asset impairment and implementation charges at HR Management, of which $268.6 related to
impairment of deferred charges and goodwill and $65.4 related to expensing of implementation costs. The charges reflect
challenges with complex implementations which have caused an increase in overall implementation and delivery costs and an
assessment of capitalized implementation expenses and goodwill. As discussed more fully in the �Deferred Charges� section of Note
2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, typically implementation costs are deferred and amortized ratably over the life
of the contract. Deferred amounts are periodically evaluated for impairment or when circumstances indicate a possible inability to
recover their carrying amounts. In the event these costs are not deemed recoverable, we follow the guidance in SFAS No. 144,
�Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,� to determine if impairment exists. Based upon the contract
profitability analysis completed in the third quarter of 2008, two global HR Management contracts were projected to be unprofitable
over their contract terms, due to an increase in their overall implementation and delivery costs. As a result, the capitalized costs of
$207.5 related to these contracts were impaired and, therefore, were written down as impairment charges and are recorded within
the asset impairments caption in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations. After the write-off, one of the contracts
is expected to be profitable over its remaining contract term and the other contract is expected to continue to generate losses. The
losses from this executory contract will be recorded as incurred, over the contract term through 2016 in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations and are not expected to be material to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Further, during the third quarter of 2008, the costs of implementing another large HR Management outsourcing client contract
exceeded the amount recoverable at September 30, 2008 under the contract. When implementation costs are deemed not
recoverable, such excess costs are expensed even if the contract is profitable over its term, in accordance with our accounting
policy. This resulted in expensing of $65.4 of implementation costs in the third quarter of 2008, even though the contract is
expected to be profitable over its
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term. This charge is recorded within the cost of providing services and products sold caption in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

The charges discussed above, recorded during the third quarter of 2008 triggered an impairment review of the goodwill related to
the HR Management segment. As discussed more fully in Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, we are
required to test goodwill for impairment annually and at other times if events have occurred or circumstances exist that indicate the
carrying value of goodwill may no longer be recoverable. The impairment test for goodwill involves a two-step process. The first
step compares the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, including the goodwill allocated to each reporting unit. If
the carrying amount is in excess of the fair value, the second step requires the comparison of the implied fair value of the reporting
unit goodwill with the carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill. Any excess of the carrying value of the reporting unit goodwill
over the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill will be recorded as an impairment loss. We determined that the fair value of
the HR Management segment was less than its carrying value as of September 30, 2008 and, therefore, the second step of the test
was required. This second step review of the HR Management segment was completed during the fourth quarter of 2008 and
resulted in a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $61.1 recorded within the asset impairments caption in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations. In determining the amount of the HR Management related goodwill impairment, we
engaged a third-party appraisal firm to assist in valuing the significant intangible assets of the reporting unit. Key assumptions used
by the Company in determining the fair value of the HR Management segment include revenue increases from existing contracts as
services �go-live� and an estimate of future cash implementation costs and revenue.

HR Management cost of providing services and products sold for 2008 were $269.1, up 27% from 2007. As a percentage of
revenues, costs of providing services and products sold were 103.7% for 2008 compared to 82.7% in 2007. The increase was
related to expensing $65.4 of implementation costs related to a large HR Management outsourcing contract in the third quarter of
2008 as discussed above. Selling, general and administrative expenses of $58.6 decreased 12% from 2007, largely reflecting an
increase in employees working on client-related projects in 2008 and savings realized from cost reduction initiatives. As a
percentage of revenues, selling, general and administration expenses were 22.6% in 2008 compared to 26.1% in 2007. The
decrease in research and development expense in 2008 reflects employees working on client related implementation projects.
Additionally, as discussed in further detail under the heading, �Restructuring Charges,� HR Management recorded a restructuring
charge of $10.5 in 2008 to better align cost structure to future business needs.

Operating Income

As a result of the foregoing, HR Management 2008 operating loss was at $358.8 compared to $38.3 in the prior year.

2007 vs. 2006

Revenues

HR Management revenues for 2007 were $255.2, up 21% from 2006. Revenue growth was largely from clients in early stage, live
operation.

Costs and Expenses

HR Management total costs and expenses were $293.5, up 17% from 2006. HR Management cost of providing services and
products sold for 2007 were $211.1, up 37% from 2006. As a percentage of revenues, cost of providing services and products sold
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were 82.7% for 2007 compared to 72.8% in 2006. This increase largely related to client program implementations. In the early
stages of client programs, margins tend to be lower. However, as we become more efficient with the delivery of the services, our
margins tend to improve. Further, there were some implementation costs that were expensed during the current year. As discussed
more fully in the �Deferred Charges� section of Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, we typically defer
implementation
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

costs associated with a contract and amortize them ratably over the life of the contract. When implementation costs are deemed
not recoverable in accordance with our accounting policy, we expense such excess costs even if the contract is profitable over its
term. Additionally, $25.3 of revenue recognized in this period was pass-through in nature. Selling, general and administrative
expenses of $66.7 decreased 14% from 2006, reflecting improved employee productivity. As a percentage of revenues, selling,
general and administration expenses were 26.1% in 2007 compared to 36.8% in 2006, primarily reflecting revenue growth. The
$2.8 in asset impairment expense reflects impairment of an acquired intangible asset in the fourth quarter of 2007. Additionally, as
discussed in further detail under the heading, �Restructuring Charges,� HR Management recorded a restructuring charge of $2.1 in
2006.

Operating Income

As a result of the foregoing, HR Management 2007 operating loss remained essentially flat at $38.3 compared to 2006.

Restructuring Charges

As discussed more fully in Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, we recorded the following restructuring
charges:

2008

During the first quarter of 2008, we initiated a restructuring plan to align resources to future business needs and to shift the
geographic mix of some of our resources. Restructuring actions were taken in each business segment, of which $5.4 related to
Customer Management, $6.9 related to Information Management and $1.8 related to HR Management. The severance charge of
$14.1 was largely paid in cash pursuant to the Company�s severance policy and employment agreements. These actions, which
affected approximately 750 professional and administrative employees worldwide, were mostly completed by the end of 2008.

During the fourth quarter of 2008, we initiated another restructuring plan to reduce approximately 750 of our worldwide salaried
employees and approximately 1,000 of non-salaried employees. Restructuring actions were taken in each business segment, of
which $8.6 related to Customer Management, $2.8 related to Information Management, $8.7 related to HR Management and $0.2
related to Corporate. The $20.3 restructuring charges include cash-related payments of $16.2 and a non-cash charge of $2.3
related to acceleration of equity-based awards which are being paid pursuant to the Company�s severance policy, as well as facility
closure related accruals of $1.8. The severance actions are expected to be completed during 2009. We expect the payback on
these charges to be less than one year.

Below is a summary of the 2008 net restructuring charge of $34.4 ($22.4 after tax) by segment:
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Customer
Management

Information
Management

HR
Management Corporate Total

Severance costs $ 12.2 $ 9.7 $ 10.5 $ 0.2 $ 32.6
Facility-related costs 1.8 � � � 1.8

Net restructuring $ 14.0 $ 9.7 $ 10.5 $ 0.2 $ 34.4

Restructuring liability activity for the 2008 plan consisted of the following:

2008

Balance at January 1 $ �

Restructuring charge 34.4

Severance payments (12.3)

Balance at December 31 $ 22.1

2007

During the third quarter of 2007, we recorded a restructuring charge of $3.4 at Information Management related to a facility closure
in the United Kingdom. This action was a result of the facility consolidation in the United Kingdom that started during the fourth
quarter of 2006 as discussed in more detail below. The $3.4 accrual is equal to the future costs associated with the abandoned
facility, net of the proceeds from any probable future
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sublease agreements. We used estimates, based on consultation with its real estate advisors, to arrive at the proceeds from any
future sublease agreements. We will continue to evaluate such estimates in recording the facilities abandonment charge.
Consequently, there may be additional reversals or charges relating to this facility closure in the future. At December 31, 2008, this
restructuring reserve had an outstanding balance of $1.0, which will be paid over several years until the lease expires.

2006

We initiated a restructuring plan in the fourth quarter of 2006. The plan was initiated to rationalize facility costs, further streamline
our operations in order to align resources to support growth, and to shift the geographic mix of some of our resources. The plan
resulted in a net restructuring charge of $12.5 and included $24.1 of severance costs, $0.5 of facility closure costs and reversal of
$12.1 in facility abandonment costs. Restructuring actions were taken in each business segment, of which $6.5 related to Customer
Management, $0.8 related to Information Management, $2.1 related to HR Management and $3.1 related to Corporate.

The $24.1 severance charge was paid pursuant to the Company�s severance policy and employment agreements and included
cash-related payments of $21.3 and a non-cash charge of $2.8 related to the acceleration of equity-based awards. These actions,
which affected approximately 700 professional employees, were completed in 2007. The $0.5 of facility closure costs relate to an
additional accrual, resulting from changes in the sublease estimates, for a property that was abandoned in 2005. In the fourth
quarter of 2006, the Company made a decision to consolidate its operations in the U.K. and move into one of the facilities that was
originally abandoned in 2002. This resulted in the reversal of $12.1 of the Company�s 2002 facility related restructuring reserves at
December 31, 2006. Completion of the facility consolidation at this location resulted in the recording of additional reserves in the
third quarter of 2007, as discussed above.

Below is the summary of the 2006 net restructuring charge of $12.5 ($8.5 after tax) by segment:

Customer
Management

Information
Management

HR
Management Corporate Total

Severance costs $ 6.5 $ 12.9 $ 1.6 $ 3.1 $ 24.1
Facility-related costs/
(reversal) � (12.1) 0.5 � (11.6)

Net restructuring $ 6.5 $ 0.8 $ 2.1 $ 3.1 $ 12.5

Restructuring liability activity for the fourth quarter 2006 plan consisted of the following:

2008 2007 2006

Balance at January 1 $ 3.1 $ 20.5 $ �

Restructuring charge � � 24.6

Lease termination payments � (0.5) �

Severance payments (3.1) (16.9) (4.1)
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Balance at December 31 $ � $ 3.1 $ 20.5

Client Concentration

Our three largest clients accounted for 33.0% of our revenues in 2008, up slightly from 32.9% in 2007. We serve AT&T, our largest
client with 18.2% of 2008 revenues under Customer Management and Information Management contracts. We serve Sprint Nextel,
our second largest client, under Customer Management and Information Management contracts. We provide Customer
Management services to Sprint Nextel under a contract between Sprint Nextel and IBM, as a subcontractor to IBM. We serve
DirecTV, our third largest client in 2008, under Customer Management contracts. Volumes under certain of our long-term contracts
are subject to variation based on, among other things, the spending by clients on outsourced customer support and subscriber
levels.

Business Outlook

We and our clients are facing a challenging economic environment within which forecasting is difficult. Going into 2009, some of
our existing clients are projecting lower volumes and for planning purposes we have assumed that these adverse conditions will
generally continue
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

throughout 2009. Actual economic conditions could positively or negatively impact performance for the year.

Given these planning assumptions, expectations for 2009 performance are as follows:

� We expect overall revenue to grow slightly in 2009. Growth is expected to come from a modest increase in Customer
Management (including the Intervoice acquisition) and HR Management, partially offset by a decline in Information Management.

� We also expect a slight overall improvement in operating income. This will include a modest increase in Customer Management
operating income, improvement in HR Management operating loss, and some decline in Information Management.

� The overall operating income improvement will be more than offset by expected higher interest expense, as our 2009 business
plan includes assumptions regarding higher debt levels primarily from the Intervoice acquisition and cost of potentially
refinancing the $250 bond that is due in December 2009.

� An expected tax rate in the range of about 30% for the full year, with higher rates in the beginning of the year.
� Given the uncertain environment, we expect earnings per share in the range of $0.90 and $1.10. This reflects the difficulty of

predicting the impact of the current environment on client business.
� Free cash flow is expected to be approximately $200 in 2009, driven by continued contributions to net income from Information

Management and Customer Management, reductions in cash usage in HR Management, minimal cash tax outflows, and
depreciation and amortization expense greater than capital expenditures. The expected 2009 free cash flow of $200, combined
with the $240 cash on the balance sheet at December 31, 2008, would provide us with sufficient liquidity to retire the $250 debt
maturing in December 2009, and also provide us with an ability to invest in our business in 2009 and beyond.

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity and Cash Flows

We believe that Convergys has adequate liquidity from cash and expected future cash flows to fund ongoing operations, invest in
the business and make required debt payments. For 2009, we expect free cash flow to be approximately $200, significantly higher
than the 2008 free cash flow of $100.2. Major factors causing the expected increase in 2009 free cash flow include:

� A reduction in implementation costs for two global HR Management contracts as we have completed the key portions of the
implementations and achieved key �go-live� milestones.

� An increase in implementation revenue from one of the global HR Management clients based on existing contractual payment
terms and achieving certain milestones.

� An improvement in the HR Management operating results as a result of additional revenue realized from ongoing services being
performed post �go-live� dates and cost reductions.

The combination of the above factors is expected to result in improvement in the 2009 cash flow. Our 2009 expected free cash flow
will be negatively impacted to the extent there are project delays, contractual settlements or cost overruns related to the remaining
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implementation phases of the two large HR Management contract implementations. Receipts of implementation revenue are based
on scheduled contractual amounts and achieving certain milestones. If achieving the milestones date is delayed, our cash flow
could be negatively impacted by a material amount.

In addition to the above factors, we expect that cash flow will be positively impacted in 2009 by actions being taken to continue to
accelerate collection of accounts receivables, to improve payment terms with vendors and to further reduce capital spending and
can be negatively impacted by collateral requirements and client bankruptcies.
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We expect that the combination of 2009 free cash flow and the solid liquidity position as of December 31, 2008, including cash of
$240.0, will provide us with the ability to fund ongoing operations, invest in the business and retire the $250 unsecured senior notes
due in December 2009 without obtaining additional financing. However, if external financing markets improve during the year, then
we may examine opportunities to increase our financial flexibility through the capital markets.

Cash flow from operating activities generally provides us with a significant source of funding for our investing and financing
activities.

2008 2007 2006

Net cash flows from operations $ 192.3 $ 209.9 $ 353.4

Net cash flows used in investing (365.1) (74.8) (127.5)

Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing 292.5 (250.7) (186.0)

Computation of Free Cash Flows:

Net cash flows from operations $ 192.3 $ 209.9 $ 353.4

Capital expenditures, net of proceeds from disposal of assets (92.1) (101.3) (96.5)

Free Cash Flows $ 100.2 $ 108.6 $ 256.9

Cash flows from operating activities totaled $192.3 in 2008, compared to $209.9 in 2007 and $353.4 in 2006. Compared to the prior
year, the $17.6 decline in cash flow from operations was driven largely by the increase in net deferred charges due to additional HR
Management contract implementation costs in the current year. Total implementation related costs, less implementation revenue
paid by the clients, and the related amortization of these cost and revenue is described below as �net deferred charges.� During
2008, net deferred charges increased by $133.3 excluding the impact of the $272.9 of impairment and implementation charges that
were incurred in the third quarter in the HR Management segment. We believe that the implementation costs for both of our two
large HR Management outsourcing contracts have peaked in 2008. In 2007, the increase in net deferred charges related to client
implementations incurred primarily at HR Management was approximately $30. The increase in net deferred charges during 2008
compared to 2007 was nearly offset by a reduction in accounts receivable of approximately $60 and a decline in other working
capital requirements of approximately $35.

The decrease in cash flow from operating activities during 2007, compared to 2006, was driven by changes in working capital. The
working capital increases were mostly due to lower bonus accruals in 2007, a decrease in advance billing amounts in 2007 and the
timing of both accounts payable and restructuring payments. Also in 2007, the increase in net deferred charges related to client
implementations incurred primarily at HR Management was approximately $30.

We used $365.1 for investing activities in 2008 compared to $74.8 in 2007 and $127.5 in 2006. During 2008, we paid $312.2 (net of
cash acquired) for the acquisition of Intervoice in the Customer Management segment and three small acquisitions in the
Information Management segment. The investing activity in 2008 was favorably impacted by a $39.2 return of capital from the
Cellular Partnerships. At this point, we are not aware of any material capital calls from the general partner of Cincinnati SMSA
Limited Partnership. The 41% decrease in amounts for investing activities during 2007 compared to 2006 was due to sale of our
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short-term investments during 2007.

Financing activities provided $292.5 in 2008 compared to using cash of $250.7 in 2007 and $186.0 in 2006. During the third quarter
of 2008, we borrowed the entire amount available under our $400 Five-Year Competitive Advance and Revolving Credit Facility,
primarily to fund the acquisition of Intervoice. Also in 2008, we repurchased 7.7 million of the Company�s shares of common stock
for $116.6. At the current time, we do not anticipate executing additional share repurchases in 2009. The cash flow used during
2007 and 2006 was largely due to debt repayments and repurchase of the Company�s common stock.
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

During 2008, both Moody�s and Standard and Poor�s downgraded our credit ratings, and our debt is no longer considered
investment grade by both agencies. As of December 31, 2008, our credit ratings and outlook are as follows:

Long-Term Debt Outlook

Moody�s Ba1 Under review, possible downgrade

Standard and Poor�s BB+ Negative

The current as well as any further downgrades could have a negative impact on both our access to capital markets and financing
costs.

The Company�s free cash flow, defined as cash flow from operating activities less capital expenditures (net of proceeds related to
disposals), was $100.2, $108.6 and $256.9 for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The Company uses free cash flow to assess the
financial performance of the Company. The Company believes that free cash flow is useful to investors because it relates the
operating cash flow of the Company to the capital that is spent to continue and improve business operations, such as investment in
the Company�s existing businesses. Further, free cash flow facilitates management�s ability to strengthen the Company�s balance
sheet, to repurchase the Company�s common shares and to repay the Company�s debt obligations. Limitations associated with the
use of free cash flow include that it does not represent the residual cash flow available for discretionary expenditures as it does not
incorporate certain cash payments including payments made on capital lease obligations or cash payments for business
acquisitions. Management compensates for these limitations by utilizing both the non-GAAP measure, free cash flow, and the
GAAP measure, cash from operating activities, in its evaluation of performance. There are no material purposes for which we use
this non-GAAP measure beyond the purposes described above.

Capital Resources, Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Commitments

We believe that our financial structure and condition are solid. At December 31, 2008, total capitalization was $1,816.0, consisting
of $665.9 of short-term and long-term debt and $1,150.1 of equity. At December 31, 2007, total capitalization was $1,781.6,
consisting of $259.9 of short-term and long-term debt and $1,521.7 of equity. The total debt-to-capital ratio at December 31, 2008,
was 36.7%, which compares to 14.6% at December 31, 2007. The increase in this ratio is due to higher level of borrowings in 2008
compared to 2007, primarily as a result of the acquisition of Intervoice.

During the third quarter of 2008, we borrowed the entire amount available under our $400 Five-Year Competitive Advance and
Revolving Credit Facility. This borrowing was mainly to fund our acquisition of Intervoice as described in Note 5 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. The commitment fee on this facility at December 31, 2008 was 0.1%. The maturity date of the
Revolving Credit Facility Agreement is October 20, 2011. The participating agents in the credit facility include JPMorgan Chase
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Bank, Citicorp USA, PNC Bank and Deutsche Bank AG. The Company�s credit facility includes certain restrictive covenants
including maintenance of interest coverage and debt-to-EBITDA ratios. Our interest coverage ratio, defined as the ratio of
consolidated earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) to consolidated interest expense, cannot be
less than 4.00 to 1.00 for four consecutive quarters. Our debt-to-EBITDA ratio cannot be greater than 3.25 to 1.0 at any time. We
were in compliance with all covenants throughout 2008.

In December 2004, we issued $250.0 in 4.875% unsecured senior notes due December 15, 2009. The notes were offered and sold
pursuant to our universal shelf registration statement, previously declared effective in June 2003. At December 31, 2008 and 2007,
the senior notes had an outstanding balance of $249.8 and $249.4, respectively. In May 2008, we filed a shelf registration
statement for the issuance of a senior debt in a form not yet determined.

As discussed in Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, we lease certain facilities and equipment used
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in our operations under operating leases. This includes our office complex in Orlando, Florida, which is leased from Wachovia
Development Corporation (Lessor), a wholly owned subsidiary of Wachovia Corporation, under an agreement that expires in June
2010. Upon termination or expiration of the lease, we must either purchase the property from the Lessor for $65.0 or arrange to
have the office complex sold to a third party. If the office complex is sold to a third party for an amount less than the $65.0, the
amount paid by the Lessor for the purchase of the complex from an unrelated third party, we have agreed under a residual value
guarantee to pay the Lessor up to $55.0. If the office complex is sold to a third party for an amount in excess of $65.0, Convergys is
entitled to collect the excess. At the inception of the lease, we recognized a liability of approximately $5 for the related residual
value guarantee. The value of the guarantee was determined by computing the estimated present value of probability-weighted
cash flows that might be expended under the guarantee. We have recorded a liability for the fair value of the obligation with a
corresponding asset recorded as prepaid rent, which is being amortized to rental expense over the lease term. The liability will
remain on the balance sheet until the end of the lease term. Under the terms of the lease, we also provide certain indemnities to
the Lessor, including environmental indemnities. Due to the nature of such potential obligations, it is not possible to estimate the
maximum amount of such exposure or the fair value. However, we do not expect such amounts, if any, to be material. We have
concluded that we are not required to consolidate the Lessor pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards Board Financial
Interpretation No. 46R, �Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,� an interpretation of ARB No. 51.

Historically, we believed that our ability to borrow was greater than our established credit facilities in place. Due to current financial
and credit market conditions, we believe that there is only limited ability to borrow additional funds. At December 31, 2008, we had
cash of $240.0 and committed and undrawn credit facilities totaling $50.0.

We repurchased 7.7 million shares of our common stock for $116.6 during 2008 pursuant to our authorizations. At the current time,
we do not anticipate executing additional share repurchases in 2009. The timing and terms of any future transactions depend on a
number of considerations including market conditions and our liquidity. At December 31, 2008, we have the authority to purchase
an additional 7.1 million common shares.

The following summarizes our contractual obligations at December 31, 2008, and the effect such obligations are expected to have
on liquidity and cash flows in future periods:

Contractual
Obligations Total

Less Than
1 Year 1-3 Years

After
3 Years

Debt (1) $ 665.9 $ 259.5 $ 400.0 $ 6.4

Debt interest(2) 65.6 31.4 34.0 0.2

Operating leases (3) 170.3 47.4 62.9 60.0

Pension contributions (4) 7.9 7.9 � �

Unrecognized tax benefits (5) � � � �

Purchase commitments (6) 54.2 30.0 24.2 �

Total $ 963.9 $ 376.2 $ 521.1 $ 66.6

(1)See Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.
(2)This includes interest expense on both variable and fixed rate debt. Variable interest rates have been assumed to remain constant at current

levels through the end of the term.
(3)See Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.
(4)

Edgar Filing: CONVERGYS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 62



In order to meet ERISA funding requirements, the Company expects to contribute $7.9 to fund its cash balance pension plans in 2009. There is
no estimate available for 2010 and beyond.

(5)Unrecognized tax benefits of $62.0 are excluded from this table as the uncertainty related to the amount and period of any cash settlement
prevent the Company from making a reasonably reliable estimate.

(6)Consists of contractual obligations to purchase services that are enforceable and legally binding. Excludes issuance of purchase orders made in
the ordinary course of business that are short-term or cancelable, as well as renewable support and maintenance arrangements.

At December 31, 2008, we had outstanding letters of credit of $43.0 related to performance and payment guarantees, of which
$26.7 is set to expire by the end of 2009, $7.1 is set to expire within 1 to 3 years and $9.2 is set to expire after 3 years. We do not
believe that any obligation that may arise will be material.

Market Risk

We are exposed to a variety of market risks, including the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.
Market risk is the potential loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. Our risk
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

management strategy includes the use of derivative instruments to reduce the effects on our operating results and cash flows from
fluctuations caused by volatility in currency exchange and interest rates. In using derivative financial instruments to hedge
exposures to changes in exchange rates and interest rates, we expose ourselves to counterparty credit risk. We manage exposure
to counterparty credit risk by entering into derivative financial instruments with highly-rated institutions that can be expected to
perform fully under the terms of the agreements and by diversifying the number of financial institutions with which we enter into
such agreements.

Interest Rate Risk

At December 31, 2008, we had $410.1 in outstanding variable rate borrowings. The carrying amount of our borrowings reflects fair
value due to their short-term and variable interest rate features. Our variable interest rate debt had an effective interest rate of 4.7%
during the year ended December 31, 2008. Based upon our exposure to variable rate borrowings, a one percentage point change
in the weighted average interest rate would change our annual interest expense by approximately $4.

We sometimes use interest rate swaps to hedge our interest rate exposure. These instruments are hedges of the variability of cash
flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability. These contracts are entered into to protect against the risk that
the eventual cash flows resulting from such transactions will be adversely affected by changes in interest rates. There were no
outstanding interest rate swaps covering interest rate exposure at December 31, 2008.

During the first quarter of 2008, we entered into treasury lock derivative instruments with a total notional amount of $200.0 in
anticipation of a probable debt issuance later in 2008. As we did not expect issuance of the debt in the near future given the market
conditions during the third quarter of 2008, the $6.0 gain on termination of the treasury lock was recognized within the other
income, net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

Our Company serves many of our U.S.-based clients using contact center capacity in Canada, India and the Philippines. Although
the contracts with these clients are typically priced in U.S. dollars, a substantial portion of the costs incurred to render services
under these contracts are denominated in Canadian dollars (CAD), Philippine pesos (PHP) or Indian rupees (INR), which
represents a foreign exchange exposure. We have hedged a portion of our exposure related to the anticipated cash flow
requirements denominated in these foreign currencies by entering into forward contracts with several financial institutions to
acquire a total of CAD 119.0 at a fixed price of $105.7 through December 2009, PHP 14,462.1 at a fixed price of $326.0 through
September 2012 and INR 16,114.7 at a fixed price of $375.0 through June 2012. Additionally, we had entered into option contracts
to purchase approximately PHP 2,406.6 for a fixed price of $60.0 through June 2010. The fair value of these derivative instruments
as of December 31, 2008 is presented in Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The potential loss in fair value
at December 31, 2008 for such contracts resulting from a hypothetical 10% adverse change in all foreign currency exchange rates
is approximately $90. This loss would be mitigated by corresponding gains on the underlying exposures.

Edgar Filing: CONVERGYS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 64



Other foreign currency exposures arise from transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency and
foreign-denominated revenue and profit translated into U.S. dollars. We periodically enter into forward exchange contracts that are
not designated as hedges. The purpose of these derivative instruments is to protect the Company against foreign currency
exposure pertaining to receivables and payables that are denominated in currencies different from the functional currencies of the
Company or the respective subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2008, the fair value of these derivatives was a payable of $2.7.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our Financial Statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
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States. Our significant accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The preparation
of Financial Statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires us to make
estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts and related disclosures. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates
and judgments in these areas based on historical experience and other relevant factors. Our estimates as of the date of the
Financial Statements reflect our best judgment giving consideration to all currently available facts and circumstances. As such,
these estimates may require adjustment in the future, as additional facts become known or as circumstances change.

We have identified below the accounting policies and estimates that we believe are most critical in compiling our statements of
financial condition and operating results. We have reviewed these critical accounting policies and estimates and related disclosures
with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors.

Contingencies

The Company is from time to time subject to claims and administrative proceedings that are filed in the ordinary course of business.
We believe that the results of any such claims or administrative proceedings, either individually or in the aggregate, will not have a
materially adverse effect on the results of operations or our financial condition. However, the outcome of any litigation cannot be
predicted with certainty. An unfavorable resolution of one or more pending matters could have a material adverse impact on our
results of operations or our financial condition in the future.

Deferred Charges

In connection with our outsourcing arrangements, we often perform a significant amount of set-up activities or implementations,
which include the installation and customization of our proprietary software in our centers. Under these arrangements, clients do
not take possession of the software nor have the right to take possession of the software without incurring a significant penalty. In
accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue 00-03, �Application of AICPA Statement of Position 97-2 to
Arrangements That Include the Right to Use Software Stored on Another Entity�s Hardware,� the implementations are not treated as
separate elements for revenue recognition purposes. Any proceeds collected for the implementations are deferred and recognized
over the service period. Additionally, with respect to certain multiple-element arrangements, we defer all revenue related to the
contracts until the final element is delivered. We capitalize all direct and incremental implementation and multiple-element costs, to
the extent recovery is probable, and amortize them ratably over the life of the arrangements as costs of providing service.

Deferred amounts are periodically evaluated for impairment or when circumstances indicate a possible inability to recover their
carrying amounts. In the event these costs are not deemed recoverable, we follow the guidance in SFAS No. 144, �Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,� to determine if an impairment exists. We evaluate the probability of recovery by
considering profits to be earned during the term of the contract, the creditworthiness of the client and, if applicable, contract
termination penalties payable by the client in the event that the client terminates the contract early. Our estimate of profitability is
dependent in large part on our estimate of costs. Although we make every reasonable effort to accurately estimate costs, revisions
may be made based on actual costs incurred that could result in the recording of an impairment loss. Additionally, if the financial
condition of a client were to deteriorate, resulting in a reduced ability to make payments, we may be unable to recover the costs,
which would result in an impairment loss. Finally, our entitlement to termination fees may be subject to challenge if a client were to
allege that we were in breach of contract. During the third quarter of 2008, we recorded $272.9 of impairment and implementation
charges, of which $207.5 was due to impairment of deferred charges and $65.4 was due to expensing of implementation costs that
exceeded the termination for convenience fees in the contract at
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

September 30, 2008. Refer to Note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for details related to these charges. Based
on our evaluation of all the related contracts, we believe that the $243.8 of deferred charges at December 31, 2008 is recoverable.

Goodwill

At December 31, 2008, we had goodwill with a net carrying value of $1,034.9. As disclosed in Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, we are required to test goodwill for impairment annually as of October 1 and at other times if events have
occurred or circumstances exist that indicate the carrying value of goodwill may no longer be recoverable. The impairment test for
goodwill involves a two-step process. The first step compares the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, including
the goodwill allocated to each reporting unit. If the carrying amount is in excess of the fair value, the second step requires the
comparison of the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill. Any
excess of the carrying value of the reporting unit goodwill over the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill will be recorded
as an impairment loss. Fair value of the reporting unit is determined using a combination of the market approach and the income
approach. Under the market approach, fair value is based on actual stock price or transaction prices of comparable companies.
The market approach requires significant judgment regarding the selection of comparable companies. Under the income approach,
value is dependent on the present value of net cash flows to be derived from the ownership. The income approach requires
significant judgment including estimates about future cash flows and discount rates.

During the third quarter of 2008, we recorded an asset impairment charge of $207.5 within the HR Management segment. As more
fully described in Note 6 and Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, recording this asset impairment charge
triggered a review of goodwill related to the HR Management segment resulting in an impairment loss of $61.1. The goodwill
impairment loss is recorded within the asset impairments caption in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

During the fourth quarter of 2008, we completed our annual impairment tests for the remaining four of our five reporting units:
Information Management International, Information Management North America, Customer Management and Relationship
Technology Management. Based on the results of the first step, we had no goodwill impairment related to our remaining four
reporting units. In addition, due to the decline in our stock price during the fourth quarter of 2008, we updated our impairment tests
as of December 31, 2008 and had no goodwill impairment related to any of our reporting units. We believe we make every
reasonable effort to ensure that we accurately estimate the fair value of the reporting units. However, future changes in the
assumptions used to make these estimates could result in an impairment loss.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, �Accounting For Income Taxes,� which recognizes
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of
assets and liabilities. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the enacted tax rates expected to apply in the
periods in which the deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be settled or realized.
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The Company regularly reviews its deferred tax assets for recoverability and establishes a valuation allowance if it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. The determination as to whether a deferred tax asset
will be realized is made on a jurisdictional basis and is based on the evaluation of positive and negative evidence. This evidence
includes historical taxable income, projected future taxable income, the expected timing of the reversal of existing temporary
differences and the implementation of tax planning strategies. Projected future taxable income is based on expected results and
assumptions as to the jurisdiction in which the income will be earned. The
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expected timing of the reversals of existing temporary differences is based on current tax law and the Company�s tax methods of
accounting.

The Company also reviews its tax activities and records a liability for its uncertain tax positions in accordance with FIN 48,
�Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes � an interpretation of FASB No. 109.� The interpretation contains a two-step approach to
recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 109. The first step is to evaluate the
tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates that it is more likely than not that the position
will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation processes, if any. The second step is to measure the
tax benefit as the largest amount, which is more than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company�s policy
is to recognize interest and penalties accrued on unrecognized tax benefits as part of income tax expense. Significant judgment is
required in determining our liability for uncertain tax positions. The application of tax laws and regulations is subject to legal and
factual interpretation, judgment and uncertainty. Tax laws and regulations themselves are subject to change as a result of changes
in fiscal policy, changes in legislation, the evolution of regulations and court rulings. Therefore, the actual liability for U.S. or foreign
taxes may be significantly different from our estimates, which could result in the need to record additional tax liabilities or potentially
reverse previously recorded tax liabilities. We believe that we make a reasonable effort to ensure accuracy in our judgment and
estimates.

Restructuring Charges

During the last five years, we have recorded significant restructuring charges related to reductions in headcount and facility
closures. As of December 31, 2008, we had a restructuring accrual of $23.1, $2.8 of which relates to facility closure costs, which
will be paid over several years until the leases expire. The accrual is equal to the future costs associated with those abandoned
facilities, net of the proceeds from any probable future sublease agreements. We have used estimates, based on consultation with
real estate advisors, to arrive at the proceeds from any future sublease agreements. We will continue to evaluate our estimates in
recording the facilities abandonment charge. As a result, there may be additional charges or reversals in the future.

Revenue Recognition

Our revenue recognition policies are discussed in detail in Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. A portion of
our revenues is derived from transactions that require a significant level of judgment. This includes:

Percentage of Completion�We recognize some software license and related professional and consulting revenues using the
percentage-of-completion method of accounting by relating contract costs incurred to date to total estimated contract costs at
completion. This method of accounting relies on estimates of total expected contract revenues and costs. This method is used
because reasonably dependable estimates of the revenues and costs applicable to various stages of a contract can be made.
Because the financial reporting of these contracts depends on estimates, which are assessed continually during the term of the
contracts, recognized revenues are subject to revisions as the contracts progress to completion. Revisions in estimates are
reflected in the period in which the facts that give rise to a revision become known. Accordingly, favorable changes in estimates
result in additional revenue recognition, and unfavorable changes in estimates result in the reversal of previously recognized
revenues. When estimates indicate a loss under a contract, a provision for such loss is recorded as a component of cost of
providing services and products sold. As work progresses under a loss contract, revenues continue to be recognized, and a portion
of the contract loss incurred in each period is charged to the contract loss reserve.

36  Convergys Corporation 2008 Annual Report

Edgar Filing: CONVERGYS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 70



Table of Contents

Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

License Arrangements�Approximately 8% of our 2008 consolidated revenues were derived from license and support and
maintenance arrangements. The accounting for these arrangements can be complex and requires a significant amount of
judgment. Some of the factors that we must assess include: the separate elements of the arrangement; vendor-specific objective
evidence of fair value for the various undelivered elements of the arrangement; whether the software fees are fixed or
determinable; whether the fees are considered collectible and whether services included in the arrangement represent significant
production, customization or modification of the software.

Multiple Element Outsourcing Arrangements�HR Management, which accounted for 9% of our consolidated revenues in 2008,
delivers multiple services under our client arrangements (e.g., benefits administration, recruiting, payroll and learning). In
connection with these arrangements, we must assess these multiple-element arrangements to determine whether they can be
separated into more than one unit of accounting. Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 00-21, �Revenue Arrangements with
Multiple Deliverables,� establishes the following criteria, all of which must be met, in order for a deliverable to qualify as a separate
unit of accounting:

� The delivered items have value to the client on a stand-alone basis.
� There is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered items.
� If the arrangement includes a general right of return relative to the delivered items, delivery or performance of the undelivered

items is considered probable and substantially in the control of the Company.

If these criteria are met, each of the contractual services included in the contract is treated as a separate unit of accounting and
revenue is recognized as we deliver each of the contractual services. If these criteria are not met, all of the services included are
accounted for as a single unit of accounting. Revenue is then recognized either using a proportional performance method such as
recognizing revenue based on transactional services delivered or on a straight-line basis once HR Management begins to deliver
the final service.

The assessments of these areas require us to make a significant amount of judgments. The judgments made in these areas could
have a significant effect on revenues recognized in any period by changing the amount and/or the timing of the revenue
recognized. We believe that we make a reasonable effort to ensure accuracy in our judgment and estimates.

Other

We have made certain other estimates that, while not involving the same degree of judgment, are important to understanding our
financial statements. These estimates are in the areas of measuring our obligations related to our defined benefit plans,
self-insurance accruals and assessing recoverability of intangible assets.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements� (SFAS No. 157), which defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements. SFAS No. 157 was effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2008 for all financial assets and liabilities
and for nonfinancial assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value in the Consolidated Financial Statements on a
recurring basis (at least annually). For all other nonfinancial assets and liabilities, SFAS No. 157 is effective beginning January 1,
2009. Adoption of this Standard on January 1, 2008 did not have an impact on the Company�s Financial Statements. See Note 14
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for disclosures related to the adoption of this Standard. The Company does not
believe that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 for non-financial assets and liabilities not valued on a recurring basis as of January 1,
2009, will materially impact its financial position and results of operations.
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In April 2007, the FASB issued EITF 06-04, �Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of
Endorsement Split Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements.� This Standard requires an employer to recognize a liability for future
benefits in accordance with SFAS No. 106, �Employers� Accounting for Postretire- ment Benefits Other Than Pensions,� if, in
substance, a postretirement benefit plan exists. The Company adopted EITF 06-04 effective January 1, 2008. Adoption of this
Standard had no impact on the Company�s Consolidated Statements of Operations and resulted in a $2.2 reduction to the retained
earnings balance as of January 1, 2008.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), �Business Combinations,� (SFAS No. 141R) which replaces
SFAS No. 141. SFAS No. 141R establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its
Financial Statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any resulting goodwill and any noncontrolling interest
in the acquiree. The Statement also provides for disclosures to enable users of the Financial Statements to evaluate the nature and
financial effects of the business combination. SFAS No. 141R is effective for Financial Statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2008 and must be applied prospectively to business combinations completed on or after that date. Adoption of
SFAS No. 141R will have an impact on the Company�s Consolidated Financial Statements when effective, but the nature and
magnitude of the specific effects will depend upon the terms and size of the acquisitions consummated after the effective date.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, �Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements,� an Amendment
to ARB No. 51. SFAS No. 160 applies to all entities that have an outstanding noncontrolling interest in one or more subsidiaries or
that deconsolidate a subsidiary. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning
on or after December 15, 2008. The adoption of SFAS No. 160 as of January 1, 2009, will not have a significant impact on the
Company�s financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, �Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.� The new
Standard is intended to help investors better understand how derivative instruments and hedging activities affect an entity�s financial
position, financial performance and cash flows through enhanced disclosure requirements. SFAS No. 161 is effective for Financial
Statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. The Company will provide the
disclosures required by this Standard, beginning the first quarter of 2009.

Risks Relating to Convergys and Its Business

Client consolidations could result in a loss of clients and adversely affect our operating results.

We serve clients in industries that have experienced a significant level of consolidation. We cannot assure that additional
consolidations will not occur in which our clients acquire additional businesses or are acquired themselves. Such consolidations
may result in the termination of an existing client contract, which could have an adverse effect on our operating results.

In January 2008, AT&T, our largest client, informed us that it intends to migrate its subscribers from the legacy wireless billing
system that we currently support through a managed services agreement onto AT&T�s other wireless billing system over the next
two years. While the migration is subject to change, we anticipate that this will result in a loss of revenue of approximately $35 and
$60 in 2009 and 2010, respectively, compared to our 2008 Information Management revenues. The impact of this migration on our
2008 revenues was approximately $6 compared to our 2007 Information Management revenues.
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

A large portion of our revenue is generated from a limited number of clients in the communications industry, and the loss of one or more
of our clients, or weakness in the communications industry, could cause a reduction in our revenues and earnings.

We rely on several clients for a large percentage of our revenues. Our three largest clients, AT&T, Sprint Nextel and DirecTV,
collectively represented 33.0% of our 2008 revenues. Our relationship with AT&T is represented by separate contracts/work orders
with Information Management and Customer Management. Our relationship with Sprint Nextel is represented by separate
Information Management and Customer Management contracts. Since February 2004, we have provided Customer Management
services to Sprint Nextel under a contract between Sprint Nextel and IBM, whereby we serve as a subcontractor to IBM. We do not
believe that it is likely that our entire relationship with AT&T or Sprint Nextel would terminate at one time; and, therefore, we are not
substantially dependent on any particular contract/work order with these clients. However, the loss of all of the contracts/work
orders with a particular client at the same time or the loss of one or more of the larger contracts/work orders with a client would
adversely affect our total revenues if the revenues from such client were not replaced with revenues from that client or other clients.
Our revenues and earnings would also be negatively impacted by general weakness or slowdown in the communications industry.

A large portion of our accounts receivable are payable by a limited number of clients and the inability of any of these clients to pay its
accounts receivable could cause a reduction in our revenues and earnings.

Several significant clients account for a large percentage of our accounts receivable. As of December 31, 2008, our three largest
clients, AT&T, Sprint Nextel and DirecTV, collectively accounted for 26.2% of our accounts receivable. During the past four years,
each of these clients has generally paid its accounts receivable on a timely basis, and write-downs that we have incurred in
connection with such accounts receivable were consistent with write-downs that we incurred with other clients. We anticipate that
several clients will continue to account for a large percentage of our accounts receivable. Although we currently do not expect
payment issues with any of these clients, if any of them were unable or unwilling, for any reason, to pay our accounts receivable,
our income would decrease. We have several important clients that are in industries, including automotive, that have been severely
impacted by the current global economic slowdown. We also carry significant receivable balances with other clients whose
declaration of bankruptcy could decrease our income. In addition, our income could be materially impacted by a number of small
clients declaring bankruptcy in a short period of time.

If our clients are not successful, the amount of business that they outsource and the prices that they are willing to pay for such services
may diminish and could result in a reduction of our revenues and earnings.

Our revenues depend on the success of our clients. If our clients or their specific programs are not successful, the amount of
business that they outsource may be diminished. Thus, although we have signed contracts, many of which contain minimum
revenue commitments, to provide services to our clients, there can be no assurance that the level of revenues generated by such
contracts will meet expectations. This could result in stranded capacity and additional costs. In addition, we may face pricing
pressure from clients, which could negatively affect our operating results. Revenues in most of our larger HR Management
contracts are partially based on our clients� headcount. Our revenues could be negatively impacted by headcount reductions and
restructuring actions taken by our clients.
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We process, transmit and store personally identifiable information and unauthorized access to or the unintended release of this
information could result in a claim for damage or loss of business and create unfavorable publicity.

We process, transmit and store personally identifiable information, both in our role as a service provider and as an employer. This
information may include social security numbers, financial and health information, as well as
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other personal information. As a result, we are subject to certain contractual terms, as well as federal, state and foreign laws and
regulations designed to protect personally identifiable information. We take measures to protect against unauthorized access and
to comply with these laws and regulations. We use the internet as a mechanism for delivering our services to clients, which may
expose us to potential disruptive intrusions. Unauthorized access, system denials of service, or failure to comply with data privacy
laws and regulations may subject us to contractual liability and damages, loss of business, damages from individual claimants,
fines, penalties, criminal prosecution and unfavorable publicity, any of which could negatively affect our operating results and
financial condition. In addition, third party vendors that we engage to perform services for us may have an unintended release of
personally identifiable information.

The global scope, size and complexity of implementations in our HR Management business could cause delays and cost overruns in
those projects, which could adversely affect revenues, cash flows and profits.

Our large HR outsourcing contracts with global clients are complex as they involve providing multiple services such as payroll,
recruiting, benefits administration, learning, compensation and human resources administration across many countries.
Implementations of the contracts can take a number of years to complete. Due to the complexity of the implementations and
changes in customer requirements (e.g., an acquisition by a customer during the implementation), implementation cost overruns
and delays are possible. Cost overruns can result in additional expense during the implementation period and over the life of the
contract, which would likely affect the profitability of the contract and potentially result in charges. Given the size of some of these
contracts, the impact from these cost overruns or schedule delays can have a significant impact on our revenues, cash flows and
profits. Delays in completing the implementations can cause us to recognize revenue and profit from the contracts later than we
anticipated when the initial contract was signed.

Our ability to deliver our services is at risk if the technology and network equipment that we rely upon is not maintained or upgraded in a
timely manner.

Technology is a critical foundation in our service delivery. We utilize and deploy internally developed and third party software
solutions across various hardware environments. We operate an extensive internal voice and data network that links our global
sites together in a multi-hub model that enables the rerouting of traffic. Also, we rely on multiple public communication channels for
connectivity to our clients. Maintenance of and investment in these foundational components are critical to our success. If the
reliability of technology or network operations fall below required service levels, or a systemic fault affects the organization broadly,
business from our existing and potential clients may be jeopardized and cause our revenue to decrease.

Emergency interruption of data centers and customer management and HR management contact centers could have a materially adverse
effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

In the event that we experience a temporary or permanent interruption at one or more of our data or contact centers, through
casualty, operating malfunction or other causes, we may be unable to provide the data processing, customer management and HR
management services we are contractually obligated to deliver. This could result in us being required to pay contractual damages
to some clients or to allow some clients to terminate or renegotiate their contracts. Notwithstanding disaster recovery and business
continuity plans and precautions instituted to protect our clients and us from events that could interrupt delivery of services
(including property and business interruption insurance that we maintain), there is no guarantee that such interruptions would not
result in a prolonged interruption in our ability to provide support services to our clients or that such precautions would adequately
compensate us for any losses we may incur as a result of such interruptions.
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

Defects or errors within our software could adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Design defects or software errors may delay software introductions or reduce the satisfaction level of clients and may have a
materially adverse effect on our business and results of operations. Our software is highly complex and may, from time to time,
contain design defects or software errors that may be difficult to detect and/or correct. Since both our clients and we use our
software to perform critical business functions, design defects, software errors or other potential problems within or outside of our
control may arise from the use of our software. It may also result in financial or other damages to our clients, for which we may be
held responsible. Although our license agreements with our clients may often contain provisions designed to limit our exposure to
potential claims and liabilities arising from client problems, these provisions may not effectively protect us against such claims in all
cases and in all jurisdictions. Claims and liabilities arising from client problems could result in monetary damages to us and could
cause damage to our reputation, adversely affecting our business and results of operations.

If the global trend toward outsourcing does not continue, our financial condition and results of operations could be materially affected.

Revenue growth depends, in large part, on the trend toward outsourcing, particularly as it relates to our Customer Management
and HR Management outsourcing operations. Outsourcing involves companies contracting with a third party, such as Convergys, to
provide customer management and HR management services rather than performing such services in-house. There can be no
assurance that this trend will continue, as organizations may elect to perform such services in-house. A significant change in this
trend could have a materially adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We are susceptible to business and political risks from domestic and international operations that could result in reduced revenues or
earnings.

We operate a global business and have facilities located throughout North and South America, Europe, the Middle East and the
Asian Pacific region. As part of our strategy, we plan to capture more of the international BSS/OSS, customer management and HR
management markets. Additionally, North American companies require offshore customer management outsourcing capacity. As a
result, we expect to continue expansion through start-up operations and acquisitions in foreign countries. Expansion of our existing
international operations and entry into additional countries will require management attention and financial resources. In addition,
there are certain risks inherent in conducting business internationally including: exposure to currency fluctuations, longer payment
cycles, greater difficulties in accounts receivable collection, difficulties in complying with a variety of foreign laws, changes in legal
or regulatory requirements, difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations, political instability and potentially adverse tax
consequences. To the extent that we are adversely affected by these risks, our business could be adversely affected and our
revenues and/or earnings could be reduced.

In addition, there has been political discussion and debate related to worldwide competitive sourcing, labor-related legislation and
information-flow restrictions, particularly from the United States to offshore locations. Federal and state legislation has been
proposed that relates to this issue. Future legislation, if enacted, could have an adverse effect on our results of operations and
financial condition. In particular, proposed legislation, known as the Employee Free Choice Act, if enacted in its current form or a
similar variation thereof, could make it easier for union organizing drives to be successful and could give third party arbitrators the
ability to impose terms of collective bargaining upon both the Company and a labor union if the parties are unable to agree to the
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Our earnings are affected by changes in foreign currency.

Customer Management serves an increasing number of its U.S.-based clients using contact center capacity in Canada, India and
the Philippines. About one-half of our approximately 65,000 contact center employees are located outside the U.S. Although the
contracts with these clients are typically priced in U.S. dollars, a substantial portion of the costs incurred by Customer Management
to render services under these contracts is denominated in Canadian dollars, Indian rupees or Philippine pesos, which represents a
foreign exchange exposure to the Company. We enter into forward exchange contracts and options to limit potential foreign
currency exposure. As the U.S. dollar weakens the operating expenses of these contact centers, translated into U.S. dollars,
increase. The increase in operating expenses will be partially offset by gains realized through the settlement of the hedged
instruments. As the derivative instruments that limit our potential foreign currency exposures are entered into over a period of
several years, the overall impact to earnings will be determined by both the timing of the derivative instruments and the movement
of the U.S. dollar. In addition to the impact on our operating expenses that support dollar-denominated Customer Management
contracts, changes in foreign currency impact the results of our international business units that are located outside of North
America. In 2008, 16.1% of our revenues were generated outside of North America.

If we do not effectively manage our capacity, our results of operations could be adversely affected.

Our ability to profit from the global trend toward outsourcing depends largely on how effectively we manage our Customer
Management and HR Management contact center capacity. In order to create the additional capacity necessary to accommodate
new or expanded outsourcing projects, we may need to open new contact centers. The opening or expansion of a contact center
may result, at least in the short term, in idle capacity until we fully implement the new or expanded program. Expanded use of home
agents is helping to mitigate this risk. We periodically assess the expected long-term capacity utilization of our contact centers. As
a result, we may, if deemed necessary, consolidate, close or partially close under-performing contact centers to maintain or
improve targeted utilization and margins. There can be no guarantee that we will be able to achieve or maintain optimal utilization
of our contact center capacity.

As part of our effort to consolidate our facilities, we seek to sublease a portion of our surplus space, if any, and recover certain
costs associated with it. To the extent that we fail to sublease such surplus space, our expenses will increase.

If we are unable to hire or retain qualified personnel in certain areas of our business, our ability to execute our business plans in those
areas could be impaired and revenues could decrease.

We employ approximately 75,000 employees worldwide. At times, we have experienced difficulties in hiring personnel with the
desired levels of training or experience. Additionally, in regard to the labor-intensive business of Customer Management, quality
service depends on our ability to retain employees and control personnel turnover. Any increase in the employee turnover rate
could increase recruiting and training costs and could decrease operating effectiveness and productivity. We may not be able to
continue to hire, train and retain a sufficient number of qualified personnel to adequately staff new client projects. Because a
significant portion of our operating costs relates to labor costs, an increase in wages, costs of employee benefits or employment
taxes could have a materially adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition.

War and terrorist attacks or other civil disturbances could lead to economic weakness and could disrupt our operations resulting in a
decrease of our revenues and earnings.

In the recent past, war and terrorist attacks have caused uncertainty in the global financial markets and economy. Additional
attacks and wars could contribute to economic instability in the United States and disrupt our operations in the U.S. and abroad.
Such disruptions could cause service interruptions or reduce the quality level of the services that we provide, resulting in a
reduction of our
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts)

revenues. These activities may also cause our clients to delay or defer decisions regarding their use of our services and, thus,
delay receipt of additional revenues. In addition, war and terrorist attacks in other regions could disrupt our operations and/or create
economic uncertainty with our clients, which could cause a reduction in revenues and earnings.

General economic and market conditions may adversely affect the Company�s financial condition, cash flow and results of operations.

Our results of operations are affected directly by the level of business activity of our clients, which in turn are affected by the level of
economic activity in the industries and markets that they serve. Economic slowdowns in some markets, particularly in the United
States, may cause reductions in technology and discretionary spending by our clients, which may result in reductions in the growth
of new business as well as reductions in existing business. If our clients enter bankruptcy or liquidate their operations, our revenues
could be adversely affected. There can be no assurance that weakening economic conditions throughout the world will not
adversely impact our results of operations, cash flow and/or financial position. Further deterioration in equity markets will reduce
the funded status of our pension plan, which will increase future required contributions. Reduced demand for our services could
increase price competition.

We need to maintain adequate liquidity in order to have sufficient cash to meet operating cash flow requirements and to repay maturing
debt and other obligations. If we fail to comply with the covenants contained in our various borrowing agreements, it may adversely
affect our liquidity, results of operations and financial condition.

Our liquidity is a function of our ability to successfully generate cash flows from a combination of operations and access to capital
markets. As of December 31, 2008, total cash and cash equivalents was $240.0, and our available borrowing capacity under
committed lines was $50.0. We believe our liquidity (including operating and other cash flows that we expect to generate) will be
sufficient to meet operating requirements and required debt repayments as they occur; however, our ability to maintain sufficient
liquidity going forward depends on our ability to generate cash from operations and access capital markets. As further described in
the �Capital Resources� section of the Management Discussion and Analysis, our $400.0 revolving credit agreement contains certain
restrictive covenants. As of December 31, 2008, we were in compliance with all covenants in the agreements.

The Company�s results of operations could be adversely affected by litigation and other commitments and contingencies.

The Company faces risks arising from various unasserted and asserted litigation matters, including, but not limited to, commercial,
securities law and patent infringement claims. Unfavorable outcomes in pending litigation matters, or in future litigation, could
negatively affect the Company. Aggressive plaintiffs� counsel often file litigation on a wide variety of allegations, and even when the
allegations are groundless, the Company may need to expend considerable funds and other resources to respond to such litigation.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company may make certain commitments, including representations, warranties and
indemnities relating to current and past operations, including those related to acquired or divested businesses and issue
guarantees of third party obligations.
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If the Company were required to make payments as a result of any of these matters, they could exceed the amounts accrued,
thereby adversely affecting the Company�s results of operations, cash flows, financial condition, or business.

The Company�s failure to successfully integrate or acquire businesses could cause its business to suffer.

Our expansion and growth may be dependent in part on our ability to make acquisitions. The risks we face related to acquisitions
include that we could overpay for acquired businesses, face integration challenges, have difficulty finding appropriate acquisition
candidates, and any
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Items 7. (continued), 7A. and 8.

acquired business could significantly under-perform relative to our expectations. If acquisitions are not successfully integrated, our
revenues and profitability could be adversely affected as well as adversely impact our reputation.

The Company�s debt ratings are no longer considered investment grade.

In 2008 Moody�s and Standard and Poor�s both downgraded the Company�s debt ratings to below investment grade. This could
impact our ability to raise capital in the future as well as increase borrowing costs. In addition, prospective clients and vendors may
be less willing to do business with a provider with higher perceived credit risk or demand more onerous terms.

We may incur additional non-cash goodwill impairment charges in the future.

As described in Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, we are required to test goodwill for impairment annually
as of October 1 and at other times if events have occurred or circumstances exist that indicates the carrying value of goodwill may
no longer be recoverable. During 2008 the Company recorded a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $61.1. There can be no
assurances that we will not incur additional charges in the future, particularly in the event of a prolonged economic slowdown.

We sometimes rely on business partners to market, develop and deliver our solutions. Their failure to perform could negatively impact
our financial results and harm our reputation in the marketplace.

We use third party business partners to assist in project implementations, to provide components of our solutions and to expand
our ability to sell into new markets. Failure of third parties to perform in a timely manner could result in contractual or regulatory
penalties, project delays or cost overruns as well as a failure to close new business.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about

Market Risk

The information required by Item 7A is included in Item 7 of this Form 10-K.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Beginning on page 46 are the Consolidated Financial Statements with applicable notes and the related Reports of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm and the supplementary financial information specified by Item 302 of Regulation S-K.

44  Convergys Corporation 2008 Annual Report

Edgar Filing: CONVERGYS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 84



Table of Contents

Report of Management

Management�s Responsibilities for and Audit Committee Oversight of the Financial Reporting Process

The management of Convergys Corporation is responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements and all related information appearing in this Annual Report. The Consolidated Financial Statements and notes
have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and include certain amounts,
which are estimates based upon currently available information, and management�s judgment of current conditions and
circumstances.

The Audit Committee, consisting entirely of independent directors, meets regularly with management, the compliance officer,
internal auditors and the independent registered public accounting firm, and reviews audit plans and results, as well as
management�s actions taken in discharging responsibilities for accounting, financial reporting and internal control. Ernst & Young
LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, and the internal auditors have direct and confidential access to the Audit
Committee at all times to discuss the results of their examinations.

Management�s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Convergys� management is also responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting that
is designed to produce reliable Financial Statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States. The system of internal control over financial reporting is evaluated for effectiveness by management and tested for reliability
through a program of internal audits. Actions are taken to correct potential deficiencies as they are identified. Any internal control
system, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations, including the possibility that a control can be circumvented or
overridden and misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and may not be detected. Also, because of changes in conditions,
internal control effectiveness may vary over time. Accordingly, even an effective system of internal control will provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to Financial Statement preparation and presentation.

The scope of management�s assessment as of December 31, 2008 did not include an assessment of the internal control over
financial reporting for Intervoice, Inc. (Intervoice), which was acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination on
September 3, 2008.

Convergys� management assessed the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2008. In making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) in Internal Control�Integrated Framework. Based on its assessment, management has concluded that, as of
December 31, 2008, the Company�s internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Convergys engaged Ernst & Young LLP in 2008 to perform an integrated audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in
accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Their report appears on
page 48. Additionally, Ernst & Young LLP has issued an audit report on the Company�s internal control over financial reporting. This
report appears on page 46.

Edgar Filing: CONVERGYS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 85



/s/ David F. Dougherty
David F. Dougherty
Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Earl C. Shanks
Earl C. Shanks
Chief Financial Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Convergys Corporation

We have audited Convergys Corporation�s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on criteria
established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). Convergys Corporation�s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the
accompanying Report of Management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company�s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company�s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company�s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company�s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Management�s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management�s assessment
of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the internal controls of Intervoice,
Inc. (�Intervoice�), which is included in the 2008 consolidated financial statements of the Company and constituted $408.3 million of
total assets as of December 31, 2008 and $63.3 million of revenues for the year then ended. The scope of management�s
assessment as of December 31, 2008 did not include an assessment of the internal control over financial reporting for Intervoice,
which was acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination on September 3, 2008. Our audit of internal control over
financial reporting of the Company also did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Intervoice.
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In our opinion, Convergys Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2008, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Convergys Corporation as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (continued)

related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), shareholders� equity, and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008 and our report dated February 26, 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion
thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Ernst & Young LLP
Cincinnati, Ohio
February 26, 2009
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Convergys Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Convergys Corporation as of December 31, 2008 and 2007,
and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), shareholders� equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in
the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of Convergys Corporation at December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule referred to above, when considered in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, at December 31, 2006, Convergys Corporation changed its
method of accounting for certain of its employee benefit plans with the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
No. 158, �Employer�s Accounting for Deferred Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans�an Amendment of SFAS No. 87, 88,
106 and 132(R).� As discussed in Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, at January 1, 2007, Convergys Corporation
changed its method of accounting for income taxes with the adoption of Financial Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes.� Additionally, as discussed in Notes 2 and 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, at January 1, 2008,
Convergys Corporation changed its method of accounting for certain employee benefit plans with the adoption of Emerging Issues
Task Force Issue No. 06-04, �Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split
Dollar Life Insurance Arrangement.�

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
Convergys Corporation�s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report
dated February 26, 2009, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Ernst & Young LLP
Cincinnati, Ohio
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Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Amounts) 2008 2007 2006

Revenues $ 2,785.8 $ 2,844.3 $ 2,789.8

Operating Costs and Expenses:

Cost of providing services and products sold (1) 1,892.9 1,837.9 1,754.8

Selling, general and administrative expenses 593.8 554.9 542.0

Research and development costs 54.9 73.4 84.9

Depreciation 119.0 115.4 130.1

Amortization 13.5 9.0 12.6

Restructuring charges 34.4 3.4 12.5

Asset impairments 268.6 5.5 �  

Total costs and expenses 2,977.1 2,599.5 2,536.9

Operating (Loss) Income (191.3) 244.8 252.9

Equity in earnings of Cellular Partnerships 35.7 14.3 11.8

Other income, net 14.3 4.0 2.7

Interest expense (22.6) (17.5) (22.8)

(Loss) income before income taxes (163.9) 245.6 244.6

Income tax (benefit) expense (71.0) 76.1 78.4

Net (Loss) Income $ (92.9) $ 169.5 $ 166.2

Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income, net of tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments $ (59.4) $ 12.9 $ 5.5

Change related to pension liability (net of tax benefit (expense) of $12.2, ($0.9)
and ($0.6)) (20.3) 1.6 1.1

Unrealized gain (loss) on hedging activities (net of tax benefit (expense) of $57.5,
($17.3) and $1.3) (107.0) 32.1 (2.2)

Total Comprehensive (Loss) Income $ (279.6) $ 216.1 $ 170.6

(Loss) earnings per share:

Basic $ (0.75) $ 1.26 $ 1.20

Diluted $ (0.75) $ 1.23 $ 1.17

Edgar Filing: CONVERGYS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 92



Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 123.5 134.1 138.4

Diluted 123.5 137.7 141.7

(1)Exclusive of depreciation and amortization, with the exception of amortization of deferred charges as disclosed in Note 7 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

At December 31,
(In Millions) 2008 2007

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 240.0 $ 120.3

Receivables, net of allowances of $10.8 and $7.6 523.8 557.7

Deferred income tax benefits 85.8 32.4

Prepaid expenses 36.0 36.2

Other current assets 92.4 115.0

Total current assets 978.0 861.6

Property and equipment, net 420.9 364.4

Goodwill, net 1,034.9 896.2

Other intangibles, net 68.8 39.7

Investments in Cellular Partnerships 51.4 55.0

Deferred charges 243.8 304.3

Other assets 43.6 43.0

Total Assets $ 2,841.4 $ 2,564.2

Liabilities and Shareholders� Equity

Current Liabilities

Debt maturing within one year $ 259.5 $ 0.6

Payables, deferred revenue and other current liabilities 538.7 426.3

Total current liabilities 798.2 426.9

Long-term debt 406.4 259.3

Deferred income tax liability 39.5 80.6

Accrued pension liability 138.2 105.2

Deferred revenue 134.9 59.6

Other long-term liabilities 174.1 110.9

Total liabilities 1,691.3 1,042.5

Shareholders� Equity

Preferred shares�without par value, 5.0 authorized; none outstanding � �

Common shares�without par value, 500.0 authorized;

182.8 outstanding in 2008 and 181.2 outstanding in 2007 1,034.2 1,007.4

Treasury stock�60.7 shares in 2008 and 53.0 in 2007 (1,050.0) (933.4)
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Retained earnings 1,302.3 1,397.4

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (136.4) 50.3

Total shareholders� equity 1,150.1 1,521.7

Total Liabilities and Shareholders� Equity $ 2,841.4 $ 2,564.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

50  Convergys Corporation 2008 Annual Report

Edgar Filing: CONVERGYS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 95



Table of Contents

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,
(Amounts in Millions) 2008 2007 2006

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net (loss) income $ (92.9) $ 169.5 $ 166.2

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 132.5 129.9 142.7

Asset impairments 268.6 � �

Deferred income tax expense (benefit) (41.5) 46.6 0.1

Equity in earnings of Cellular Partnerships (35.7) (14.3) (11.8)

Stock compensation expense 19.4 25.6 31.3

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions:

Change in receivables 41.7 (19.3) (24.5)

Change in other current assets (23.3) (25.4) 8.5

Change in deferred charges, net (143.6) (47.5) (62.5)

Change in other assets and liabilities 72.1 8.2 52.1

Change in payables and other current liabilities (3.9) (58.4) 63.3

Other, net (1.1) (5.0) (12.0)

Net cash provided by operating activities 192.3 209.9 353.4

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Capital expenditures (100.5) (102.3) (104.9)

Sales (purchases) of variable rate securities, net � 20.5 (30.0)

Return of capital from Cellular Partnerships 39.2 8.8 5.8

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (312.2) (2.8) (6.8)

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 8.4 1.0 8.4

Net cash used in investing activities (365.1) (74.8) (127.5)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Borrowings (repayments) of commercial paper and other debt, net 6.0 (7.8) (6.9)

Borrowings under revolving credit facility 400.0 � �

Purchase of treasury shares (116.6) (181.3) (126.5)

Issuance of common shares 3.5 6.6 23.0

Excess tax benefit (cost) from share-based payment arrangements (0.4) 7.6 6.2

Repayments under Canadian credit facility, net � (55.4) (30.3)

Repayments under UK credit facility, net � (20.4) (5.6)

Repayment of mortgage note � � (45.9)
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Net cash (used) provided in financing activities 292.5 (250.7) (186.0)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 119.7 (115.6) 39.9

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 120.3 235.9 196.0

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 240.0 $ 120.3 $ 235.9

Supplemental Cash Flow Information:

Cash paid for interest $ 19.6 $ 17.5 $ 23.0

Income taxes paid, net of refunds $ (13.0) $ 36.2 $ 34.5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders� Equity

(Amounts in Millions)

Number
of

Common
Shares

Common
Shares

Treasury
Stock

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Total

Balance at January 1, 2006 176.8 $ 906.6 $ (622.9) $ 1,069.5 $ 1.9 $ 1,355.1

Issuance of common shares 2.8 23.0 23.0

Excess tax benefits from share-based
payment arrangements 6.2 6.2

Repurchase of common shares (126.5) (126.5)

Net income 166.2 166.2

Other comprehensive income 4.4 4.4

Adoption of SFAS No. 158 (2.6) (2.6)

Amortization of stock-based compensation 29.3 29.3

Balance at December 31, 2006 179.6 965.1 (749.4) 1,235.7 3.7 1,455.1

Adoption of FIN 48 (7.8) (7.8)

Issuance of common shares 1.6 6.6 6.6

Excess tax benefits from share-based
payment arrangements 7.6 7.6

Repurchase of common shares (184.0) (184.0)

Net income 169.5 169.5

Other comprehensive income 46.6 46.6

Amortization of stock-based compensation 28.1 28.1

Balance at December 31, 2007 181.2 1,007.4 (933.4) 1,397.4 50.3 1,521.7

Issuance of common shares 1.6 3.5 3.5

Tax related to share-based arrangements, net
of excess tax benefits (11.3) (11.3)

Foreign tax valuation allowance release 15.2 15.2

Repurchase of common shares (116.6) (116.6)

Net loss (92.9) (92.9)

Adoption of EITF 06-04 (2.2) (2.2)

Other comprehensive loss (186.7) (186.7)

Amortization of stock-based compensation 19.4 19.4

Balance at December 31, 2008 182.8 $ 1,034.2 $ (1,050.0) $ 1,302.3 $ (136.4) $ 1,150.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

Edgar Filing: CONVERGYS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 98



52  Convergys Corporation 2008 Annual Report

Edgar Filing: CONVERGYS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 99



Table of Contents

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amounts in Millions Except Share and Per Share Amounts)

1. Background and Basis of Presentation

Convergys Corporation (the Company or Convergys) is a global leader in relationship management. The Company provides
solutions that drive more value from the relationships its clients have with their customers and employees. Convergys turns these
everyday interactions into a source of profit and strategic advantage for the Company�s clients. For over 25 years, the Company�s
unique combination of domain expertise, operational excellence and innovative technologies has delivered process improvement
and actionable business insight to clients� customers and employees that now span more than 70 countries and 35 languages. The
Company reports three segments: (i) Customer Management, which provides agent-assisted services, automated self-service, and
technology solutions, (ii) Information Management, which provides business support system and operational support system
(BSS/OSS) solutions; and (iii) HR Management, which provides global human resource business process outsourcing (HR BPO)
solutions.

2. Accounting Policies

Consolidation  �  The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company�s majority-owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.

Reclassification  �  Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

Use of Estimates  �  Preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported. These estimates include
project completion dates, time and cost required to complete projects for purposes of revenue recognition and future revenue,
expense and cash flow estimates for purposes of impairment analysis and loss contract evaluation. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Foreign Currency  �  Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to U.S. dollars at year end exchange rates.
Revenues and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the year. Translation adjustments are accumulated and
reflected as adjustments to comprehensive income. Gains or losses resulting from foreign exchange transactions are recorded in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) within other income, net.

Revenue Recognition  �  Revenues from Customer Management and HR Management, which accounted for 70% and 9%,
respectively, of the Company�s 2008 consolidated revenues, mostly consist of fees generated from outsourced services provided to
the Company�s clients. Information Management, which accounted for 21% of 2008 consolidated revenues, generates its revenues
from three primary sources: data processing, professional and consulting services and license and other services.

The Company�s revenues are recognized in conformity with Securities and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 104, �Revenue Recognition,� Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 00-21, �Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
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Deliverables,� and Statement of Position (SOP) 97-2, �Software Revenue Recognition.� Revenues are recognized only when there is
evidence of an arrangement and the Company determines that the fee is fixed and determinable and collection of the fee included
in the arrangement is considered probable. When determining whether the fee is considered fixed and determinable and collection
is probable, the Company considers a number of factors including the creditworthiness of the client and the contractual payment
terms. If a client is not considered creditworthy, all revenue under arrangements with that client is recognized upon receipt of cash.
If payment terms extend beyond what is considered customary or standard in the related industry and geographic location, the
related fees are considered extended and deferred until they become due and payable.

Over 90% of Customer Management revenues are derived from agent-related services. The Company typically recognizes these
revenues as services are performed based on staffing hours or the number of contacts handled by
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service agents using contractual rates. In a limited number of engagements where the client pays a fixed fee, the Company
recognizes revenues, based on the specific facts and circumstances of the engagement, using the proportional performance
method or upon final completion of the engagement. Customer Management�s remaining revenues are derived from sale of
premise-based and hosted automated self-care and technology solutions. License, professional and consulting and maintenance &
software support services revenues recognized from sale of these advanced speech recognition solutions are recognized pursuant
to SOP 97-2, �Software Revenue Recognition,� more fully described below with Information Management revenues.

Professional and consulting revenues accounted for 38% of the 2008 Information Management revenues. These revenues consist
of fees generated for installation, implementation, customization, training and managed services related either to the clients� use of
Information Management�s software in Information Management�s data centers or in their own processing environments. The
professional and consulting revenues are recognized monthly either based on time and materials incurred at contractually agreed
upon rates or, in some instances, based upon a fixed fee. Professional and consulting services provided in connection with license
arrangements are evaluated to determine whether those services are essential to the client�s functionality of the software. When
significant customization or modification of the software and the development of complex interfaces are required to meet the client�s
functionality, those services are considered essential. Accordingly, the related professional and consulting revenue is recognized
together with the license fee using the percentage-of-completion method. The Company calculates the percentage of work
completed by comparing contract costs incurred to date to total estimated contract costs at completion. Payment for these services
sometimes is dependent on milestones (e.g., commencement of work, completion of design plan, completion of configuration,
completion of customization). These milestone payments normally do not influence the Company�s revenue recognition as the
scheduled payments coincide with the period of time the Company completes the work. When the professional and consulting
services provided in connection with license arrangements are not considered essential or when professional and consulting
services are provided in connection with outsourcing arrangements, the revenues are recognized as the related services are
delivered.

License and other revenues, which accounted for 38% of the 2008 Information Management revenues, consist of revenues
generated from the sale of licenses to use Information Management�s proprietary software and related software support and
maintenance fees. License arrangements are contracted as either perpetual or term licenses, depending on the software product.
As noted above, when Information Management provides professional and consulting services that are considered essential to the
software�s functionality, the license element is recognized together with the professional and consulting element using the
percentage-of-completion method. In circumstances where the Company is providing professional and consulting services that are
considered essential to the software�s functionality, and the Company is unable to determine the pattern in which Information
Management�s professional and consulting services will be utilized, the license revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the implementation period. When Information Management is not required to provide services that are considered essential to the
software�s functionality, the license element is recognized upon delivery of the software, assuming all other revenue recognition
criteria have been met.

In connection with its license arrangements, Information Management typically is engaged to provide support and maintenance
services. Revenues for support and maintenance services are recognized ratably over the term of the agreement. For these
arrangements, Information Management allocates the contract value to the elements based on fair value of the individual elements.
Fair value is determined using vendor specific objective evidence

54  Convergys Corporation 2008 Annual Report

Edgar Filing: CONVERGYS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 102



Table of Contents

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Share and Per Share Amounts)

(VSOE), which represents the normal pricing for these elements when sold separately. For a very limited number of its
arrangements, the Company has not had sufficient VSOE of fair value of its undelivered elements, principally related to support and
maintenance. As a result, revenue for the entire arrangement, including license fees and related professional and consulting fees,
has been deferred and recognized over the term of the support and maintenance period. There may be cases in which there is
VSOE of fair value of the undelivered item but no such evidence for the delivered items. In these cases, the residual method is
used to allocate the arrangement consideration. Under the residual method, the amount of consideration allocated to the delivered
items equals the total arrangement consideration less the aggregate VSOE of fair value of the undelivered elements.

Data processing, which accounted for 24% of the 2008 Information Management revenues, consists of monthly fees for processing
client transactions in Information Management�s data centers and, in some cases, the clients� data centers, using Information
Management�s proprietary software. Data processing revenues are recognized based on the number of invoices, subscribers or
events that are processed by Information Management using contractual rates. In connection with any new data processing
outsourcing arrangements, Information Management often must perform significant set-up activities or implementations, including
the installation and customization of its proprietary software in its centers. Under these arrangements, a client does not take
possession of the software nor has the right to take possession of the software without incurring a significant penalty. As the client
does not derive benefit from the implementation itself (but rather from the underlying services that are delivered once the systems
and processes are launched), the implementation services do not meet the separation criteria as defined under EITF 00-21.
Therefore, any proceeds collected for the implementation are deferred and recognized over the contract period beginning from the
commencement of services.

HR Management�s arrangements typically span several years and entail delivery of multiple services (e.g., benefits administration,
compensation, payroll administration, recruiting and learning) in different countries. These multiple-element arrangements are
assessed to determine whether they can be separated into more than one unit of accounting. EITF Issue 00-21 establishes the
following criteria, all of which must be met, in order for a deliverable to qualify as a separate unit of accounting: (i) the delivered
items have value to the client on a stand-alone basis, (ii) there is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered
items, and (iii) if the arrangement includes a general right of return relative to the delivered items, delivery or performance of the
undelivered items is considered probable and substantially in the control of the Company. If these criteria are met, each of the
contractual services included in the contract is treated as a separate unit of accounting and revenue is recognized as services are
performed based on the number of employees or participants served. If the above criteria are not met all of the services included
are accounted for as a single unit of accounting. Revenue is then recognized either using a proportional performance method such
as recognizing revenue based on transactional services delivered or on a straight-line basis once HR Management begins to
deliver the final service.

Similar to Information Management�s data processing arrangements, HR Management�s arrangements normally involve significant
implementation activities including the installation and configuration of software, migration of participant data and development of
methods and procedures. To the extent the client pays directly for the implementations, the Company defers the proceeds and
recognizes it over the service period once HR Management begins to deliver the services. Revenues for services provided outside
the scope of the implementation activities are recognized as services are performed or upon completion of the engagement based
on specific facts and circumstances of the engagement.
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The Company considers the criteria established by EITF Issue 99-19, �Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an
Agent,� in determining whether revenue should be recognized on a gross versus a net basis. Factors considered in determining if
gross or net basis recognition is appropriate include whether the Company is primarily responsible to the client for the services, has
discretion on vendor selection, or bears credit risk. The Company provides certain services to clients using third party vendors.
Typically, the costs incurred with third party vendors related to these services are passed through to the clients. In consideration of
the above mentioned criteria, total payments the Company receives from clients related to these services are recorded as revenue
and payments the Company makes to third party vendors are recorded as cost of providing services. During 2008 and 2007, the
Company recorded $12.8 and $25.3, respectively, to both revenues and cost of providing services related to services that were
pass through in nature.

The Company sometimes earns supplemental revenues in each of the three segments depending on the satisfaction of certain
service levels or achievement of certain performance measurement targets. The supplemental revenues are recognized only after
required measurement targets are met.

Stock Compensation  �  Convergys provides stock-based awards to certain employees and Directors. The Company accounts for
these awards pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 123(R), �Share-Based Payment,� using the
modified prospective method. Under SFAS No. 123(R), the Company has elected to recognize the compensation cost of all
share-based awards on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the award. Benefits of tax deductions in excess of
recognized compensation expense are reported as a financing cash flow. Further, the Company applies an estimated forfeiture rate
to unvested awards when computing the stock compensation-related expenses.

Income Taxes  �  The Company accounts for income taxes pursuant to SFAS No. 109, �Accounting for Income Taxes,� which
requires recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future income tax consequences of transactions that have
been included in the financial statements or tax returns. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based
on the differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the
year in which the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance for amounts that
do not satisfy the realization criteria of SFAS No. 109.

The Company also reviews its tax activities and records a liability for its uncertain tax positions in accordance with FIN 48,
�Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes � an interpretation of FASB No. 109.� The interpretation contains a two-step approach to
recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 109. The first step is to evaluate the
tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates that it is more likely than not that the position
will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation processes, if any. The second step is to measure the
tax benefit as the largest amount, which is more than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company�s policy
is to recognize interest and penalties accrued on unrecognized tax benefits as part of income tax expense.

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)  �  Components of other comprehensive income (loss) include currency translation
adjustments, changes related to pension liabilities, net of tax, and unrealized gains (losses) on hedging activities, net of tax.
Foreign currency translation adjustments generally are not adjusted for income taxes as they relate to indefinite investments in
non-U.S. operations. Accumulated other comprehensive income also includes, net of tax, actuarial gains or losses, prior service
costs or credits and transition assets and obligations that
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Share and Per Share Amounts)

are not recognized as components of net periodic pension cost pursuant to FASB No. 87, �Employers� Accounting for Pensions,� and
FASB No. 106, �Employers� Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions.�

Concentration of Credit Risk  �  In the normal course of business, the Company is exposed to credit risk. The principal
concentrations of credit risk are short-term investments, accounts receivable and derivative instruments. The Company regularly
monitors credit risk exposures and takes steps to mitigate the likelihood of these exposures resulting in a loss. Historically, credit
losses on accounts receivable have not been material because of the large concentration of revenues with a small number of large,
established companies. The Company does not require collateral or other security to support accounts receivable. The Company
evaluates the creditworthiness of its clients in conjunction with its revenue recognition processes, as discussed above, as well as
through its ongoing collectability assessment processes for accounts receivable. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful
accounts receivable based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of specific clients, historical trends and other information. The
Company limits its counterparty credit risk exposures by entering into derivative contracts with significant financial institutions that
are rated A (S&P) or better.

Cash Equivalents  �  Cash equivalents consist of short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Receivables  �  Trade receivables are comprised primarily of amounts owed to the Company by clients and are presented net of an
allowance for doubtful accounts of $10.8 and $7.6 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Contracts with individual clients
determine when receivables are due, generally within 30-60 days, and whether interest is accrued on late payments.

Property and Equipment  �  Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is based on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Buildings are depreciated over a 30-year life, software over a two- to eight-year life and
equipment generally over a three- to five-year life. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated
useful life or the remaining term of the associated lease.

Software Development Costs  �  Research and development expenditures are charged to expense as incurred. The development
costs of software to be marketed are charged to expense until technological feasibility is established and capitalized thereafter,
subject to assessment of realizability. Amortization of the capitalized amounts is computed using the greater of the sales ratio
method or the straight-line method over a life of five years or less. The Company did not capitalize any software development costs
during the periods reported.

Internal Use Software  �  The Company follows SOP 98-1, �Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained
for Internal Use,� that requires the capitalization of certain expenditures for software that is purchased or internally developed for
use in the business. During 2008, 2007 and 2006, internally developed software amounts capitalized were $9.0, $14.7 and $12.8,
respectively. Amortization of internal use software begins when the software is ready for service and continues on the straight-line
method generally over a life of three years.
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Goodwill and Other Intangibles  �  As discussed more fully in Note 6, goodwill is tested at least annually for impairment. Other
intangibles, primarily customer relationship assets and trademarks, are amortized over a straight-line basis with lives ranging from
four to twelve years and are evaluated periodically if events or circumstances indicate a possible inability to recover their carrying
amounts.

Deferred Charges  �  As more fully described under the heading �Revenue Recognition,� the Company often performs, in connection
with its outsourcing arrangements, certain set-up activities or implementations, including the installation and customization of its
proprietary software in its centers. Additionally, with regard to
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arrangements where all of the services are accounted for as a single unit of accounting, the Company defers all revenue until it
begins to deliver the final service. In connection with these arrangements, the Company capitalizes all direct and incremental
multiple-element costs (by analogy to SFAS No. 91, �Accounting for Nonrefundable Fees and Costs Associated with Originating or
Acquiring Loans and Initial Direct Costs of Leases� (SFAS No. 91)), to the extent recovery of these costs is probable. All
implementation and set-up activity costs are amortized ratably over the life of the arrangements as costs of providing service.
Deferred amounts are periodically evaluated for impairment or when circumstances indicate a possible inability to recover their
carrying amounts. In the event these costs are not deemed recoverable, the Company follows the guidance in SFAS No. 144,
�Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,� to determine whether an impairment exists. The Company
evaluates the probability of recovery by considering profits to be earned during the term of the related contract, the creditworthiness
of the client and, if applicable, termination for convenience fees payable by the client in the event that the client terminates the
contract early.

In connection with certain of the Company�s outsourcing arrangements, the Company from time to time will incur costs that are
non-refundable cash payments to clients to acquire or extend a contractual relationship. To the extent recovery of these costs is
probable, the Company capitalizes these client acquisition costs (by analogy to SFAS No. 91) and amortizes them ratably over the
life of the contract as a reduction of revenue.

Investments  �  The Company owns 33.8% limited partnership interests in Cincinnati SMSA Limited Partnership, a provider of
wireless communications in central and southwestern Ohio and northern Kentucky, and 45% in the Cincinnati SMSA Tower
Holdings LLC, an operator of cellular tower space (the Cellular Partnerships). Cincinnati SMSA Limited Partnership conducts its
operations as a part of AT&T. AT&T is the general partner and a limited partner of both Cincinnati SMSA Limited Partnership and
Cincinnati SMSA Tower Holdings LLC with a partnership interest of approximately 66% and 53%, respectively.

The general partner is authorized to conduct and manage the business of the Cellular Partnerships. The Company, as a limited
partner, does not take part in the day-to-day management of the Cellular Partnerships. Limited partners are entitled to their
percentage share of earnings and cash distributions and are responsible for their share of losses. The Company accounts for its
interest in the Cellular Partnerships under the equity method of accounting.

Postemployment Benefits  �  The Company provides severance benefits to certain employees. Pursuant to SFAS No. 112,
�Employers� Accounting for Postemployment Benefits,� the Company accrues the benefits when it becomes probable that such
benefits will be paid and when sufficient information exists to make reasonable estimates of the amounts to be paid.

Deferred Revenue and Government Grants  �  As more fully described under the heading �Revenue Recognition,� amounts billable
to the client for implementation or set-up activities are deferred and recognized as revenue evenly over the service period the
outsourcing services are provided. Additionally, billings and collections in excess of revenues recognized are recorded as deferred
revenues until revenue recognition criteria are met.

From time to time, the Company receives grants from local or state governments as an incentive to locate or retain operations in
their jurisdictions. Depending on the arrangement, the grants are either received up-front or at the time the Company achieves the
milestones set forth in the grant. The Company�s policy is to record the grant funds received as deferred credit and to amortize the
deferred credit as either a reduction of costs of service expense, selling, general and administrative expense or depreciation
expense as the milestones are met over the term of the grant. The terms of the grants range from 6 to 15 years.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Share and Per Share Amounts)

Derivative Instruments  �  The Company�s risk management strategy includes the use of derivative instruments to reduce the
effects on its operating results and cash flows from fluctuations caused by volatility in currency exchange and interest rates. The
Company currently uses cash flow and fair value hedges. These instruments are hedges of forecasted transactions or of the
variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability. The Company generally enters into forward
exchange contracts and options expiring within 48 months as hedges of anticipated cash flows denominated in foreign currencies.
These contracts are entered into to protect against the risk that the eventual cash flows resulting from such transactions will be
adversely affected by changes in exchange rates. Additionally, the Company from time to time enters into interest rate swap
agreements to effectively fix the interest rates of variable rate borrowings. In using derivative financial instruments to hedge
exposures to changes in exchange rates and interest rates, the Company exposes itself to counterparty credit risk.

All derivatives, including foreign currency exchange contracts, are recognized in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Fair values for the
Company�s derivative financial instruments are based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments or, if none are available,
on pricing models or formulas using current assumptions. On the date the derivative contract is entered into, the Company
determines whether the derivative contract should be designated as a hedge. For derivatives that are designated as hedges, the
Company further designates the hedge as either a fair value or cash flow hedge. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
highly effective and designated as fair value hedges are recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Operations along with the loss
or gain on the hedged asset or liability. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are highly effective and designated as cash flow
hedges are reported as a component of Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) and reclassified into earnings in the same line-item
associated with the forecasted transaction and in the same periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. The
Company formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking various hedging activities. This process includes linking all derivatives that are designated as
fair value or cash flow hedges to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to forecasted transactions. The Company
also formally assesses, both at the hedge�s inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows of hedged items. When it is determined that a
derivative is not highly effective as a hedge or that it has ceased to be a highly effective hedge, the Company discontinues hedge
accounting prospectively. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, all hedges were determined to be effective.

The Company also periodically enters into forward exchange contracts and options that are not designated as hedges. The
purpose of the majority of these derivative instruments is to protect the Company against foreign currency exposure pertaining to
receivables and payables that are denominated in currencies different from the functional currencies of the Company or the
respective subsidiaries. The Company records changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) within other income, net.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments  �  Fair values of cash equivalents, short-term investments and current accounts receivable
and payable approximate the carrying amounts because of their short-term nature. The fair value of short-term debt approximates
its recorded value because of its short-term nature. Also, long-term debt carried on the Company�s Consolidated Balance Sheets at
December 31, 2008 and 2007 has a carrying value that approximates its estimated fair value. The fair value is based on
discounting future cash flows using current interest rates adjusted for risk.
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New Accounting Pronouncements  �  In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements� (SFAS
No. 157), which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles
and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 was effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2008
for all financial assets and liabilities and for nonfinancial assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value in the
Consolidated Financial Statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). For all other nonfinancial assets and liabilities, SFAS
No. 157 is effective beginning January 1, 2009. Adoption of this Standard on January 1, 2008 did not have an impact on the
Company�s Financial Statements. See Note 14 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for disclosures related to the
adoption of this Standard. The Company does not believe that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 for non-financial assets and liabilities
not valued on a recurring basis as of January 1, 2009, will materially impact its financial position and results of operations.

In April 2007, the FASB issued EITF 06-04, �Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of
Endorsement Split Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements.� This Standard requires an employer to recognize a liability for future
benefits in accordance with SFAS No. 106, �Employers� Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,� if, in
substance, a postretirement benefit plan exists. The Company adopted EITF 06-04 effective January 1, 2008. Adoption of this
Standard had no impact on the Company�s Consolidated Statements of Operations and resulted in a $2.2 reduction to the retained
earnings balance as of January 1, 2008.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), �Business Combinations,� (SFAS No. 141R) which replaces
SFAS No. 141. SFAS No. 141R establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its
Financial Statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any resulting goodwill and any noncontrolling interest
in the acquiree. The Statement also provides for disclosures to enable users of the Financial Statements to evaluate the nature and
financial effects of the business combination. SFAS No. 141R is effective for Financial Statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2008 and must be applied prospectively to business combinations completed on or after that date. Adoption of
SFAS No. 141R will have an impact on the Company�s Consolidated Financial Statements when effective, but the nature and
magnitude of the specific effects will depend upon the terms and size of the acquisitions consummated after the effective date.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, �Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements,� an Amendment
to ARB No. 51. SFAS No. 160 applies to all entities that have an outstanding noncontrolling interest in one or more subsidiaries or
that deconsolidate a subsidiary. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning
on or after December 15, 2008. The adoption of SFAS No. 160 as of January 1, 2009, will not have a significant impact on the
Company�s financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, �Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.� The new
Standard is intended to help investors better understand how derivative instruments and hedging activities affect an entity�s financial
position, financial performance and cash flows through enhanced disclosure requirements. SFAS No. 161 is effective for Financial
Statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. The Company will provide the
disclosures required by this Standard beginning the first quarter of 2009.

3. Common and Preferred Shares

Through December 31, 2008, the Company repurchased 42.9 million shares for total costs of $698.9 pursuant to its share
repurchase authorizations. At the current time, the Company does not anticipate executing additional
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Share and Per Share Amounts)

share repurchases in 2009. The timing and terms of any future transactions will depend on a number of considerations including
market conditions and liquidity.

Below is a summary of the Company�s share repurchases for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006:

2008 7.7 million shares $ 116.6

2007 9.9 million shares $ 184.0

2006 6.1 million shares $ 126.5

At December 31, 2008, the Company has the authority to repurchase 7.1 million additional common shares pursuant to current
authorizations.

Shareholder Rights Plan

Under the shareholder Rights Agreement dated November 30, 1998, a dividend of one preferred share purchase right for each
outstanding common share was granted to shareholders of record at the close of business on December 1, 1998. Under certain
conditions, each right entitles the holder to purchase one one-hundredth of a Series A preferred share. The rights cannot be
exercised or transferred separately from common shares, unless a person or group acquires a certain percentage of the Company�s
outstanding common shares. The rights were set to expire on December 1, 2008, unless earlier redeemed by the Company. The
Company entered into an amendment of the shareholder Rights Agreement on December 1, 2008 to extend the expiration date to
June 30, 2009, and a second amendment on February 9, 2009 to increase the percentage of shares required to trigger the
issuance of the rights from 15% to 20%.

Preferred Shares

The Company is authorized to issue up to five million preferred shares, of which four million would have voting rights. At
December 31, 2008 and 2007, there were no preferred shares outstanding.

4. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The following is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of the basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) computations:

Shares (in Millions) Net Shares Per
Share
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Income
(Loss)

Amount

2008:

Basic EPS $ (92.9) 123.5 $ (0.75)

Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock-based compensation arrangements � � �

Diluted EPS $ (92.9) 123.5 $ (0.75)

2007:

Basic EPS $ 169.5 134.1 $ 1.26

Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock-based compensation arrangements � 3.6 (0.03)

Diluted EPS $ 169.5 137.7 $ 1.23

2006:

Basic EPS $ 166.2 138.4 $ 1.20

Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock-based compensation arrangements � 3.3 (0.03)

Diluted EPS $ 166.2 141.7 $ 1.17

The diluted EPS calculation for the year ended December 31, 2008 excludes the effect of dilutive securities because of the loss
from continuing operations. The diluted EPS calculation excludes the effect of 8.8 million and 7.5 million outstanding stock options
for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, because they are anti-dilutive.

5. Acquisitions

On September 3, 2008, the Company acquired 100 percent of the outstanding common shares of Intervoice, a developer of
automated voice response systems, for cash consideration of $338.8. Intervoice is a market leader in the delivery of personalized,
multi-channel automated information solutions that connect people with information, empowering them to control the way they
interact with a business. Integration of Intervoice�s
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speech automation and mobile applications with the Company�s agent-assisted services will enable the Company to build upon its
leadership position in relationship management solutions. The Company�s solutions result in improved operational efficiencies, new
revenue streams, and most importantly enhanced differentiation in the large and growing automated services market.

The Intervoice acquisition was accounted for as a purchase transaction. The purchase price has been allocated to fixed assets,
liabilities and tangible and identifiable intangible assets based upon valuations using management�s estimates and assumptions.
Fair values for the intangible assets were valued by a third-party appraisal firm based on information provided by the Company.
The excess purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired was allocated to goodwill. The total amount of
goodwill expected to be deductible for tax purposes is approximately $23. Intervoice�s operating results have been included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company within the Customer Management segment since the date of acquisition and
goodwill, as reflected in the table below, was entirely assigned to the Customer Management segment. This acquisition was
financed using the Company�s $400 Five-Year Competitive Advance and Revolving Credit Facility.

Allocation of purchase price to the assets and liabilities assumed at the date of the acquisition is presented in the table below:

Assets:

Cash $ 45.4

Accounts receivable 36.7

Property, plant & equipment 84.7

Goodwill 213.1

Intangible assets 40.0

Other assets 79.1

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (32.2)

Deferred taxes, net (71.9)

Other long-term liabilities (56.1)

Acquisition Price $ 338.8

Intangible assets include $30.0 related to customer relationships with an estimated useful life of eleven years and $10.0 related to
Intervoice trademarks with an estimated useful life of four years. The weighted average useful life of the intangibles is 8.9 years.
Included in property, plant and equipment is $38.8 of software assets with estimated useful lives of two to eight years. The
acquisition does not meet the thresholds for a significant acquisition and, therefore, no pro forma financial information is presented.

In addition, during the second quarter of 2008, the Company made two small strategic acquisitions to expand its business support
systems solution footprint: Shanghai Hong Xun Software Co., Ltd. for its web self-care, service provisioning, and workforce
management capabilities and Visage�s Subscriber Management Platform. During the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company acquired
Ceon Corporation in order to expand the breadth of its business/operations support systems solutions. The total initial purchase
price related to these acquisitions was $20.7. In addition, with respect to the Ceon Corporation acquisition, the Company is
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obligated to make additional earn-out payments of up to $22.5 if certain performance targets are met through December 31, 2009.
Since these contingent payments are based on achievement of performance targets, actual payments may be substantially lower.
All of the contingent payments, when made will be accounted for as goodwill.

6. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company is required to test goodwill for impairment annually as of October 1 and at other times if events have occurred or
circumstances exist that indicate the carrying value of goodwill may no longer be recoverable. During the third quarter of 2008, the
Company performed an impairment review of the goodwill allocated to its HR Management segment. The review was triggered by
the $207.5 of deferred charges related impairment taken during the third quarter of 2008 as described in Note 7 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. The impairment test for goodwill involves a two-step process. The first step compares the fair
value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, including the goodwill allocated

62  Convergys Corporation 2008 Annual Report

Edgar Filing: CONVERGYS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 116



Table of Contents

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Share and Per Share Amounts)

to each reporting unit. If the carrying amount is in excess of the fair value, the second step requires the comparison of the implied
fair value of the reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill. Any excess of the carrying value of
the reporting unit goodwill over the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill will be recorded as an impairment loss. Fair value
of the reporting unit was determined using a combination of the market approach and the income approach. Under the market
approach, fair value is based on actual stock price or transaction prices of comparable companies. Under the income approach,
value is dependent on the present value of net cash flows to be derived from the ownership.

The Company determined that the fair value of the HR Management segment was less than its carrying value as of September 30,
2008 and, therefore, the second step of the test was required. This second step review of the HR Management segment was
completed during the fourth quarter of 2008 and resulted in a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $61.1 recorded within the
asset impairments caption in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. In determining the amount of the HR
Management related goodwill impairment, the Company engaged a third-party appraisal firm to assist in valuing the significant
intangible assets of the reporting unit. Key assumptions used by the Company in determining the fair value of the HR Management
segment include revenue increases from existing contracts as services �go-live� and an estimate of future cash implementation costs
and revenue. The approximate amount of the goodwill asset impairment charge that was deductible for tax purposes was $20.

Based on the results of its first-step impairment tests performed as of October 1, 2008, the Company had no goodwill impairment
related to its other four reporting units: Information Management International, Information Management North America, Customer
Management and Relationship Technology Management. In addition, due to the decline in the Company�s stock price during the
fourth quarter of 2008, impairment tests were updated as of December 31, 2008 and there was no goodwill impairment related to
any of the Company�s reporting units. During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, the Company had no goodwill
impairment related to any of its reporting units. The Company believes it makes every reasonable effort to ensure that it accurately
estimates the fair value of the reporting units. However, future changes in the assumptions used to make these estimates could
result in an impairment loss.

Below is a progression of goodwill for the Company�s segments for 2008 and 2007:

Customer
Management

Information
Management

HR
Management Total

Balance at January 1, 2007 $ 566.3 $ 184.3 $ 129.6 $ 880.2

Acquisitions � 2.8 � 2.8

Other 12.2 0.7 0.3 13.2

Balance at December 31, 2007 578.5 187.8 129.9 896.2

Acquisitions 213.1 7.9 � 221.0

Impairment � � (61.1) (61.1)

Other (15.2) (6.3) 0.3 (21.2)
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Balance at December 31, 2008 $ 776.4 $ 189.4 $ 69.1 $ 1,034.9

The addition of $213.1 to the Customer Management segment during the year ended December 31, 2008 resulted from the
acquisition of Intervoice as discussed in Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The addition of $7.9 to the
Information Management segment during the year ended December 31, 2008 related to the acquisition of Shanghai Hong Xun
Software Co., Ltd. The other changes to goodwill in 2008 and 2007 principally reflect foreign currency translation adjustments.

The Company�s other intangible assets, primarily acquired through business combinations, are evaluated periodically if events or
circumstances indicate a possible inability to recover their carrying amounts.
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As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company�s other intangible assets consisted of the following:

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization Net

2008:

Software (classified with Property, Plant & Equipment) $ 92.2 $ (46.3) $ 45.9

Trademarks 12.0 (2.7) 9.3

Customer relationships and other intangibles 176.2 (116.7) 59.5

Total $ 280.4 $ (165.7) $ 114.7

2007:

Software (classified with Property, Plant & Equipment) $ 37.9 $ (36.8) $ 1.1

Trademarks 2.0 (1.6) 0.4

Customer relationships and other intangibles 139.4 (100.1) 39.3

Total $ 179.3 $ (138.5) $ 40.8

The intangible assets are being amortized using the following amortizable lives: two to eight years for software, four years for
trademarks and seven to twelve years for customer relationships and other. The remaining weighted average amortization period
for intangible assets is seven years.

Customer relationships, trademarks and other intangibles amortization expense was $13.5 for the year ended December 31, 2008
and the related estimated expense for the five subsequent fiscal years is as follows:

For the year ended 12/31/09 $ 12

For the year ended 12/31/10 $ 11

For the year ended 12/31/11 $ 11

For the year ended 12/31/12 $ 10

For the year ended 12/31/13 $ 8

Thereafter $ 17

7. Deferred Charges and Deferred Revenue
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During 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company capitalized $273.2, $129.5 and $126.5 of client acquisition and implementation costs,
respectively. The related amortization and impairment charge for these years was $333.7, $53.2 and $54.3, respectively. During
2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company capitalized implementation revenue of $140.6, $63.9 and $38.7, respectively. The related
amortization for these years was $43.4, $15.6 and $11.4, respectively.

During the third quarter of 2008, the Company recorded $272.9 of impairment and implementation charges, of which $207.5 was
due to impairment of deferred charges and $65.4 was due to expensing of implementation costs that exceeded the termination for
convenience fees in a contract at September 30, 2008. Based upon the contract profitability analysis completed in the third quarter
of 2008, two HR Management contracts were projected to be unprofitable over their contract terms due to an increase in overall
implementation and delivery costs. As a result, $207.5 of the capitalized costs related to these contracts were impaired, and were,
therefore, written down in the third quarter of 2008. After the write-off, one of the contracts is expected to be profitable over its
remaining contract term and the other contract is expected to continue to generate losses. The losses from this executory contract
will be recorded as incurred, over the contract term through 2016 in the Company�s Consolidated Statements of Operations and are
not expected to be material to the Company�s Consolidated Financial Statements.

Further, during 2008, the costs of implementing another large HR outsourcing client contract exceeded the amount recoverable
under the contract at September 30, 2008, even though the contract is expected to be profitable over its term. When
implementation costs are deemed not recoverable in accordance with the Company�s accounting policy, such excess costs are
expensed even if the contract is profitable over its term. See also �Deferred Charges� in Note 2 to Consolidated Financial for more
detailed discussions on deferred charges and the Company�s policy on assessing recoverability of deferred charges. The $65.4
charge is classified within the costs of providing services and products sold caption in the accompanying Consolidated Statements
of Operations.
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8. Debt

Debt consists of the following:

At December 31,

2008 2007

Revolving credit facility $ 400.0 $ �

Senior notes 249.8 249.4

Other 16.1 10.5

Total debt 665.9 259.9

Less current maturities 259.5 0.6

Long-term debt $ 406.4 $ 259.3

Weighted average effective interest rates:

Revolving credit facility 4.7% �

Senior notes 5.0% 5.0%

Other 4.4% 5.0%

During the third quarter of 2008, the Company borrowed the entire amount available under the Company�s $400 Five-Year
Competitive Advance and Revolving Credit Facility. This borrowing was mainly to fund the acquisition of Intervoice as detailed in
Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The interest rate on the Revolving Credit Facility is based on LIBOR or
the prime rate. The commitment fee on this facility at December 31, 2008 was 0.1%. The maturity date of the Credit Facility
Agreement is October 20, 2011. The participating agents in the credit facility include JPMorgan Chase Bank, Citicorp USA, PNC
Bank and Deutsche Bank AG. The Company�s credit facility includes certain restrictive covenants including maintenance of interest
coverage and debt-to-EBITDA ratios. The Company�s interest coverage ratio, defined as the ratio of consolidated earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) to consolidated interest expense, cannot be less than 4.00 to 1.00 for four
consecutive quarters. The Company�s debt-to-EBITDA ratio cannot be greater than 3.25 to 1.0 at any time. The Company was in
compliance with all covenants during 2008.

In December 2004, the Company issued $250.0 in 4.875% unsecured senior notes due December 15, 2009. The notes were
offered and sold pursuant to the universal shelf registration statement, previously declared effective in June 2003. In connection
with the issuance of this 4.875% unsecured senior notes, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a
notional value of $250.0, which was designated as a hedge. The purpose of the swap was to protect the notes against changes in
fair value due to changes in interest rates. Under the terms of the interest rate swap, the Company received interest at a fixed rate
of 4.875% and paid interest at a variable rate based on LIBOR. Based on market conditions, the Company terminated this swap
agreement on June 1, 2005. In connection with the settlement of the derivative instrument, the Company paid the counterparty
$1.7, the fair value of the swap on June 1, 2005. The $1.7 paid on the termination has been treated as a debt discount and, hence,
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is being amortized as interest expense over the term of the notes. The senior notes had an outstanding balance of $249.8 and
$249.4 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. In May 2008, the Company filed a shelf registration statement for the
issuance of senior debt in a form not yet determined.

Other debt of $16.1 and $10.5 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, consisted of capital leases and miscellaneous
domestic and international borrowings.

At December 31, 2008, future minimum payments of the Company�s debt arrangements are as follows:

2009 $  259.5

2010 �

2011 400.0

2012 �

2013 �

Thereafter 6.4

Total $ 665.9

9. Restructuring

2008

During the first quarter of 2008, the Company initiated a restructuring plan to align resources to future business needs and to shift
the geographic mix of some of its resources. Restructuring actions were taken in each business segment, of which $5.4 related to
Customer
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Management, $6.9 related to Information Management and $1.8 related to HR Management. The severance charge of $14.1 was
largely paid in cash pursuant to the Company�s severance policy and employment agreements. These actions, which affected
approximately 750 professional and administrative employees worldwide, were mostly completed by the end of 2008.

During the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company initiated another restructuring plan to reduce approximately 750 of its worldwide
salaried employees and approximately 1,000 of non-salaried employees. Restructuring actions were taken in each business
segment, of which $8.6 related to Customer Management, $2.8 related to Information Management, $8.7 related to HR
Management and $0.2 related to Corporate. The $20.3 restructuring charges include cash-related payments of $16.2 and a
non-cash charge of $2.3 related to acceleration of equity-based awards which are being paid pursuant to the Company�s severance
policy, as well as facility closure related accruals of $1.8. The severance actions are expected to be completed during 2009.

Below is a summary of the 2008 net restructuring charge of $34.4 ($22.4 after tax) by segment:

Customer
Management

Information
Management

HR
Management Corporate Total

Severance costs $ 12.2 $ 9.7 $ 10.5 $ 0.2 $ 32.6

Facility-related costs 1.8 � � � 1.8

Net restructuring $ 14.0 $ 9.7 $ 10.5 $ 0.2 $ 34.4

Restructuring liability activity for the 2008 plan consisted of the following:

2008

Balance at January 1 $ �

Restructuring charge 34.4

Severance payments (12.3)

Balance at December 31 $ 22.1

2007

During the third quarter of 2007, the Company recorded a restructuring charge of $3.4 at Information Management related to a
facility closure in the United Kingdom. This action was a result of the facility consolidation in the United Kingdom that started during
the fourth quarter of 2006 as discussed in more detail below. The $3.4 accrual is equal to the future costs associated with the
abandoned facility, net of the proceeds from any probable future sublease agreements. The Company used estimates, based on
consultation with its real estate advisors, to arrive at the proceeds from any future sublease agreements. The Company will
continue to evaluate such estimates in recording the facilities abandonment charge. Consequently, there may be additional
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reversals or charges relating to this facility closure in the future. At December 31, 2008, this restructuring reserve had an
outstanding balance of $1.0, which will be paid over several years until the lease expires.

2006

The Company initiated a restructuring plan in the fourth quarter of 2006. The plan was initiated to rationalize facility costs, further
streamline the Company�s operations in order to align resources to support growth, and to shift the geographic mix of some of the
Company�s resources. The plan resulted in a net restructuring charge of $12.5 and included $24.1 of severance costs, $0.5 of
facility closure costs and reversal of $12.1 in facility abandonment costs. Restructuring actions were taken in each business
segment, of which $6.5 related to Customer Management, $0.8 related to Information Management, $2.1 related to HR
Management and $3.1 related to Corporate.

The $24.1 severance charge was paid pursuant to the Company�s severance policy and employment agreements and included
cash-related payments of $21.3 and a non-cash charge of $2.8 related to acceleration of equity-based awards. These actions,
which affected approximately 700 professional employees, were completed in 2007. The $0.5 of facility closure costs relate to an
additional
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accrual, resulting from changes in the sublease estimates, for a property that was abandoned in 2005. In the fourth quarter of 2006,
the Company made a decision to consolidate its operations in the U.K. and move into one of the facilities that was originally
abandoned in 2002. This resulted in the reversal of $12.1 of the Company�s 2002 facility-related restructuring reserves at
December 31, 2006. Completion of the facility consolidation at this location resulted in the recording of additional reserves in the
third quarter of 2007, as discussed above.

Below is the summary of the 2006 net restructuring charge of $12.5 ($8.5 after tax) by segment:

Customer
Management

Information
Management

HR
Management Corporate Total

Severance costs $ 6.5 $ 12.9 $ 1.6 $ 3.1 $ 24.1

Facility-related costs/
(reversal) � (12.1) 0.5 � (11.6)

Net restructuring $ 6.5 $ 0.8 $ 2.1 $ 3.1 $ 12.5

Restructuring liability activity for the fourth quarter 2006 plan consisted of the following:

2008 2007 2006

Balance at January 1 $ 3.1 $ 20.5 $ �

Restructuring charge � � 24.6

Lease termination payments � (0.5) �

Severance payments (3.1) (16.9) (4.1)

Balance at December 31 $ � $ 3.1 $ 20.5

10. Employee Benefit Plans

Pensions

The Company sponsors a defined benefit pension plan, which includes both a qualified and non-qualified portion, for all eligible
employees (the cash balance plan). The Company also sponsors a non-qualified, unfunded executive deferred compensation plan
and a supplemental, non-qualified, unfunded plan for certain senior executives (the executive pension plans). The pension benefit
formula for the cash balance plan is determined by a combination of compensation and age-based credits and annual guaranteed
interest credits. Benefits for the executive deferred compensation plan are based on employee deferrals, matching contributions
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and investment earnings on participant accounts. Benefits for the supplemental plan are based on age, years of service and eligible
pay. Funding of the qualified portion of the cash balance plan has been achieved through contributions made to a trust fund. The
contributions have been determined using the aggregate cost method. The Company�s measurement date for all plans is
December 31. The projected unit credit cost method is used for determining the unfunded executive pension cost for financial
reporting purposes. Pension costs for the cash balance plan were determined based on the traditional unit credit cost method. The
plan assumptions are evaluated annually and are updated as necessary.

During the first quarter of 2008, the Company amended its cash balance plan to cease future benefit accruals and to close
participation effective March 31, 2008. After March 31, 2008, participants will not earn future accruals or credits to their cash
balance account with respect to compensation earned after March 31, 2008, but will continue to be credited with interest to their
cash balance account. This plan amendment resulted in recognizing a curtailment loss of $4.0 during the first quarter of 2008.
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Components of pension cost and other amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) for the cash balance plan are as
follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

Service cost (benefits earned
during the period) $ 4.2 $ 17.9 $ 21.9

Interest cost on projected
benefit obligation 12.7 11.7 10.6

Expected return on plan assets (14.4) (14.6) (14.7)

Amortization and deferrals�net 1.1 2.5 1.7

Settlement loss 8.0 � �

Curtailment loss 4.0 � �

Total pension cost $ 15.6 $ 17.5 $ 19.5

Other comprehensive (income) loss $ 57.2 $ (0.3) $  (10.1)

The settlement loss of $8.0 in 2008 resulted from the benefit payments exceeding the sum of the 2008 service cost and interest
cost. The decline in service costs in 2007 compared to 2006 reflects the cash balance plan amendment in January 2007 to reduce
the amount of pension credit earned on covered compensation.

On December 31, 2006, the Company adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158. This Standard required
the Company to recognize the funded status (i.e., the difference between the fair value of plan assets and the projected benefit
obligations) of its pension plans in the December 31, 2006 Consolidated Balance Sheet, with a corresponding adjustment to
accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax. The negative adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income of
$4.0 ($2.6, net of tax) at adoption represented the net unrecognized actuarial losses, unrecognized prior service costs and
unrecognized transition obligation remaining from the initial adoption of SFAS No. 87, all of which were previously netted against
the plans funded status in the Company�s Consolidated Balance Sheets pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 87. These amounts
are subsequently recognized as net periodic pension cost pursuant to the Company�s historical accounting policy for amortizing
such amounts.

The reconciliation of the cash balance plan�s projected benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets for the years ended
December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 are as follows:

At December 31,

2008 2007

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 215.6 $ 214.7

Service cost 4.2 17.9

Interest cost 12.7 11.7
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Actuarial (gain) loss (0.5) (1.1)

Benefits paid (30.6) (27.6)

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 201.4 $ 215.6

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning
of year $ 185.1 $ 182.0

Actual return on plan assets (56.3) 9.8

Employer contribution 14.1 19.5

Benefits paid (30.6) (27.6)

Other � 1.4

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 112.3 $ 185.1

Funded status $ (89.1) $ (30.5)

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of:

Non-current liability $ 89.1 $ 30.5

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 93.0 35.8

Accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31, 2008 represents unrecognized actuarial losses of $93.0 ($60.4, net of
tax). Included in accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31, 2007 was unrecognized prior service costs of $4.2 ($2.7,
net of tax) and unrecognized actuarial losses of $31.6 ($20.6, net of tax). The actuarial loss included in accumulated other
comprehensive loss and expected to be recognized in net periodic pension cost during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 is
$6.6. The accumulated benefit obligation for the cash balance plan was $201.4 and $215.6 at December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.
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Estimated future benefit payments from the cash balance plan for the following five years are as follows:

2009 $ 16.9

2010 15.5

2011 14.3

2012 13.7

2013 13.3

2014-2018 63.6

Total $ 137.3

Components of pension cost and other amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) for the unfunded executive
pension plans are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

Service cost (benefits earned
during the period) $ 2.0 $ 3.6 $ 4.0

Interest cost on projected
benefit obligation 3.5 4.4 4.3

Settlement loss 3.3 0.7 �

Amortization and deferrals�net 0.3 1.1 1.2

Total pension cost $ 9.1 $ 9.8 $ 9.5

Other comprehensive (income) loss $ (24.0) $ (6.2) $ 8.4

The reconciliation of the unfunded executive pension plans� projected benefit obligation for the years ended December 31, 2008
and December 31, 2007 are as follows:

At December 31,

2008 2007

Change in benefit obligation:
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Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 75.1 $ 85.9

Service cost 2.0 3.6

Interest cost 3.5 4.4

Change in plan provisions (2.1) (2.3)

Actuarial gain (18.3) (1.6)

Benefits paid (22.8) (14.9)

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 37.4 $ 75.1

Funded status $ (37.4) $ (75.1)

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets consisted of:

Current Liability $ 5.6 $ 21.2

Non-current liability 31.8 53.9

Accumulated other comprehensive
(income) loss (9.8) 14.2

Included in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2008 are the following amounts that have not yet been
recognized in net periodic pension cost: unrecognized prior service credits of 2.3 ($1.5, net of tax) and unrecognized actuarial gain
of $7.5 ($4.9, net of tax). Included in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2007 are the following amounts
that have not yet been recognized in net periodic pension cost: unrecognized prior service costs of ($0.4) (($0.3), net of tax) and
unrecognized actuarial losses $14.6 ($9.5, net of tax). The accumulated benefit obligation for the unfunded executive pension plans
were $34.1 and $71.8 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The prior service credit and actuarial gain included in
accumulated other comprehensive income and expected to be recognized in net periodic pension cost during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2009 is ($0.2) and ($0.4), respectively.

Estimated future benefit payments from the unfunded executive plans for the following five years are as follows:

2009 $ 5.6

2010 4.5

2011 4.1

2012 3.8

2013 3.9

2014-2018 16.7

Total $ 38.6

The following rates were used in determining the benefit obligations at December 31:
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2008 2007

Discount rate�projected benefit obligation 6.25-6.50% 6.25%

Future compensation growth rate 4.00% 4.00-5.00%

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 8.50%
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The following rates were used in determining the pension cost for all years ended December 31:

2008 2007 2006

Discount rate�projected benefit obligation 6.25% 5.75% 5.25-5.50%

Future compensation growth rate 4.00-5.00% 4.00-5.00% 4.00-5.00%

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50% 8.50%

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, plan assets for the cash balance plan consisted of approximately 70% of equity securities and
30% of fixed income instruments, respectively, which is consistent with the Company�s targeted allocation. Plan assets for the cash
balance plan included $2.6 and $6.8 of the Company�s common shares at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The
investment objectives for the plan assets are to generate returns that will enable the plan to meets its future obligations. The
Company�s expected long-term rate of return was determined based on the asset mix of the plan, past performance and other
factors. The Company contributed $14.1 and $19.5 in 2008 and 2007, respectively, to fund its cash balance plan in order to satisfy
its ERISA funding requirements. The Company expects to make $7.9 in contributions in 2009 to fund its cash balance plan. No plan
assets are expected to be returned to the Company during 2009.

Savings Plans

The Company sponsors a defined contribution plan covering substantially all U.S. employees. The Company�s contributions to the
plan are based on matching a portion of the employee contributions. Total Company contributions to the defined contribution plan
were $16.1, $14.3 and $14.1 for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Plan assets for these plans included 2.8 million ($17.9) and
3.0 million ($48.8) of Company�s common shares at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Employee Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions

The Company sponsors postretirement health and life insurance plans for certain eligible employees. The Company funds life
insurance benefits of certain retirees through a Voluntary Employee Benefit Association (VEBA) trust. Contributions to the VEBA
are subject to IRS limitations developed using the aggregate cost method. At December 31, 2006, the Company eliminated the
postretirement life insurance plan benefits for non-retirement eligible employees. The Company�s postretirement benefit cost was
($3.7), $0.2 and $3.4 for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The accrued benefit costs pertaining to these benefits of $17.4 and
$20.5 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, are classified with other long-term liabilities. The amount included within
accumulated other comprehensive income related to these benefits were $5.2 and $3.3 at December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. As discussed within the new accounting pronouncements section of Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, adoption of EITF 06-04 on January 1, 2008, resulted in a $2.2 reduction to the retained earnings balance as of
January 1, 2008.

11. Stock-Based Compensation Plans

At December 31, 2008, the Company had 38 million common shares that were authorized for issuance under the Convergys
Corporation 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan (Convergys LTIP), as amended on April 22, 2008. The Convergys LTIP provides for
the issuance of stock-based awards to certain employees and Directors. From time to time, the Company grants restricted stock
awards that generally vest over terms of three to five years, pursuant to the plan. During the restriction period, restricted stock
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awards entitle the holder to all the rights of a holder of common shares (other than the right to transfer the shares). Unvested
shares are restricted as to disposition and subject to forfeiture under certain circumstances. The Company also granted stock
options with exercise prices that are no less than market value of the stock at the grant date and have a ten-year term and vesting
terms of three to four years. Since early 2004, the Company has not issued any stock options to employees or Directors. Instead,
the Company began granting certain employees and Directors restricted stock units. Unlike the restricted stock awards discussed
above, the restricted stock units

70  Convergys Corporation 2008 Annual Report

Edgar Filing: CONVERGYS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 133



Table of Contents

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Amounts in Millions Except Share and Per Share Amounts)

do not possess dividend or voting rights. The restricted stock units consist of both time-related and performance-related units. The
restrictions for the time-related restricted stock units lapse three years after the grant date. The performance-related units vest
upon the Company�s satisfaction of certain financial performance conditions (relative shareholder return versus the S&P 500
return). Performance-related units that have not vested by the end of three years from the grant date (i.e. the performance
conditions for vesting of those units have not been met within that period) are forfeited.

The following table shows certain information as of December 31, 2008, with respect to compensation plans under which common
shares are authorized for issuance:

No. of
Common
Shares to
be Issued

Upon
Exercise

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

Common
shares

Available
for Future
Issuance

Equity compensation plans approved by shareholders (1)

Stock options 9,345,539 $ 30.69 7,117,020

Restricted stock � N/A (1)

Restricted stock units 3,579,153 N/A (1)

Equity compensation plans not approved by shareholders � � �

Total 12,924,692 $ 30.69 7,117,020

(1)The Company had authorized 38 million common shares for issuance under the Convergys Corporation Long-Term Incentive Plan.

The Company�s operating results reflect long-term incentive plan expense of $18.3, $24.5 and $36.1 for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Long-term incentive plan expenses include: (a) incentive plan expense that is
paid in cash based on relative shareholder return, and (b) stock compensation expense. Stock compensation expense for the year
ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $19.4, $25.6 and $31.3, respectively.

Stock Options

Presented below is a summary of Company stock option activity:

Shares (in Thousands) Shares Weighted

Average
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Exercise
Price

Options outstanding at January 1, 2006 16,884 $ 25.91

Options exercised in 2006 (3,490) 14.50

Options forfeited in 2006 (566) 33.19

Options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2006 12,828 $ 28.69

Options exercised in 2007 (1,112) $ 14.73

Options forfeited in 2007 (775) 35.95

Options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2007 10,941 $ 29.55

Options exercised in 2008 (233) $ 13.29

Options forfeited in 2008 (1,362) 25.02

Options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2008 9,346 $ 30.69

The weighted average remaining contractual term for both the outstanding and exercisable options at December 31, 2008 was
approximately 2.1 years. The weighted average grant date fair value per share for the outstanding and exercisable options at
December 31, 2008 was $12.74.
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The following table summarizes the status of the Company stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2008:

Shares (in Thousands)
Options Outstanding and

Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices Shares

Weighted

Average

Remaining

Contractual
Life

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price

$11.55 to
$11.55 1,077 4.0 $ 11.55

$12.01 to
$21.81 653 3.2 15.24

$22.22 to
$22.22 1,118 0.1 22.22

$24.75 to
$29.32 175 2.4 27.62

$29.53 to
$29.53 1,667 1.0 29.53

$29.78 to
$36.49 172 2.2 33.60

$36.67 to
$36.67 2,013 3.0 36.67

$37.13 to
$43.50 424 1.5 38.97

$43.63 to
$43.63 1,987 2.0 43.63

$44.00 to
$52.53 60 1.6 46.03

Total 9,346 2.1 $ 30.69

Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units

During 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company granted 1.6 million, 1.5 million and 1.8 million of restricted stock and restricted stock
units, respectively. The weighted average fair values of these grants were $12.09, $24.08 and $18.10, respectively. Included in the
total grants were 1.2 million, 0.4 million and 0.6 million of performance-related restricted stock units for 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

The Company used a Monte Carlo simulation model to estimate the fair value for performance-based restricted stock units issued
during 2008, 2007 and 2006. The assumptions used in this model for performance-based restricted stock units granted during 2008
are noted in the table below. Expected volatilities for the 2008 performance awards are based on historical volatility and daily
returns for the three-year period ended January 1, 2008 of the Company�s stock and S&P 500 companies. The total stock return for
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the Company over the performance period is based on comparing Convergys� average closing price from the fourth quarter of 2007
with the average expected closing price for the fourth quarter of 2010. The total stock return of the S&P 500 companies is
computed by comparing the closing price of the S&P 500 companies on December 28, 2007 with the closing price at the end of
December 2010. The risk-free interest rate for the expected term of the award granted is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in
effect at the time of grant.

December 31,
2008

Expected volatility 30.1%

Expected term (in years) 3.0

Risk-free interest rate 2.1%

The total compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock and restricted stock units not yet recognized as of December 31,
2008 was approximately $21.2, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average of 1.1 years. Changes to non-vested
restricted stock and restricted stock units for the years ended December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 were as follows:

Amounts in millions
Number of

Shares

Weighted

Average Fair

Value at Date

of Grant

Non-vested at December 31, 2006 4.4 $ 15.76

Granted 1.5 24.08

Vested (2.1) (13.36)

Forfeited (0.3) (18.84)

Non-vested at December 31, 2007 3.5 20.35

Granted 1.6 12.09

Vested (1.2) (14.26)

Forfeited (0.3) (19.34)

Non-vested at December 31, 2008 3.6 $ 16.82
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12. Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

The Company leases certain facilities and equipment used in its operations under operating leases. Total rent expense was $85.4,
$86.4 and $86.2 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

At December 31, 2008, the total minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

2009 $ 47.4

2010 36.7

2011 26.2

2012 17.0

2013 11.4

Thereafter 31.6

Total $ 170.3

The Company leases certain equipment and facilities used in its operations under operating leases. This includes its office complex
in Orlando, Florida, which is leased from Wachovia Development Corporation (Lessor), a wholly owned subsidiary of Wachovia
Corporation, under an agreement that expires in June 2010. Upon termination or expiration of the lease, the Company must either
purchase the property from the Lessor for $65.0 or arrange to have the office complex sold to a third party. If the office complex is
sold to a third party for an amount less than the $65.0, the amount paid by the Lessor for the purchase of the complex from an
unrelated third party, the Company has agreed under a residual value guarantee to pay the Lessor up to $55.0. If the office
complex is sold to a third party for an amount in excess of $65.0, the Company is entitled to collect the excess. At the inception of
the lease, the Company recognized a liability of approximately $5 for the related residual value guarantee. The value of the
guarantee was determined by computing the estimated present value of probability-weighted cash flows that might be expended
under the guarantee. The Company recorded a liability for the fair value of the obligation with a corresponding asset recorded as
prepaid rent, which is being amortized to rental expense over the lease term. The liability will remain on the Balance Sheet until the
end of the lease term. Under the terms of the lease, the Company will also provide certain indemnities to the Lessor, including
environmental indemnities. Due to the nature of such potential obligations, it is not possible to estimate the maximum amount of
such exposure or the fair value. The Company does not expect such amounts, if any, to be material. The Company has concluded
that it is not required to consolidate the Lessor pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards Board Financial Interpretation No. 46R,
�Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,� an interpretation of ARB No. 51.

At December 31, 2008, the Company had outstanding letters of credit of approximately $43.0 related to performance and payment
guarantees. The Company believes that any guarantee obligation that may arise will not be material.
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The Company also has purchase commitments with three telecommunications providers of approximately $30 and $24 in 2009 and
2010, respectively.

Contingencies

The Company from time to time is involved in various loss contingencies, including tax and legal contingencies that arise in the
ordinary course of business. Pursuant to SFAS No. 5, �Contingent Liabilities,� the Company accrues for a loss contingency when it is
probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of such loss can be reasonably estimated. At this time, the Company
believes that the results of any such contingencies, either individually or in the aggregate, will not have a materially adverse effect
on the Company�s results of operations or financial condition. However, the outcome of any litigation cannot be predicted with
certainty. An unfavorable resolution of one or more pending matters could have a materially adverse impact on the Company�s
results of operations or financial condition in the future.

Several related class action lawsuits were filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
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Texas on behalf of purchasers of common stock of Intervoice during the period from October 12, 1999 through June 6, 2000 (the
Class Period). Plaintiffs have filed claims, which were consolidated into one proceeding, under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the
Exchange Act and SEC Rule 10b-5 against Intervoice as well as certain named current and former officers and directors of
Intervoice on behalf of the alleged class members. In the complaint, Plaintiffs claim that Intervoice and the named current and
former officers and directors issued false and misleading statements during the Class Period concerning the financial condition of
Intervoice, the results of the merger with Brite and the alleged future business projections of Intervoice. Plaintiffs have asserted that
these alleged statements resulted in artificially inflated stock prices.

The District Court dismissed the Plaintiffs� complaint because it lacked the degree of specificity and factual support to meet the
pleading standards applicable to federal securities litigation. The Plaintiffs appealed the dismissal to the United States Court of
Appeals for the Fifth Circuit, which affirmed the dismissal in part and reversed in part. The Fifth Circuit remanded a limited number
of issues for further proceedings in the District Court.

On September 26, 2006, the District Court granted the Plaintiffs� motion to certify a class of people who purchased Intervoice stock
during the Class Period. On November 14, 2006, the Fifth Circuit granted Intervoice�s petition to appeal the District Court�s decision
to grant Plaintiffs� motion to certify a class. On January 8, 2008, the Fifth Circuit vacated the District Court�s class-certification order
and remanded the case to the District Court for further consideration in light of the Fifth Circuit�s decision in Oscar Private Equity
Investments v. Allegiance Telecom, Inc. The parties filed additional briefing in the District Court regarding class certification and are
awaiting the District Court�s ruling. The District Court granted Plaintiffs� motion for leave to file a second amended complaint and
Intervoice moved to dismiss portions of that amended complaint. On March 12, 2008, the District Court granted that motion in part
and denied it in part. The Company continues to vigorously defend the case.

Since 2002, the Company has been cooperating with the U.S. Department of Labor�s wage and hour division (DOL) on a number of
matters to investigate and resolve allegations of the Company�s incorrect measurement of hourly call center employees� work time.
On January 15, 2009, the DOL requested that the Company conduct a self-audit to investigate and assess the Company�s
practices. The Company maintains that it fully complies with the DOL timekeeping requirements, but has agreed to begin to
conduct the self-audit. Depending upon the findings of the audit, the Company may need to negotiate a satisfactory resolution with
the DOL. A resolution could involve, among other things, the payment of an amount of back wages to the Company�s U.S. agents.
While the Company is confident it can negotiate a resolution with the DOL depending upon the findings of the audit, if it cannot, the
DOL may take action against the Company. We believe that the outcome of this matter with the DOL will not individually or in the
aggregate have a future material adverse effect on the Company�s operating income or financial condition in the future.

13. Financial Instruments

The Company has outstanding forward exchange contracts and options that mature within the next 48 months, consisting primarily
of Canadian dollars, Indian rupees and Philippine pesos with a notional value of $866.7 at December 31, 2008 and $701.6 at
December 31, 2007. All the derivative instruments discussed above are designated and effective as cash flow hedges. The
following table reflects the fair values of these derivative instruments:

December 31,

2008 2007

Forward exchange contracts and options designated as hedging instruments under SFAS
No. 133
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Included within other current assets $ 1.8 $ 67.1

Included within other current liabilities 40.8 3.2

Included within other long-term liabilities 60.6 �
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(Amounts in Millions Except Share and Per Share Amounts)

The Company recorded a deferred tax benefit of $35.8 related to these derivatives at December 31, 2008, compared to a deferred
tax liability of $21.7 at December 31, 2007. A total of $66.6 of deferred losses and $40.4 of deferred gains, net of tax, related to
these cash flow hedges at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, were in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. As of
December 31, 2008, deferred losses of $40.7 ($26.4 net of tax), on derivative instruments included in accumulated other
comprehensive income are expected to be reclassified into earnings during the next 12 months.

During 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company recorded net gains of $9.3, $46.4 and $22.8, respectively, related to the settlement of
forward contracts and options which were designated as cash flow hedges.

The Company also enters into derivative instruments (forwards) to economically hedge the foreign currency impact of assets and
liabilities denominated in nonfunctional currencies. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, a loss of $9.0 was recognized
related to changes in fair value of these derivative instruments not designated as hedges, compared to a $5.4 gain for the same
period in 2007. The losses partially offset the currency gains that resulted from changes in the assets and liabilities denominated in
nonfunctional currencies. These gains and losses are classified within other income, net in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations. The fair value of these derivative instruments not designated as hedges at December 31, 2008, was a
payable of $2.7. During the first quarter of 2008, the Company had entered into treasury lock derivative instruments with a total
notional amount of $200.0 in anticipation of a probable debt issuance later in 2008. As the Company did not expect issuance of the
debt in the near future given the market conditions during the third quarter of 2008, the $6.0 gain on termination of the treasury lock
was recognized within the other income, net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended
December 31, 2008.

A few of the Company�s counterparty agreements related to derivative instruments contain provisions that require that the Company
maintain collateralization on derivative instruments in net liability positions. The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments in
liability position at December 31, 2008 is $101.4 for which the Company posted collateral of $26.6. Further downgrades in the
Company�s credit ratings and/or adverse change in the foreign currency markets will require additional collateral to counterparties.

14. Fair Value Disclosures

SFAS No. 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy (Level 1 through 3) based on the quality of inputs used in the valuation technique
to measure the fair value of identical assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted market prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The following
table summarizes the Company�s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis (at least annually) as of
December 31, 2008:

Total

Quoted Prices
In Active

Markets for
Identical Assets

(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Derivative assets $ 1.8 � $ 1.8 �
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Derivative liabilities $ 104.1 � $ 104.1 �
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15. Income Taxes

The Company�s provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following:

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

Current:

United States federal $ (32.2) $ 3.8 $ 55.9

Foreign 17.4 22.9 16.1

State and local (14.7) 2.8 6.3

Total current (29.5) 29.5 78.3

Deferred:

United States federal (27.8) 47.6 4.3

Foreign (0.6) (5.4) (0.2)

State and local (13.1) 4.4 (4.0)

Total deferred (41.5) 46.6 0.1

Total $ (71.0) $ 76.1 $ 78.4

The Company�s combined pre-tax earnings from foreign subsidiaries or branches were $56.5, $93.1 and $81.0 during 2008, 2007
and 2006, respectively.

The following is a reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate with the effective tax rate for the tax benefit in 2008 and tax
provision in 2007 and 2006:

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

U.S. federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

Permanent differences (9.5) 0.1 0.5

State and local income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 10.9 2.2 1.6

Foreign taxes 9.8 (5.1) (2.7)

Foreign valuation allowances (4.4) 0.4 (3.5)

Other 1.5 (1.6) 1.1

Effective rate 43.3% 31.0% 32.0%
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The impact of permanent differences in the current year of (9.5%) on the effective tax rate was primarily the result of a portion of
the HR Management goodwill impairment charge that was not deductible for tax purposes.

The Company�s foreign taxes for 2008, 2007 and 2006 included $13.7 (8.4%), $11.8 (4.8%) and $7.4 (3.0%),respectively, of
benefit derived from tax holidays in the Philippines and India. The Company�s foreign taxes for 2008, 2007 and 2006 include $12.6,
$11.0 and $7.2, respectively, related to a tax holiday in India scheduled to expire March 2010. The tax holidays in the Philippines
are scheduled to expire between January 2009 and December 2012. The Company has applied for one- or two-year extensions of
the Philippine tax holidays in accordance with local law.

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

At December 31,

2008 2007

Deferred tax asset:

Loss and credit carryforwards $ 218.0 $ 89.8

Pension and employee benefits 51.2 53.5

Restructuring charges 10.7 2.0

Deferred revenue 2.0 38.1

Other comprehensive income 63.2 �

Other 5.0 �

Valuation allowance (93.2) (56.0)

Total deferred tax asset 256.9 127.4

Deferred tax liability:

Depreciation and amortization 118.4 74.3

Deferred implementation costs 72.8 91.2

Other comprehensive income � 5.4

Other � 1.3

Total deferred tax liability 191.2 172.2

Net deferred tax (liability)/asset $ 65.7 $ (44.8)

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, $23.6 and $32.1, respectively, of the valuation allowance relates to the Company�s foreign
operations. During 2008, the operating results of the foreign entity that accounted for $22.1 of the 2007 valuation allowance
continued to improve. Since the Company concluded that there is sufficient positive evidence that it is more likely than not that the
related deferred tax assets will be realized and, accordingly, the valuation allowance was reversed in 2008. Of the $22.1, $15.2
was related to valuation allowance against net operating losses generated by the exercise of stock options
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and, therefore, the reversal of the valuation allowance was credited to additional paid in capital.

As of December 31, 2008, $44.8 of the valuation allowance relates to operating loss carryforwards acquired in connection with
business combinations in 2008. Realization of these operating loss carryforwards may be recorded as a reduction of goodwill as
specified under the transitional guidance of FASB 141R.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company has federal, state, and foreign operating loss carryforwards of $354.4, $741.8, and $141.2,
respectively. The federal operating loss carryforwards begin to expire in 2010 and can be utilized through 2028. The state operating
loss carryforwards begin to expire in 2009 and can be utilized through 2028. The foreign operating loss carryforwards include $94.4
with no expiration date; the remainder begin to expire in 2009 and can be utilized through 2023. The federal and state operating
loss carryforwards include losses of $226.8 and $165.1, respectively, that were acquired in connection with business combinations.
Utilization of the acquired federal and state tax loss carryforwards may be limited pursuant to Section 382 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986. In addition at December 31, 2008, the Company had $10.4 in state tax credits that expire from 2009 to 2011.

The Company has not provided for U.S. federal income taxes or foreign withholding taxes on $234.2 of undistributed earnings of its
foreign subsidiaries at December 31, 2008, because such earnings are intended to be reinvested indefinitely. It is not practicable to
determine the amount of applicable taxes that would be due if such were distributed.

Adoption of FIN 48 resulted in the Company recognizing a $7.8 increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits, which was
accounted for as a reduction to the retained earnings balance as of January 1, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, the liability for
unrecognized tax benefits was $82.9, of which $1.5 was recorded within other current liabilities and $81.4 was recorded within
other long-term liabilities in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements. The liability for unrecognized tax benefits of
$82.9 as of December 31, 2007 included an accrual for interest and penalties of $22.5. As of December 31, 2008, the liability for
unrecognized tax benefits was $62.0 and is recorded within other long-term liabilities in the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements. The liability for unrecognized tax benefits of $62.0 as of December 31, 2008 included an accrual for interest and
penalties of $17.9. The total amount of net unrecognized tax benefits that would affect income tax expense, if ever recognized in
the Financial Statements, is $56.0. This amount includes net interest and penalties of $14.3. The Company�s policy is to recognize
interest and penalties accrued on unrecognized tax benefits as part of income tax expense. During the years ended December 31,
2008 and 2007, the Company recognized approximately $5.8 and $6.4 in interest and penalties, respectively.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits (exclusive of interest and penalties) is as
follows:

2008 2007

Balance at January 1 $ 60.4 $ 71.2

Additions based on tax positions related to the current year 2.3 0.9
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Additions for tax positions of prior years 1.8 6.5

Reductions for tax positions of prior years (13.2) �

Settlements (4.0) �

Lapse of statutes (3.2) (18.2)

Balance at December 31 $ 44.1 $ 60.4

The decrease in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits was largely due to the resolution of tax audits in the current year. The
Company is currently attempting to resolve income tax audits relating to prior years in various jurisdictions. The Company has
received assessments from these jurisdictions including transfer pricing, research credits and deductibility of expenses. The
Company believes that it is appropriately reserved with regard to these assessments as of December 31, 2008. Furthermore, the
Company believes that it is reasonably possible that
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the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will decrease between $10.0 to $15.0 prior to December 31, 2009, based upon
resolution of audits; however, actual developments could differ from those currently expected.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and various states and foreign jurisdictions. With a few
exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to examinations by tax authorities for years before 2002.

16. Additional Financial Information

At December 31,

2008 2007

Property and equipment, net:

Land $ 21.2 $ 17.0

Buildings 178.5 151.3

Leasehold improvements 180.0 183.2

Equipment 643.8 643.5

Software 489.3 418.8

Construction in progress and other 35.7 30.4

1,548.5 1,444.2

Less: Accumulated depreciation (1,127.6) (1,079.8)

$ 420.9 $ 364.4

Payables and other current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 68.5 $ 31.2

Accrued taxes 26.8 27.6

Accrued payroll-related expenses 169.6 137.3

Pension liability 6.5 22.0

Accrued expenses, other 151.5 129.6

Restructuring and exit costs 23.1 5.7

Deferred revenue and government grants 92.7 72.9

$ 538.7 $ 426.3

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income:

Foreign currency translation adjustments $ (19.1) $ 40.3

Changes related to pension liability, net of tax benefit of $28.5 and $16.3 (50.7) (30.4)

Unrealized gain (loss) on hedging activities, net of tax (expense) benefit of $35.8
and ($21.7) (66.6) 40.4
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$ (136.4) $ 50.3

Cellular Partnerships

See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for details on the Company�s ownership interest in the Cellular
Partnerships. Summarized financial information for the Cellular Partnerships is as follows:

At December 31,

2008 2007 2006

Current assets $ 66.5 $ 68.7 $ 30.7

Non-current assets 213.1 234.4 266.4

Current liabilities 30.4 27.0 36.7

Non-current liabilities 97.0 108.5 108.1

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

Revenues $ 514.9 $ 446.6 $ 386.8

Depreciation and amortization 38.6 65.9 52.7

Operating income 107.4 45.3 35.3

Net income 103.8 41.8 30.6

17. Industry Segment and Geographic Operations

Industry Segment Information

As discussed in Note 1, the Company has three segments, which are identified by service offerings. Customer Management
provides agent-assisted services, automated self-service and technology solutions. Information Management provides business
support system/operational support system solutions for the global communications industry. HR Management provides global
human resource business process outsourcing solutions. These segments are consistent with the Company�s management of the
business and reflect its internal financial reporting structure and operating focus.
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The Company does not allocate activities below the operating income level to its reported segments. The Company�s business
segment information is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

Revenues:

Customer Management $ 1,954.8 $ 1,866.1 $ 1,803.1

Information Management 571.5 723.0 775.3

HR Management 259.5 255.2 211.4

$ 2,785.8 $ 2,844.3 $ 2,789.8

Depreciation:

Customer Management $ 61.4 $ 55.9 $ 65.4

Information Management 28.2 32.4 33.6

HR Management 9.3 8.7 12.8

Corporate and other 20.1 18.4 18.3

$ 119.0 $ 115.4 $ 130.1

Amortization:

Customer Management $ 4.3 $ 2.7 $ 4.0

Information Management 7.0 3.7 6.9

HR Management 2.2 2.6 1.7

$ 13.5 $ 9.0 $ 12.6

Restructuring Charges:

Customer Management $ 14.0 $ � $ 6.5

Information Management 9.7 3.4 0.8

HR Management 10.5 � 2.1

Corporate and other 0.2 � 3.1

$ 34.4 $ 3.4 $ 12.5

Asset Impairments:
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Customer Management $ � $ 1.4 $ �

Information Management � 1.3 �

HR Management 268.6 2.8 �

$ 268.6 $ 5.5 $ �

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

Operating Income (Loss):

Customer Management $ 92.6 $ 176.7 $ 202.4

Information Management 96.4 130.9 124.5

HR Management (358.8) (38.3) (38.4)

Corporate (21.5) (24.5) (35.6)

$ (191.3) $ 244.8 $ 252.9

Capital Expenditures: (1)

Customer Management $ 49.7 $ 32.4 $ 39.8

Information Management 17.9 18.4 33.4

HR Management 8.3 17.1 10.3

Corporate (2) 24.6 34.4 21.4

$ 100.5 $ 102.3 $ 104.9

(1)Excluding proceeds from the disposal of property and equipment.
(2) Includes shared services-related capital expenditures and depreciation.

At December 31,

2008 2007

Total Assets:

Customer Management $ 1,570.4 $ 1,135.4

Information Management 516.7 548.5

HR Management 385.5 530.6

Corporate 368.8 349.7

$ 2,841.4 $ 2,564.2

Geographic Operations

The following table presents certain geographic information regarding the Company�s operations:

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

Revenues:
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North America $ 2,336.3 $ 2,449.8 $ 2,475.4

Rest of World 449.5 394.5 314.4

$ 2,785.8 $ 2,844.3 $ 2,789.8

At December 31,

2008 2007 2006

Long-lived Assets:

North America $ 1,614.5 $ 1,465.5 $ 1,415.5

Rest of World 240.5 230.2 187.9

$ 1,855.0 $ 1,695.7 $ 1,603.4
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Concentrations

The Customer Management and Information Management segments derive significant revenues from AT&T. Revenues from AT&T
were 18.2%, 16.3% and 17.3% of the Company�s consolidated revenues for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Related accounts
receivable from AT&T totaled $93.1 and $82.7 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

18. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

1st

Quarter
2nd

Quarter
3rd

Quarter
4th

Quarter Total

2008:

Revenues $ 716.4 $ 689.5 $ 676.2 $ 703.7 $ 2,785.8

Operating (loss) income $ 38.9 $ 47.4 $ (242.0)(1) $ (35.6)(2) $ (191.3)

Net (loss) income $ 35.9 $ 40.5 $ (140.0) $ (29.3) $ (92.9)

(Loss) earnings per share

Basic $ 0.28 $ 0.33 $ (1.15) $ (0.24) $ (0.75)

Diluted $ 0.28 $ 0.32 $ (1.15) $ (0.24) $ (0.75)

2007:

Revenues $ 719.9 $ 707.0 $ 703.7 $ 713.7 $ 2,844.3

Operating income $ 65.2 $ 58.1 $ 63.0 $ 58.5 $ 244.8

Net income $ 43.6 $ 38.8 $ 41.8 $ 45.3 $ 169.5

Earnings per share

Basic $ 0.32 $ 0.28 $ 0.31 $ 0.35 $ 1.26

Diluted $ 0.31 $ 0.28 $ 0.30 $ 0.34 $ 1.23

Segment Data:

Customer Management

2008:

Revenues $ 476.0 $ 469.0 $ 483.2 $ 526.6 $ 1,954.8

Operating income $ 21.9 $ 19.4 $ 23.3 $ 28.0 $ 92.6

2007:

Revenues $ 469.0 $ 460.6 $ 462.9 $ 473.6 $ 1,866.1

Operating income $ 56.3 $ 44.7 $ 40.4 $ 35.3 $ 176.7

1st

Quarter
2nd

Quarter
3rd

Quarter
4th

Quarter Total

Information Management

2008:

Revenues $ 163.2 $ 161.1 $ 133.6 $ 113.6 $ 571.5

Operating income $ 29.5 $ 37.9 $ 17.4 $ 11.6 $ 96.4
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2007:

Revenues $ 185.9 $ 183.4 $ 177.6 $ 176.1 $ 723.0

Operating income $ 25.3 $ 38.4 $ 34.1 $ 33.1 $ 130.9

Human Resource Management

2008:

Revenues $ 77.2 $ 59.4 $ 59.4 $ 63.5 $ 259.5

Operating loss $ (4.9) $ (4.2) $ (279.8)(1) $ (69.9)(2) $ (358.8)

2007:

Revenues $ 65.0 $ 63.0 $ 63.2 $ 64.0 $ 255.2

Operating loss $ (7.4) $ (17.1) $ (8.3) $ (5.5) $ (38.3)

(1) Includes asset impairment and implementation charges of $272.9. See Note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for more details related to these charges.

(2) Includes goodwill impairment charge of $61.1. See Note 6 of the Notes of Consolidated Financial Statements for more
details related to this charge.
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Item 9., 9A. and 9B.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

No disagreements with accountants on any accounting or financial disclosure or auditing scope or procedure occurred during 2008.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company�s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer evaluated, together with General Counsel, the Chief Accounting
Officer and other key employees, the effectiveness of design and operation of the Company�s �disclosure controls and procedures�
(as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Act)) as of the year
ended December 31, 2008 (Evaluation Date). Based on this evaluation, the Company�s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer have concluded that the Company�s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the Evaluation Date such that
the information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Act is accumulated and
communicated to the Company�s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure, and are effective to ensure that such information is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Security and Exchange Commission�s rules and forms.

Attestation Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Convergys� management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as such
term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f)) that is designed to produce reliable Financial Statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the
Company�s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008. In making this assessment, it used the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control�Integrated
Framework. The scope of management�s assessment as of December 31, 2008 did not include an assessment of the internal
control over financial reporting for Intervoice, which was acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination on
September 3, 2008. Based on its assessment, management concluded that, as of December 31, 2008, the Company�s internal
control over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria. The Company�s independent registered accounting firm,
Ernst & Young LLP, has issued an attestation report on internal control over financial reporting, which appears on page 46.

Changes in Internal Control

There have been no changes in the Company�s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the year ended
December 31, 2008 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company�s internal control over
financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
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Part III, Item 10. through 14.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by Item 10 with respect to directors, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee
financial experts, Financial Code of Ethics and Section 16 compliance is incorporated herein by reference to the section of the
Company�s proxy statement relating to its annual meeting of shareholders to be held on April 21, 2009.

Certain information concerning the executive officers of the Company is contained on pages 12-13 of this Form 10-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to the Company�s proxy statement relating to its annual
meeting of shareholders to be held on April 21, 2009.

The remaining information called for by this Item relating to �securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans� is
incorporated by reference to Note 11 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

The Share Ownership of Directors and Officers section is incorporated herein by reference to the Company�s proxy statement
relating to its annual meeting of shareholders to be held on April 21, 2009.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Relationships and related transactions section, and director independence is incorporated herein by reference to the Company�s
proxy statement relating to its annual meeting of shareholders to be held on April 21, 2009.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is incorporated by reference to the Company�s proxy statement relating to its annual meeting of
shareholders to be held on April 21, 2009.

82  Convergys Corporation 2008 Annual Report

Edgar Filing: CONVERGYS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 159



Table of Contents

Part IV, Items 15., 15(a)(1) and (2)

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule

Item 15(a)(1) and (2). List of Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule

The following consolidated financial statements of Convergys are included in Item 8:

Page

(1) Consolidated Financial Statements:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 46

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) 49

Consolidated Balance Sheets 50

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 51

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders� Equity 52

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 53

(2) Financial Statement Schedule:

II�Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 86

Financial statement schedules other than that listed above have been omitted because the required information is not required or
applicable.

(3) Exhibits:

Exhibits identified in parenthesis below, on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), are incorporated herein by
reference as exhibits hereto.

Exhibit Number

3.1 Amended Articles of Incorporation of the Company. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to Form S-3 Registration
Statement (File No. 333-43404) filed on August 10, 2000.)
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3.2 Code of Regulations of the Company. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.2 from Form S-1/A Registration Statement
(File No. 333-53619) filed on July 17, 1998.)

  4.1 Rights Agreement dated November 30, 1998 between Convergys Corporation and Computershare Limited (formerly with
The Fifth Third Bank). (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-A Registration Statement (File No. 001-14379)
filed on December 23, 1998.)

  4.2 Amendment No. 1 to the Rights Agreement dated December 1, 2008 between Convergys Corporation and Computershare
Limited. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K filed on December 1, 2008.)

  4.3 Amendment No. 2 to the Rights Agreement dated February, 2009 between Convergys Corporation and Computershare
Limited. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed on February 9, 2008.)

10.1 Employment Agreement dated August 21, 2007 between the Company and David F. Dougherty. (Incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s Form 8-K filed on August 27, 2007.) *

10.2 Employment Agreement dated August 21, 2007 between the Company and Earl C. Shanks. (Incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company�s Form 8-K filed on August 27, 2007.) *

10.3 Employment Agreement as amended dated December 30, 2008 between the Company and Karen R. Bowman.*

10.4 Employment Agreement between the Company and Jean-Hervè Jenn. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5 to
Form 10-K filed on February 28, 2008.) *

10.5 Change in Control Agreement with Jean-Hervè Jenn dated August 8, 2008. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to
Form 10-Q filed on November 5, 2008.) *

10.6 Employment Agreement as amended dated December 30, 2008 between the Company and Clark D. Handy.*

10.7 Convergys Corporation Deferred Compensation and LTIP Award Deferral Plan for Non-Employee
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Directors as amended and restated effective February 24, 2004. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.24 to Form
10-Q filed on August 9, 2004.) *

10.8 Convergys Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors dated August 26, 2008. (Incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q filed on November 5, 2008.) *

10.9 Convergys Corporation Long-Term Incentive Plan as amended and restated effective as of April 22, 2008. (Incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-Q filed on May 2, 2008.) *

10.10 Convergys Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan amended effective February 20, 2007. (Incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q filed on August 7, 2007.) *

10.11 Convergys Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan as amended dated August 26, 2008. (Incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q filed on November 5, 2008.) *

10.12 Convergys Corporation Executive Deferred Compensation Plan as amended October 29, 2001. (Incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.9 to Form 10-K filed on February 28, 2008.) *

10.13 Convergys Corporation Executive Deferred Compensation Plan as amended effective February 24, 2004. (Incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.25 to Form 10-Q filed on August 9, 2004.) *

10.14 Convergys Corporation Executive Deferred Compensation Plan as amended dated December 21, 2005. *

10.15 Convergys Corporation Executive Deferred Compensation Plan as amended dated October 21, 2008. *

10.16 Convergys Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference from Appendix IV of the Company�s
Definitive Schedule 14A filed on March 12, 2004.) *

10.17 Convergys Corporation Retirement and Savings Plan as amended and restated dated January 28, 2008.*

10.18 Amendment to Convergys Corporation Retirement and Savings Plan dated March 31, 2008.*

10.19 Amendment to Convergys Corporation Retirement and Savings Plan dated December 23, 2008.*

10.20 Convergys Corporation Canadian Employee Share Plan. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.2 to Form S-8
Registration Statement (File No. 333-86137) filed on December 29, 1999.) *

10.21 Annual Executive Incentive Plan dated February 20, 2007. (Incorporated by reference from Appendix IV of the Company�s
Definitive Schedule 14A filed on March 13, 2007.) *
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10.22 Convergys Corporation Qualified and Non-Qualified Pension Plan as amended and restated dated January 28, 2008.*

10.23 Amended Convergys Corporation Qualified and Non-Qualified Pension Plan dated March 31, 2008.*

10.24 Amended Convergys Corporation Qualified and Non-Qualified Pension Plan dated December 17, 2008.*

10.25 Convergys Corporation Severance Pay Plan dated December 9, 2008.*

10.26 2006 Form of Time-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Employees. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit
10.24 to Form 10-K filed March 6, 2006.) *

10.27 2006 Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.25
to Form 10-K filed March 6, 2006.) *

10.28 2006 Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Senior Executives. (Incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.26 to Form 10-K filed March 6, 2006.) *

10.29 2007 Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement. (Incorporated by reference
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Part IV (continued), Item 15(b) and (c).

from Exhibit 10.26.1 to Form 10-K filed on February 28, 2007.) *

10.30 2007 Form of Performance Unit Award Agreement. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.27.1 to Form 10-K filed on
February 28, 2007.) *

10.31 2007 Form of Time-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Directors.*

10.32 2008 Form of Time-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award for Directors. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Form
10-Q filed on May 2, 2008.) *

10.33 2008 Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q
filed on May 2, 2008.) *

10.34 2008 Form of Performance Unit Award. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q filed on May 2, 2008.) *

10.35 $400,000,000 Five-Year Competitive Advance and Revolving Credit Facility Agreement dated as of October 20, 2006.
(Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K filed October 20, 2006.)

10.36 Amendment to $400,000,000 Five-Year Competitive Advance and Revolving Credit Facility Agreement dated as of August
11, 2008. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-Q filed on November 5, 2008.)

10.37 Participation Agreement between Convergys Corporation, Various Guarantors and Wachovia Development Corporation
dated as of June 30, 2003. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q filed on August 12, 2003.)

10.38 Amended and Restated Lease Agreement between Wachovia Development Corporation and Convergys Corporation as of
June 30, 2003. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q filed on August 12, 2003.)

10.39 Security Agreement between Wachovia Development Corporation and Wachovia Bank, National Association and accepted
and agreed to by Convergys Corporation as of June 30, 2003. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q
filed on August 12, 2003.)

10.40 Assignment and Recharacterization Agreement between Convergys Corporation, Wells Fargo Bank Northwest, National
Association, and Bank of America, N.A. (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-Q filed on August 12,
2003.)

10.41 Supplemental Indenture No. 1 for the $250,000,000 of 4.875% Senior Notes dated December 16, 2004. (Incorporated by
reference from Item 8.01 to Form 8-K filed on December 22, 2004.)

10.42
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Agreement, dated February 4, 2009, by and between Convergys Corporation and JANA Partners LLC. (Incorporated by
reference from Item 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on February 5, 2009.)

12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Dividends.

21 Subsidiaries of the Company.

23 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

24 Powers of Attorney.

31.1 Rule 13(a) - 14(a) Certification by Chief Executive Officer.

31.2 Rule 13(a) - 14(a) Certification by Chief Financial Officer.

32 Section 1350 Certifications.

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

The Company will furnish, without charge, to a security holder upon request, a copy of the documents, or the portions thereof,
which are incorporated by reference, and will furnish any other exhibit at cost.

Item 15(b) and (c). Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

The responses to these portions of Item 15 are submitted as a separate section of this report.
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CONVERGYS CORPORATION

SCHEDULE II � VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(Millions of Dollars)

COL. A COL. B COL. C COL. D COL. E
Additions

(1) (2)

Description

Balance at
Beginning
of Period

Charged
to

Expense

Charged

to Other
Accounts Deductions

Balance
at End

of Period

Year 2008

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts $ 7.6 $ 9.9 $ � $  6.7 [a] $ 10.8

Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allow. $ 56.0 $  14.9 [b] $  29.2 [c] $  6.9 [d] $ 93.2

Restructuring Reserve $ 5.7 $ 34.4 � $  17.0 $ 23.1

Year 2007

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts $ 12.0 $ 12.3 � $  16.7 [a] $ 7.6

Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allow. $ 73.6 $  5.4 [b] $ (18.0) [e] $  5.0 [f] $ 56.0

Restructuring Reserve $ 23.5 $ 3.4 � $ 21.2 $ 5.7

Year 2006

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts $ 10.0 $ 8.4 � $  6.4 [a] $ 12.0

Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allow. $ 78.0 $  3.6 [b] $ (8.0) [g] � $ 73.6

Restructuring Reserve $ 28.1 $ 24.6 � $ 29.2 $ 23.5

[a] Primarily includes amounts written off as uncollectible.
[b] Amounts relate to valuation allowances recorded for state and foreign operating loss carryforwards.
[c] Primarily includes adjustments for: acquisition related net operating losses and credits of ($44.7) and valuation allowance release to additional

paid in capital of $15.2.
[d] Primarily includes the release of foreign valuation allowances related to the utilization of foreign net operating losses in the current year
[e] Includes adjustments to fully valued deferred tax assets and foreign currency translation adjustments on foreign deferred tax assets.
[f] Primarily includes the release of foreign valuation allowances related to the utilization of foreign net operating losses in the current year.
[g] $3.4 includes the impact of foreign currency translation adjustments related to foreign deferred taxes offset by ($11.4) which primarily includes

the release of foreign valuation allowances related to the utilization of foreign net operating losses in the current year.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CONVERGYS CORPORATION

February 27, 2009 By  /s/ Earl C. Shanks
Earl C. Shanks

Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ DAVID F. DOUGHERTY

David F. Dougherty

Principal Executive Officer;

Chief Executive Officer and Director

February 27, 2009

/s/ EARL C. SHANKS Principal Financial Officer;

Chief Financial Officer

February 27, 2009

Earl C. Shanks

/s/ TIMOTHY M. WESOLOWSKI

Timothy M. Wesolowski

Principal Accounting Officer;

Senior Vice President,

Controller and Treasurer

February 27, 2009

ZOË BAIRD*

Zoë Baird

Director

JOHN F. BARRETT*

John F. Barrett

Director

WILLARD W. BRITTAIN JR.*

Willard W. Brittain Jr.

Director

DAVID B. DILLON*

David B. Dillon

Director

JEFFREY H. FOX*

Jeffrey H. Fox

Director

JOSEPH E. GIBBS*

Joseph E. Gibbs

Director
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THOMAS L. MONAHAN III*

Thomas L. Monahan III

Director

RONALD L. NELSON*

Ronald L. Nelson

Director

PHILIP A. ODEEN*

Philip A. Odeen

Director

BARRY ROSENSTEIN*

Barry Rosenstein

Director

RICHARD F. WALLMAN* Director

Richard F. Wallman

DAVID R. WHITWAM*

David R. Whitwam

Director

*By: /s/ Earl C. Shanks  February 27, 2009
Earl C. Shanks

as attorney-in-fact
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